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Forward-Locking Statements

This Annual Report, including the "Letter to Qur Stockholders,” contains “forward-looking
statements” as that term is defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, as
amended (the "Reform Act"}. “Forward-loaking statemenis™ include expressed expectations of
future events and the assumptions cn which the expressed expectations are based. The words
"believe” "expect,” “antidpate,” “intend,” “forecast,” “estimate,” "project,” “will,” and similar
expressions identify forward-looking siatements. Such statements may incude, but are not limized to,
the state of the electronic payments industry and competition within the industry; projections
segarding specific demand for our products and services; the commercial feasibility and acceptance of
aew products, services and market development inftiatives; our ability to successfully penetrate the
vertical and geographic markets that we have targeted; our ability to improve our cost struciure,
induding reducing our product and operating costs; our ability 1o develop more recurring revenue
sireams; our ability to allocate research and development resources to new product and service
offerings; our future financial performance and financial condition; the adequacy of our current
facilities and management systems infrastructure to meet our operational needs; the status of our
refationship with and condition of third parties upen whom we rely in the conduct of our business;
the sufficiency of reserves for assets and obligations expaosed to revaluation; aur ability to successfully
expand our business; our ability to obtain expected results and benefits from acguisitions; our ability
to effectively hedge cur exposure to foreign currency exchange rate fiuctuations; aur ability to sustain
our current income tax structure; the impact of current litigation maters on our business; our ability
to fund our projected liquidity needs from cash flow from operations and our current cash reserves;
and future access to capital on terms that are acceptable, as well as assumptions refated to the
foregoing. All forward-looking statements are inherently uncertain as they are based on various
expectations and assumptions conceming future events and are subject to numerous unguantifizble
risks and uncertainties, some of which are unkngwas, that could cause actua) events of rasults to differ
materially from those projected. Due to such risks and uncertainties, you should nat place undue
reliance on our written or oral forward-lnoking statements. We are under no obligation, nor do we
intend, to update or revisa such forward-looking statements to reflact future developments, changed
assumptions, the occurrence of unanticipated events, or changes to future operating resuits over time.

"o v on

We provide the risk factor disclosure contained in "Item 1A — Risk Factors” of our Annual Report on
Form 10-K, as amended, cantained herein in cannection with our continuing effort to qualify our
written and orad forward-locking statements under the safe harbor protection of the Reform Act and
any other similar safe harbor provisions. Many of the important factors currently known to
management that coud cause acwal results to differ materizlty from those in forward-looking
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LETTER TO OUR STOCKHOLDERS

In 2006, we returned the Company to profitability for the first time since 2003 and,
excluding charges for non-cash share based ¢ompensation, we delivered the highest level

of operating profit and income from continuing operations since 1999.

We advanced on a number of fronts toward

ur goal of transforming your Company into

a highly competitive, market-focused, product and services company. We added to our
new line of market leading 32-bit Optimum products, modified our multi-lane distribution

strategy to improve the opportunity for future
team worldwide, won an array of new cust
other global payment terminal suppliers, exp
additional recurring revenue, continued to re

sales growth, strengthened the management
omers in head-to-head competition against
anded our service organization 10 generate
duce operating expenses by becoming more

efficient, and saw strong year-over-year revenue growth in Brazil, Mexico, Europe, Asia, and

IN services.

Nonetheless, the improvement of our financial
performance has been slower than we anticipated at this
time last year. In particular, our revenue growth in many
sectors was overshadowed by a significant decline in our
multi-lane product business in the US and a modest
decline in our Pacific region revenues.

While our results for 2006 were certainly not where we
expected them to be, clear progress was demonstrated.
we know we have much work to do to deliver the kind
of financial performance that you deserve from Hypercom
management.

We exited 2006 with a solid financial and product
platform. And, we entered 2007 with solid macro growth
drivers in the global marketplace of increasing card
acceptance, new technologies, ever increasing security
requirements, and emerging economies embracing
etectronic payments that will drive electronic transaction
growth for a long time to come. These factors present
your Company with substantial market opportunity.

NEW PRODUCTS

In January 2006, we introduced the Optimum L4200 and
higher-resolution Optimum L4250 multi-lane terminals
with signature capture capabilities. These two new lower-
cost alternatives to the full-color Optimum L4100 are the
first multi-lane payment products to provide an out-of-
the-box plug & play capability that meets PCI PED
(Payment Card Industry PIN Entry Device) and Interac
security requirements, without the necessity of add-on
components. This simplifies deployment and ensures
compliance with the industry's new security requirements.

In April 2006, we announced the payment industry’s first
palm-sized, 32-bit mobile wireless credit/debit and
general purpose terminal, capable of global deployment.
The PCl-approved Optimum M4100 Blade™ handles high
security payments and other transactions; is truly mobile,
weighing in at 7.1 ounces; features GPRS and Wi-Fi
communications capabilities; has a top of the line high
contrast, full-color signature capture touch screen; and
provides other state-of-the-art features for restaurants,
delivery services and other mobile businesses worldwide.
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LETTER TO OUR STCCKHOLDERS

In November 2006, we announced the release of the new
EMV/PCl-approved Optimum H2210 unattended
bankcard reader for use in the rapidly growing self-
service kiosk market.

We also extended the Company's payment networking
solutions into the automated teller machine (ATM)
market with ATMConnect™, a service that upgrades dial
ATMs to Internet Protocol (IP} without expensive ATM
equipment replacements. The new service is built around
Hypercom’s ATMConnect 5100, an Internet gateway that
plugs directly into legacy dial ATMs. This small plug and
play device converts dial messages to IP, provides secure
S5L encryption of all transactions, and supports either
broadband or wireless connectivity.

We expect to continue releasing new products during the
course of 2007 that will enable faster revenue growth
going forward.

MULTI-LANE SELLING MODEL IN TRANSITION

Although the multi-lane business was less than 10% of
our annual revenue, the performance was far below our
expectations in 2006. This failure had a negative effect
on both our revenue and profitability. Multi-lane had
been a significant source of growth in 2005 and that
growth was expected to continue in 2006.

We also expected to gain broader marketing and
distribution of our multi-lane products as we transitioned
our multi-lane sales activity from a direct to an indirect
distribution model. The objective of this move is to
provide us with access to the largest global multi-lane
retailers by leveraging the relationships our indirect
partners have and significantly increasing the number of
sales people selling Hypercom designed multi-lane
terminals.

In July 2006, as the cornerstone of the transition to an
indirect selling business model for multi-lane products,
we announced a strategic relationship with Symbol
Technologies. We provide Symbol-branded Hypercom
secure electronic payment devices for resale by Symbol.
Symbol was subsequently acquired by Motorola, a move
we believe may strengthen the marketing and selling
approach necessary to have the best possible opportunity
for displacement of incumbent competitors in key multi-
lane accounts.

In addition to Symbol, we entered into strategic
refationships with StoreNext Retail Technologies LLC and
Wincor Nixdorf.  StoreNext markets our Optimum
payment terminals to independent grocers and regional
chains via its nationwide dealer network. StoreNext is the

HYPERCOM CORPORATION

top supplier of retail technology to independent grocers
and regional chains in the US. The agreement with
Wincor Nixdorf is a strategic reseller agreement to bundle
our high-security Optimum multi-lane payment terminals
intc Wincor’s total solution offerings. Wincor Nixdorf is
one of world's leading suppliers of IT solutions to the
retail and banking industries.

In 2007, we are continuing to focus on improving this
component of our business,

ENHANCED GLOBAL SALES LEADERSHIP

We continued to re-invigorate the Company’s global sales
leadership team with seasoned executives who have
extensive domestic and international expertise, and an in-
depth knowledge of the payments business. In particular,
we strengthened our regional sales management in the
European, Pacific, and Mexico and Central American
markets. We added veteran industry business managers
to our team, with the expectation of increased sales
performance in those markets in 2007.

We also announced the newly created position of Senior
Vice President, Global Customer Service, responsible for
enhancing the company’s customer care activities
globally, and directing the worldwide expansion of
Hypercom's services business which includes our rapidly
growing service portfolio in Brazil, as well as our recent
acquisition of ACG Group in Australia.

CUSTOMER WINS

The market respcnse to our Optimum product line has
been outstanding.

Total Merchant Services, Inc., one of the industry's fastest
growing privately-held independent sales organizations
{ISOs), selected Hypercom as its preferred supplier of card
payment terminals and committed to purchase a
minimum of 20,000 Optimum T4100 multi-application
card payment terminals.

Other leading companies selecting and initiating sales of
the Optimum T4100 in 2006, included: Fifth Third
Processing Solutions, the nation's fourth largest bankcard
acquirer; EVO Merchant Services, the nation’s sixth largest
non-bank credit card processor; United Bank Card, one of
the nation’s largest and fast growing payment processors
serving more than 50,000 merchants; IRN Payment
Systems, one of the nation’s premier credit card
processors; Element Payment Services, a leading 150
serving more than 30,000 merchants; and Retriever
Payment Systems, a prominent merchant acquirer.




NOVA Information Systems, a wholly owned subsidiary of
U.S. Bancorp and the third largest merchant acquirer in

North America, named Hypercom a 'Preferred POS
Equipment Provider’, and commenced Class A
certification of the Optimum T4100.

Valutec Card Solutions’ gift and loyalty card programs
were Class A certified on the Optimum T4100. Loyalty
and gift card processor Catuity Inc. integrated its solution
with the Optimum T4100. CrossCheck, Inc., the nation’s
largest privately held check approval and guarantee
service provider, announced the development and
certification of its check conversion and standard
guarantee applications on the Optimum 74100 platform.

Internationally, Thaitand’s Suvarnabhumi International
Airport in Bangkok selected the Optimum T2100 as its
choice for card payment solutions. Athens-based EFG
Eurobank purchased thousands of Cptimum T2100s as
part of a major expansion of its regional payment
network throughout Central and Eastern Europe.

Kazkommertsbank, the largest private full-service bank in
Kazakhstan, purchased thousands of Optimum T2100s,
marking the launch of a new program the bank is
introducing to help the country’s merchants implement
customer loyalty programs. Leading regional integrated
IT solutions provider STS announced that the leading
financial services company in Irag, has selected and will
install the Optimum T2100 and associated networking
products at retail iocations throughout Irag’s 18 states,

Pexim Cardinfo announced that more than 15 leadin
banks in Serbia and Montenegro are deploying the
Optimum T2100, and that over 60% of all paymem
devices, and virtually all of the networking devices, use
in the region are now Hypercom products.

In the electronic payments industry, transaction security Is
paramount. We are an industry leader in providi lg
trusted, high security electronic transaction products. rL
2006, we built on our expertise and industry lead,
delivering products to the market that meet the magst
rigorous security standards. The products we sell [in
EMEA, Asia and Latin America meet the highest EMV
security standards for smart card capable payment deviges
as required by MasterCard, Visa and JCB. We are rapidly
moving to ensure all of our continuing PIN entry products
will be PCI- approved by the end of 2007. l
ed

The new Optimum P2100 PIN entry device recei

certification by the Sociedade Interbancaria de Servicos
(SIBS) in Portugal, which further expanded the global
market for the Company’s products. Four months after that
important certification, we announced that El Corte Ingles,
one of the largest retailers in Europe, had selected

LETTER TO OUR STOCKHOLDERS

Hypercom as a preferred provider of card payment PIN entry
devices and installed our EMV-certified Optimum P2100 PIN
pads in their department stores in Portugal, in conjunction
with that country’s migration to EMV security standards.

Continuing the Company’s historical excellence in
innovation and security, the IP-enabled Optimum T4100
became the first card payment terminal to gain approval
under MasterCard Worldwide's new Payment Terminal
Security Program, established to ensure that IP-based
transactions meet the highest levels of security. The
Optimum T4100' status as the first payment terminal to
achieve MasterCard's new security designation reflects
our ongoing commitment to maximizing security for
electranic payments.

SERVICES AND SOFTWARE

Card payment terminals and PIN pads are an important part
of our product portfolio, but we do much more. As of year-
end 2006, the Company supported more than 1,000,000
terminal devices globally with deployment, help desk, field
or onsite repairs and similar services. These services are
provided by Hypercom’s NETSET operations in Brazil, Chile
and Mexico, as well as the company's service centers in
Europe, the Middle East and Africa.

The number of terminals under service by NETSET in Brazil
rose more than 60% in 2006, topping 700,000 by year
end. NETSET provides deployment, software upgrade
service, help desk, and in-field and return-to-depot repair
services for products from all major terminal vendors,
including Hypercom products.

Our service businesses are meant to be complementary, not
a replacement for, our core POS terminal and networking
products business. Service affords us the opportunity to
build predictable, recurring revenue streams around our
sometimes lumpy product revenues and allow us to
leverage the entire installed base of POS terminals for those
markets we elect to serve. We pursue this in situations
where we have superior service efficiencies compared to
smaller service competitors. Currently comprising 23% of
our consolidated revenue, our goal is to see approximately
30% of our total revenues be associated with our service
businesses by the end of 2008.
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LETTER TO OUR STOCKHOLDERS

FISCAL SPENDING CONTROLS

In 2006, we reduced our operating expenses by $14.3 million
compared to 2005. These savings were primarily due to
business efficiency improvements resulting from the 2005
business review including a reduction in headcount, relocation
of certain R&D activities to lower cost geographies, reduced
professional fees, improved logistics management, and
consolidation of administrative activities into fewer cost
centers. None of these changes negatively impacted our ability
to develop quality products and services and to grow our
customer base in 2006. In 2007, we will continue to focus on
cost management and seek additional improvements in cost of
sales from reduced component procurement Costs, a move in
the direction of outsourced manufacturing, and improvements
in the cost of services delivery.

STRENGTH OF BALANCE SHEET

We continue to have one of the strongest balance sheets
in our industry, with over $81 million in cash and short
term investments at the end of 2006. We generated $16
million of cash from the operation and subsequent sale of
our UK. leasing portfolio in 2006. This increase was
partially offset by $6.3 million of cash-flow used in
operations. The negative cash-flow from operations was
related to a $13.2 million increase in inventory. We
expect to significantly reduce our inventory on hand
during 2007.

In 2006, we repaid a bank debt related to financing of
our corporate headquarters facility in Phoenix, leaving us
with virtually no long term debt. We have significant
working capital which will allow us to fund planned
organic growth. With our strong balance sheet, we
maintain the flexibility to consider external growth
opportunities that would leverage our existing core
product portfolio, services infrastructure, and research
and development activities, as well as other potential
opportunities designed to benefit our shareholders. We
can also point to our strong balance sheet as a key
indicator to customers that your Company is able to
deliver on its commitments into the future.

INVESTOR EXPECTATIONS

The strategy we articulated for 2006 remains unchanged for
2007. We envision 2007 as a year of revenue and profitability
growth. We will focus on growing our revenues and market
share while continuing to control our costs, thus creating
greater leverage from our existing expense base. We believe
that as one of the top three global providers of electronic
payment devices, we already have the necessary global
infrastructure to support much higher revenues without

HYPERCOM CORPORATION

adding significant additional operating cost. We expect to
grow our business through a world class internal sales team
working with a strong, growing and dedicated distributor and
partner network. The worldwide demand for high security,
multi-application transaction platforms that enable the fast and
secure transmission of data, continues to grow. We intend to
continue aggressively pursuing every relevant business
opportunity and leverage key technology drivers such as
wireless and mobile solutions; IP connectivity, contactless
solutions; signature capture; unattended and integrated
solutions; multi-application solutions; and secure end-to-end
host transaction networks, as we grow our business.

We have an experienced management team in place. We have
a recognized and trusted brand, a global footprint and solid
relationships with customers in over 100 countries. We have a
new and revitatized product line and an aggressive roadmap
for 2007. We are finandally strong and returned to profitability
in 2006, despite absorbing over $6 million of incremental
share-based compensation expense due to new accounting
rules. We have a strong balance sheet including tangible net
worth of $170 million, greater than either of our two leading
competitors.  We have made significant progress in the
development of new products to transform Hypercom into a
more competitive company. We move into 2007 with energy,
enthusiasm, focus and determination. We will continue our
efforts to build a sustainable, winning company in the global
market place. We fully expect to expand our market share,
build momentum and deliver profits in the coming years.

Sincerely,
William Keiper

Chief Executive Officer
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Explanatory Note

Hypercom Corporation is filing this Amendment No. 1 on Form 10-K/A (“Amendment”) to correct the number
of outstanding shares of its common stock set forth on the cover page of its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2006, as filed with the Securiti ls and Exchange Commission on March 16, 2007
(“Form 10-K™); to correct the aggregate market value of its common stock held by non-affiliates on the cover
page; to correct a typographical error and correct the delcription of other competitors in item 1. Business —
Competition; and to correct the number of outstanding shares of its common stock in the Risk Factor entitled “Our
stock price could be affected because a substantial number of shares of our common stock will be available for sale
in the future” in [tem 1 A. Risk Factors. No other changes have been made to the Form 10-K. This Amendment does
not reflect events occurring after the filing of the Form|10-K, does not update disclosures contained in the
Form 10-K, and does not modify or amend the Form 10-K except as specifically described in this explanatory note.

Pursuant to Rule 12b-15 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Amendment contains the complete
text of Item 1 and Item 1A, and currently dated certifications of Hypercom Corporation's Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer.
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report and certain information incorporated by reference herein contains forward-looking statements
within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. In passing the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, as amended
(the “Reform Act”), Congress encouraged public companies to make “forward-looking statements” by creating a
safe harbor to protect companies from securities law liability in connection with such forward-looking statements.
We intend to qualify both our written and oral forward-looking statements for protection under the Reform Act and
any other similar safe harbor provisions.

“Forward-looking statements” include expressed expectations of future events and the assumptions on which
the expressed expectations are based. The words “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “‘intend,” “forecast,” “estimate,”
“project,” “will” and similar expressions identify forward-looking statements. Such statements may include, but are
not limited to, the state of the electronic payments industry and competition within the industry; projections
regarding specific demand for our products and services; the commercial feasibility and acceptance of new
products, services and market development initiatives; our ability to successfully penetrate the vertical and
geographic markets that we have targeted; our ability to improve our cost structure, including reducing our
product and operating costs; our ability to develop more recurring revenue streams; our ability to allocate research
and development resources to new product and service offerings; our future financial performance and financial
condition; the adequacy of our current facilities and management systems infrastructure to meet our operational
needs; the status of our relationship with and condition of third parties upon whom we rely in the conduct of our
business, the sufficiency of reserves for assets and obligations exposed to revaluation; our ability to successfully
expand our business; our ability to obtain expected results and benefits from acquisitions; our ability to effectively
hedge our exposure to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations; our ability to sustain our current income tax
structure; the impact of current litigation matters on our business; our ability to fund our projected liquidity needs
from cash flow from operations and our current cash reserves; and future access to capital on terms that are
acceptable, as well as assumptions related to the foregoing. All forward-looking statements are inherently uncertain
as they are based on various expectations and assumptions concerning future events and are subject to numerous
unquantifiable risks and uncertainties, some of which are unknown, that could cause actual events or results to differ
materially from those projected. Due to such risks and uncertainties, you should not place undue reliance on our
written or oral forward-looking statements. We are under no obligation, nor do we intend, to update or revise such
forward-locking statements to reflect future developments, changed assumptions, the occurrence of unanticipated
events, or changes to future operating results over time.

LLIFYY LIS

We provide the risk factor disclosure contained in “Item 1A — Risk Factors” of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K in connection with our continuing effort to qualify our written and oral forward-looking statements
under the safe harbor protection of the Reform Act and any other similar safe harbor provisions. Many of the
important factors currently known to management that could cause actual resuits to differ materially from those in
forward-looking statements include such risks contained in our “Risk Factors” section.




PART 1

LIT] [T

Unless otherwise indicated, the terms “Hypercom,” “the Company,” “we,” “our” and “our business” refer to
Hypercom Corporation and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis.

Item 1. Business
General

Hypercom Corporation is one of the largest global providers of complete electronic payment soluttons and
value-added services at the point of transaction. Our vision is to be the world’s most recognized and trusted brand
for electronic transaction solutions through a suite of secur%a and certified, end-to-end electronic payment products
and software as well as through a wide range of support :mdF maintenance services. Our customers include domestic
and international financial institutions, electronic payment processors, retailers, independent sales organizations
(“ISOs”) and distributors. We also sell our products to companies in the hospitality, transportation, healthcare,
prepaid card and restaurant industries. Customers around the globe select us because of our proven leadership and
expertise in the global electronic payments industry, commitment to our customers’ success, continued support of
past and future technologies and the quality and reliability of our products and services. We deliver convenience and
value to businesses that require reliable, secure, high-speed and high-volume information/data transfers.

We believe our strength lies in our people, technology and a commitment to delivering excellent value to our
customers. Our products enable our customers to provide alwide range of payment solutions including credit cards,
signature and personal identification number (“PIN") based debit cards, contactless identification and radio
frequency identification (“RFID”), stored-value cards, angd signature capture and electronic benefits transfer. We
will continue to enhance our product and service portfolio, and make long-term investments in technology for the
evolving needs of our customers. We are positioned to meet the increased demands of the global marketplace and
capitalize on key geographic and vertical segment opportunities in order to achieve our goal of increasing our
market share and profitability.

Business History

We design, manufacture and sell a variety of electronic transaction terminals, peripheral devices, transaction
networking devices, transaction management systems, application software and information delivery services.
Additionally, we provide directly, or through qualified dontractors, support and related services which include
maintenance, 24/7 management and monitoring of customer networks, online reports, on-site technology assess-
ments, network training, and design and implementation!

Founded in 1978, in Australia, our operations were primarily focused on Asia/Pacific markets until 1987, when
we expanded our operations into the United States, and llater into South America, Europe, the Middle East and
Central America. We reincorporated in 1996 under the laws of Delaware and shoertly thereafter, through a series of
corporate restructurings, became a U.S. holding company for the Australian corporation and its subsidiaries. In
1997, we completed an initial public offering of our common stock, which is listed on the New York Stock
Exchange under the symbol “HYC.”

With worldwide headquarters in Phoenix, Arizona, we market our products in more than 100 countries through
a global network of sales, service and development offices. Our main regional sales headquarters are located in
Australia, Brazil, China, Mexico and the United Kingdom.

Electronic Payment Industry

Over the past several decades, consumers worldwide have increasingly utilized card-based payment methods,
such as credit, debit, and gift cards, to replace checks and cash. Card-based payments require the use of a point of
sale (“POS™) terminal capable of reading a cardholder’s adcount information from the card’s magnetic stripe or chip
and combining this information with the amount of the‘ sale. The terminal electronically captures and securely
transmits this transaction information over a communications network to an authorized computer data center and
then displays the returned approval or denial response.




The structure of the electronic payments industry is best described by examining the entities involved and their
relationship to one another. Card associations, like Visa and MasterCard, license their “brand” to card issuers, such
as banks, and also define the standards that POS terminals must meet to be certified for use in their respective
networks. Transaction acquirers and their agents sign up merchants, install POS terminal equipment, capture the
transaction data, and route it through the credit or debit card network to obtain transaction approval. Payment
processors charge an interchange fee to authorize the customers’ transactions, providing a tally of these transactions
to merchants and transfer funds to merchants to cover card purchases. Card issuers provide consumers with the
payment card and settle their accounts. Equipment manufacturers make the terminal hardware and software and, in
our case, also network equipment upon which high-performance and secure payment processing networks rely.
Transaction services providers facilitate the delivery of the transaction data between merchants and payment
processors. This structure may vary in each geographic region or country where multiple functions may be
performed by a single entity such as a bank.

Card associations, bank card issuers, transaction acquirers and payment processors are differentiating their
offerings, in part, by offering value-added applications and incorporating innovative acceptance technologies
including contactless, biometrics and flexible connectivity options like wired and wireless internet protocol
technologies. As a result, electronic payment systems that can run multiple value-added applications and incor-
porate emerging technologies are becoming increasingly important in today’s market.

Payment systems require an exceptionally high level of reliability and security, as even an apparently small
system failure or a security breach can have significant consequences. The electronic payment industry operates in a
secure environment of dedicated systems, applications, specialized hardware products and access networks. The
industry will continue to evolve as the demands of the market and the rules that govern its standards and security
change rapidly.

Market Concentration and Barriers to Entry

The POS terminal market is highly concentrated with the top three POS terminal manufacturers accounting for
the majority of terminals shipped. The remaining portion of the market is spread among approximately 30
manufacturers who compete on either a regional or local country basis, within specific market segments or with a
limited range of products and services. See “Competition” below in this Item 1.

We believe the following market constraints are barriers to entry and may restrict future growth for
manufacturers in our industry:

» Price. Pricing is a significant consideration in our customers’ purchase decisions. Consequently, terminal
manufacturers have been increasingly challenged to deliver products and services that target critical
specifications at competitive price points.

* Scale. The design, manufacture and distribution of POS terminals on a global basis requires a significant
investment in development, manufacturing and distribution resources. As a result, smaller or regional
manufacturers may have limited ability to compete with larger manufacturers who can spread costs on a
broader basis at higher volumes.

+ Certification Standards and Costs.  All payment solutions must be certified with card associations,
financial institutions and payment processors. Certification standards are constantly changing and the
certification process can be a lengthy and expensive undertaking. Many terminal manufacturers in the
industry lack the relationships, knowledge and experience necessary to obtain these certifications quickly
and cost-effectively, thereby limiting or delaying their time to market and overall competitiveness.

+ Commitment to Future Technologies. New standards, regulations and certifications in the electronic
payment industry require terminal manufacturers to continually develop new technologies that enhance the
performance and profitability of both customers and end-users. This commitment requires significant annual
investment in research and development.

« Global Presence. Large customers may prefer terminal manufacturers that have a worldwide presence
with the ability to provide services and support in many geographic regions. Smaller or regional
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manufacturers may be competitive in their niche,
equipment, services and timely support on a global

put they may not be able to provide cost-effective
scale.

Market Growth Drivers

The following are a number of factors that have contributed to recent growth in our industry and we believe will
continue to do so in the near future:

e Security and Interoperability Standards. New industry security and interoperability standards are driving
recertification and replacement of electronic payment systems, particularly in Europe and the U.S. In order
to offer electronic payment systems that connect to payment networks, electronic payment system providers
must certify their products and services with card assoCiations, financial institutions and payment processors
as well as comply with government and telecommunpication company regulations. The major card asso-
ciations have introduced new security standards to dddress the continually growing need for transaction
security. The two major security initiatives in the i'ndustry are EMV and PCI. EMV is a set of global
specifications for cards, terminals, and applications dési gned to ensure interoperability between smart cards
and electronic payment systems on a global basis, incTeuse functionality of electronic payment systems and
reduce fraud. The move to comply with EMV specifications should significantly promote terminal
replacement, particularly in regions such as Europe,|Asia/Pacific, and Central and South America where
EMYV implementation conversion dates have been established. Visa International and MasterCard Interna-
tional recently cooperated on the development and telease of the Payment Card Industry {*PCI”) spec-
ification and test methods for the certification of electronic payment systems for secure debit transactions.
This new set of standards supersedes previous standards separately issued by Visa and MasterCard and will
drive additional terminal replacement. In the U.S., payment processors have two levels of certification,
referred to as Class A and Class B. Class B certification ensures that an electronic payment system adheres to
the payment processor’s basic functional and netwc%rk requirements. Class A certification adds another
stipulation that the payment processor will support the electronic payment system on its internal help desk
systems. Obtaining these certifications can be costly|and time intensive and is required by U.S. payment
processors. Electronic payment systems must also comply with evolving country-specific security regu-
lations. Countries such as Australia, Canada, Germany, the Netherlands, New Zealand, Singapore, Sweden
and Switzerland have particularly stringent and specific security standards. Electronic payment systems also
must comply with recommendations of quasi-regulatory authorities and standard-setting committees, which
address, among other things, fraud prevention, pr?cessing protocols and technologies utilized. New
standards are continually being adopted as a result of worldwide fraud prevention initiatives, increasing

the need for system compatibility and new develop
requirements will provide an opportunity for continy
certified electronic payment systems.

Broadband & Internet Protocol. Internet Protocol
transaction data at a lower cost, enabling more advang
point of sale. Major telecommunications carriers h
lowered fees to allow more merchants to utilize IP

ments in technology. These complex and evolving
10us replacement of outdated equipment with newly

(“IP”) connectivity provides faster transmission of
ed payment and other value-added applications at the
ave expanded their communications networks and
networks cost effectively. The faster processing and

lower costs associated with IP connectivity have opened new markets for electronic payment systems, many

of which have previously been primarily cash-only in

Contactless.
emerging technology and rapidly gaining acceptance.
waiting times and eliminate the need for paper signa

‘dustries such as quick service restaurants (“QSRs”).

Contactless technology creates a convenient way to pay for goods and services. It is an

It can deliver extremely fast transaction times, reduce
fures and receipts. It is especially suitable for access

control and use in employee cafeterias, QSRs, gas sT\tions and public transit systems.

Wireless.

Wireless electronic payment solutions are being developed to increase transaction efficiency and

mobility. Wireless terminals can provide consumers with additional security by allowing them to maintain

contrel of their payment card at all times. Additionally

be lower than that of wired terminals in regions bu

Europe and Asia/Pacific. It also enables terminal d
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landline telecommunications infrastructure. We provide IP, Code-Division Multiple Access (“CDMA™),
General Packet Radio Service (“GPRS™), Bluetooth and wi-fi connectivity across our range of wireless
products.

* Debir.  Debit is the dominant payment instrument in most international markets and is rapidly growing in
the U.S. Debit cards allow banks to reach a wider population of potential cardholders, thereby increasing the
number of transactions. The cost of a debit transaction is generally fower than that of a credit transaction and
combined with PIN-based security or biometric technology, provides a solution to reduce high rates of fraud.
As a consequence, electronic payment is now an affordable and convenient option in markets lacking a
significant consumer credit base as well as for small ticket or lower margin merchants.

* Emerging Regions and Market Segments.  In the U.S. and Europe, consumer segments such as QSRs and
unattended/self service have started using IP POS terminal devices. These lesser penetrated vertical markets
represent a significant opportunity for us, as do geographies such as Brazil, China, Eastern Europe, India,
Mexico and Russia, who are experiencing rapid growth in the usage of card-based payments. In China, Visa
and MasterCard purchase volume increased 68% from 2003 to 2004, where only 3% of merchants currently
have POS terminals, according to a MasterCard International survey. The increasing adoption of electronic
payments in these regions is driven primarily by strong economic growth, improving telecommunications
infrastructure development, strong support from governments seeking to increase sales tax collection, and
the dramatic increase of wireless networks for voice and data communications.

o Multiple Applications. In addition to payment, terminals have the capability to perform concurrent
applications like loyalty, stored value, on-screen advertising, electronic signature capture, age identification,
benefits authorization and transfer. The secure integration of these applications along with payment
processing provides a comprehensive solution that allows merchants a means of competitive differentiation,
revenue enhancement and cost reduction.

« Non-Traditional Applications.  The government sector, particularly in the U.S., is a significant opportunity
for terminal manufacturers. Initiatives such as identity verification, check imaging/conversion, electronic
benefit transfer programs, and the U.S. military’s payment programs are all potential drivers of terminal
deployment. Additionally, electronic transaction terminals and transaction services technology can be
utilized in the healthcare sector to provide fast and secure transmission of health benefits eligibility,
authorization and payment.

Competition

The electronic payments industry is intensely competitive and subject to an increasing rate of rapid tech-
nological change, evolving customer requirements and changing business models. Despite the previously discussed
barriers to entry, the rapid pace of technological change creates new opportunities for existing competitors and
start-ups and may render existing technologies less valuable. Customer requirements and preferences continually
change as new technologies emerge or become less expensive, and as concerns such as security and privacy rise to
new levels.

We face competition from well-established companies and entities with differing approaches to the market.
Our principal direct global competitors are Ingenico, a French company, and VeriFone Holdings, Inc., a U.S, com-
pany, both of which are publicly-held companies. Other competitors include MICROS Systems, Inc., NCR
Corporation, Radiant Systems, Inc., SAGEM Monetal and Gemalto N.V. In any particular market, we may aiso find
ourselves in competition with local or regional manufacturers.

In our multi-lane segment (department stores, grocery stores, QSRs and discount merchants), in addition to the
aforementioned global competitors, there are other vendors with whom we compete such as Hand Held Products, Inc.
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Competitive Strategy

relationships into an end-to-end comprehensive portfolio of products and services that drives merchant revenues

Our strategy is to distinguish ourselves by combinir operational excellence, technology and customer
and reduces their total cost of product ownership. Key elements of our competitive strategy include:

o Further Penetrate Existing Market Segments. We plan to continue promoting and marketing the func-
tionality of our product portfolio to address the specifit needs of key vertical markets. We intend to continue
to focus on these attractive electronic transaction markets, as well as increase our penetration of markets
such as automatic teller machines (“ATMs™), Electronic Benefit Transfer (“EBT”), Medical EBT and
unattended and integrated kiosks. In planning to maintain our leadership in the independent retail segment,
we have further segmented our products to target [both the high-end and low-end segments, through
acceptance of magnetic and smart cards, support of ¢redit, debit, check, EBT and a full range of prepaid
products, including gift cards and loyalty programs, among others. OQur products are easily integrated with a
full range of optional internal or external devices, including secure PIN pads, check imaging equipment,
barcode readers, contactless and RFID readers, and biometric devices. Our secure PIN pads support credit
and debit transactions, as well as a wide range of ap llications that are either built into electronic payment
systems or connect Lo electronic cash registers (“ECRs™) and other electronic payment systems.

« Capitalize on Demand for Wireless Transactions. |We plan to accommodate the growing demand for
reliable, secure, convenient and cost-efficient wireless devices. Potential users of this technology include
mobile merchants such as taxi and delivery drivers, in-flight airline service providers, stadium event
operators, off-site services and pay-at-table restaurants. These merchants are looking for a POS terminal that
utilizes the convenience of wireless communication technologies and the security of being able to receive
real-time authorizations with the reliability of a wired terminal. Simultaneously, we are aggressively
transitioning into the consumer transaction market by providing processing alternatives like stored value and
prepaid replenishment services for the transportation! sector and electronic wallet technology as an alter-
native to cash payments.

* Capitalize on Terminalization Requirements of Emerging Geographic Regions. We plan to continue
seeking opportunities to expand global market share by leveraging our product portfolio and distribution
channels in emerging, high-growth regions in Europe, Asia/Pacific and Latin America. In addition to
expanding into new geographic markets, we will benefit from a replacement cycle that is ongoing in various
geographic regions for a variety of reasons, incluqling valued-added technologies (signature capture,
contactless, multi-application); new security standards (EMV and PCl); and newer communications tech-
nologies (wireless and 1P connectivity).

« Focus on Market-Driven Product Development. We plan to continue concentrating our research and
devetopment resources on new products and services Lt‘gat address the current and near future requirements of
our customers and end-users. We plan to focus our development efforts in the following areas: enhanced

security at both the terminal and transaction level; advanced communications technologies such as

[P-enabled and wireless terminals; multiple-applicat
vertical markets such as unattended/integrated kios
customers to ensure our products meet their needs and
timely and cost-effective manner.

on; contactless technologies; and products for new
ks and ATMs. We will continue to work with our
technical requirements and are brought to market in a

Improve Total Cost Structure. We plan to continue reducing our cost of manufacturing, research and

development, selling, services delivery, general, and

administrative functions to enhance our profitability

and competitiveness. We intend to further reduce our product costs through design and process improve-
ments, reductions in component costs, and more efficient inventory management and distribution. We will
continue to maintain a market-centric approach to our research and product development activities, thus
ensuring that our efforts are directed at commercially feasible opportunities. As our current infrastructure is
suitable to our current and foreseeable business requirements, our incremental investment requirements
should be nominal and our existing cost structure is| expected to be significantly leverageable at higher
volumes of revenue. We continue to evaluate our sales channel infrastructure and will pursue alternate
channels where it makes economic sense to do so. We also intend to continue to refine our foreign exchange




hedging program and global tax strategy to minimize those costs and risks associated with international
operations.

* Continue to Pursue Recurring Revenue QOpportunities. 'We plan to further identify and pursue opportu-
nities that are complementary to our existing products to provide recurring revenue including expanding our
services business in Australia, Brazil and Mexico that provides deployment, help-desk, repair and other post-
sale services. We will continue to pursue similar opportunities that will help us enhance our primary business
of terminal manufacturing to a more diversified business model that includes both one-time and recurring
revenue streams.

* Consider Strategic Acquisitions. We may augment our growth by acquiring complementary businesses,
new products to enhance our core competencies, or new technologies to complement our research and
development activities. Any acquisition would be intended to broaden our suite of electronic payment
solutions, expand our presence in selected geographies, broaden our customer base, expand recurring
revenue opportunities or increase our penetration of selected channels and vertical markets.

Product Lines and Services

Qur products and services include electronic transaction terminals, peripheral devices, application software,
transaction networking devices, transaction management systems, information delivery services, and various
support services.

Terminals and Peripherals
QOur existing range of product offerings includes:

* Optimum — includes the L4100, 1.4200 and L4250, compact, high-performance signature capture and PIN
entry card payment terminals specifically designed for multitane retailers; the T4100, a powerful 32-bit
desktop terminal for true multi-application; the T2100, a handover desktop terminal specifically designed to
quickly perform EMV transactions; the M2100 and M4100, mobile terminals that leverage the latest in
wireless communication technologies; and the P2100, an EMV-compliant PIN pad for integrated retail
environments. The L4100, L.4200, L4250 and T4100 are RFID-ready terminals.

s T7Plus — includes a combination of features and functions for merchants who need a reliable, low-cost POS
terminal.

* Peripherals — includes printers, PIN pads, check readers, receipt capture devices, biometric, RFID ver-
ification devices and external modems. Our family of durable, high-security PIN pads and card acceptance
devices are designed for either indoor or outdoor use. The products include the $9, S9S and S9C, secure PIN
pads built for indoor use, and the S1200 and S1300, the outdoor components to our QSR drive-thru solution.

Transaction Networking Devices, Transaction Management Systems and Application Software

Products that interface with our POS terminal technology include our industry exclusive, unparalleled network
access controllers and gateway devices specifically designed to support the unique requirements of high volume/high
value transaction-based networks. Products in this family include the MegaNAC® 180 and 240, ATMConnect™ and
the IN-ract® family of Ethernet/Internet gateway devices. Every network application software program we produce
includes a management and control module that interacts with our HypercomView® management system to monitor
system operations. We also offer a complete portfolio of software applications for terminal operations, network device
operations, systems development and management.

Services

We are committed to providing a high level of service and support to our customers either directly, or through
our distributors or other third-party providers. We offer a wide range of support services that contribute to the
increased profitability of our customers and meet their individual needs. Qur service business is organized around
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three important market segments including asset management services, trusted transaction services and payment
solutions.

Asset Management Services — Our service organizations are focused on protecting our customer’s investment
in payment systems and principally provide deployment, hc]qI desk, repairs, on-site support, logistics and inventory
management services, as well as, payment systems supplies provisioning. Additionally, these entities manage
special projects such as software uptoads or terminal enhancement programs requested by our customers. Terms of
our service arrangements are set forth in separate service contracts ranging from one to three years, although
termination is allowed with appropriate advance notification.| Revenues under these contracts are recognized as we
perform the service.

*» NetSet Brazil, NetSet Chile and Hypercom de Mexigo — NetSet Brazil, NetSet Chile and Hypercom de
Mexico are highly capable service organizations that provide services to major banks, card associations and
other customers in our industry. NetSet Brazil is our la'rgest service organization, covering all of Brazil with
multiple service centers and service resources located throughout the country. We continually seek to expand
our service market share by increasing the deployed Ip()pu}:.ition of our terminals and product offerings in
Brazil, as well as servicing terminals manufactured by our competitors. Hypercom de Mexico and NetSet
Chile operate under a similar business model as NetSét Brazil and cover substantially all of their respective
countries.

» ACG Group — On February 8, 2007, we acquired the existing business and assets of ACG Group Pty Lid
and its associated entities in Australia to provide |asset management services to merchant locations
throughout Australia. We expect to leverage this investment and apply this service capability to opportu-
nities throughout the Asia/Pacific region.

o Pan-region Repair Services — Utilizing a new facility established in Sonora, Mexico, operating as NetSet
Americas Servicio Centro, we provide quality repair|services for in-warranty and out-of-warranty equip-
ment repairs to North American customers. During the first half of 2007, we are transitioning our existing
U.S. based repair operations to this new facility.

* Authorized Repair Facilities — In addition to our direct repair service offering, we selectively authorize
capable third-party repair facilities 1o service and repair Hypercom equipment through our Authorized
Repair Facility program. This program seeks to offer increased choices for repair service with our assurance
of repair service quality and cycle time for our custamers.

* Enhanced Warranty Solutions — QOur agreement Wi[hl The Warranty Group allows customers to purchase
enhanced warranty plans for select Hypercom POS telrminals and other devices. The plans will extend the
term protection of our standard warranty for a total coverage of up to five years.

Trusted Transaction Services — Our Trusted Transaction Services provide value-added data communication
and other value added services for transaction-based applications. These capabilities include such functionality as
protocol conversion, intelligent transaction routing and wehb-based, transaction-level reporting. As technologies
such as IP and wireless begin to take hold at the point of sale, this market will see a growing shift toward more
sophisticated applications. Trusted Transaction Services will provide a support infrastructure for our multi-
application operating systems to quickly and cost-effectively deliver transactions to diverse processing entities.
Early adopters include organizations involved in biometrics, health care, prepaid, micropayments, gift and loyalty.
Market penetration of these complex applications is expected to dramatically increase in coming years as the
consumer interaction can be transacted in several seconds with broadband connectivity, as compared to several
minutes over dial-up connection. We believe Trusted Transaction Services will continue to support our growth
beyond the payments industry into information delivery seglments.

Payment Solutions — We intend to expand our transaction software portfolio with PC-based payment
solutions, including support for PC-based retail POS systems, as well as establish the capability to serve the
hosted payment business. Our strategy is to increase our stream of recurring revenue by charging for enterprise
payment services.




-

» TPI Software, LLC — On December 14, 2006, we acquired the existing technology and assets of TPl
Software, LLC, a US-based software and enterprise payment solutions business, that expands our trans-
action software portfolio with PC-based payment solutions, including support for PC-based retail POS
systems. The acquisition of TPI Software, LLC is expected to broaden the Company’s customer base and
enables the generation of new revenue streams by addressing the technology requirements of, and rising
market interest in, a converged payment infrastructure that places electronic payment functionality on PC-
based cash registers.

Product Marketing

Our marketing organization has been significantly strengthened by the introduction of a global product
marketing group with product managers assigned to manage the life cycle of all new and legacy products. Our
marketing communications strategy, which coordinates key market messaging across regions, is directed from our
Phoenix, Arizona headquarters; however, each region develops programs to meet the requirements of local markets.
Components of our marketing program include product marketing, trade shows, news releases, editorial interviews,
industry analyst briefings, speaking platforms and engagements, training and technology seminars, sales collateral
and white papers, print advertising, articles and newsletters,

Sales and Distribution

Our major sales and marketing regions include North America, Central and South America, Europe, Middle
East and Africa ("EMEA™), and Asia/Pacific. In 2006, approximately 67.4% of our consolidated revenue came from
international sources. Our global customers include:

* Payment processors;

» Distributors/resellers;

*» Large retail chains and QSRs;
+ Financial institutions;

» ISOs; and

» Government entities.

Sales to specific customers in our industry can account for a significant portion of our revenue. For example,
First Data Corporation {which includes TASQ Technology) accounted for approximately 10.8% of our 2006
revenue. This same customer accounted for approximately 12.1% of our revenue in 2005. In 2006, our top five
customers accounted for 25.9% of our revenue compared to 31.6% in 2005.

We distribute and sell our products internationally primarily through financial institutions and distributors.
Domestically, we primarily distribute and sell our products through financial institutions, payment processors, retail
chains, 1SOs, distributors and resellers.

Some of our key sales attributes are:

* Global Presence. We are one of the largest worldwide providers of electronic payment system solutions
for use at the point of sale. We have developed a global network of sales, support and development centers.
We believe that our experience and global presence enable us to manufacture, market, distribute and service
our products more effectively, and in more markets than most of our competitors.

* Comprehensive Product Portfolio. 'We offer a full range of products and services that address the spectrum
of market requirements. Our product portfolio ranges from the low-cost, established and reliable T7 family
of terminals to the recently released, high-performance 32-bit Optimum family, Our terminals are further
complemented by a wide variety of peripherals that enhance their capabilities. Our services include
deployment, help-desk, repair and maintenance. We have major service centers in Brazil, Mexico, Chile,
Australia and the United Kingdom.
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« Low Toral Cost of Ownership. The total cost of o
implementation, application certification, repair and
support and focus on providing our customers withac
buy today, replace tomorrow strategy.

wnership includes the following costs: deployment,
laintenance and product obsolescence. We continue to
lear migration strategy for new technologies, versus a

Technology Adoption.  Our technological advances have continued to support industry adoption of value-
added features, such as electronic receipt capture, |smart cards, electronic signature capture, positive
identification and mutti-application. We offer network products to host such multi-application offerings.
Other technology innovations include IP and wireless connectivity, as well as RFID and contactless
acceptance. Qur engineering has consistently focuséd on quality and performance, including speed of
the transaction, number of and type of completed transactions, the speed of application download and the
user interface. Our modular design allows our customiers to only select the features that meet their specific
needs, thereby minimizing their costs and increasing their flexibility. We have reorganized our development

team to more rapidly develop, prototype, and release

Terminal Management and Networking Expertise.
and networking with a significant number of instal
managing not only our terminals, but those of our cd

Security Expertise. We are the industry leader in se
providing full EMV and PCI certification, regulatory
authentication, signature capture, 1D and biometric

new products to meet customer needs.

e are a leader in the fields of terminal management
ations of our POS network controllers worldwide,
mpetitors as well.

cure, state-of-the-art, network payment transactions
certifications, association certifications, contactless
authentication and enterprise security management,

ensuring both physical and logical high performance interfaces are secure and certified for use globally, by

both public telephony and mission critical computing

Research and Development

Our market-focused research and product development

technologies and applications for our products, as well as enhg
existing technologies and applications. We design and deve
appropriate, state of the art technologies from leading third p.

coordinated by global product marketing and follow a mana

sales, marketing, manufacturing and engineering teams. Qur
following:

*» Identification of the applicable market and developm

State of the art design and engineering;
Accelerated testing;
Quality assurance; and

Pilot production.

Processors.

activities concentrate on developing new products,
ncements and aggressive cost reduction measures for
lop all of our own products and incorporate, where
rty vendors. Development projects are evatuated and
gement review process that includes input from our
product development process generally involves the

Ent parameters;

Rapid development of engineering specifications, including target costs;

Through this process, we are able to assess the requiremelnts of individual customers and markets, and develop
products and platforms that address those needs globally. Bringing quality products to market in a timely manner is
the primary objective of all our product development initiatives.

QOur research and development activities are coordinated

through our Phoenix, Arizona headquarters. To serve

the needs of customers around the world, we “localize” many of our products to reflect local langwages and

conventions. Localizing a product may require modifying the

text. Each of cur regional geographic sales and marketing

provide customization and adapt products to meet the needs

user interface, altering dialog boxes and translating
units has in-region development resources that can
of customers in local markets. International devel-

opment groups are located in Australia, Brazil, China, Hclmg Kong, Hungary, Latvia, Mexico, Puerto Rico,

Singapore, Sweden and the United Kingdom.
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Our research and development expenses were $27.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, and
$27.6 million and $27.2 million for the years ending December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Manufacturing and Resource Procurement

Our primary manufacturing operations are located in Shenzhen, China. Our wholly-owned Chinese subsidiary
controls the supply chain, logistics, final assembly and final product testing, and uses a subcontractor for certain
subassembly processes. See “Item 1A — Risk Factors” for certain risks related to operating and conducting
business in China.

In addition to our Chinese manufacturing capacity, we outsource the manufacture of certain products to a
contract manufacturer in Europe and maintain capacity for final assembly in Brazil.

To control product costs, we centrally manage product documentation, procurement and material requirements
planning from our Phoenix, Arizona headquarters, utilizing an integrated enterprise system linking all of our
manufactering and design centers. Centralized management of the planning processes, combined with regional
procurement, enables us to ensure the quality and availability of our components. We continue to look for
opportunities to reduce the cost of existing products by working with our suppliers to seek more favorable pricing,
purchasing components in volume to achieve lower unit costs, and seeking greater efficiencies in product design.
Our product development and manufacturing organizations test our new products to ensure performance, quality
and regularory standards are met.

We rely on third-party suppliers for certain components of our POS payment systems and networking products.
We purchase directly from select suppliers or use distributors where flexibility is appropriate. Qur suppliers must
meet high standards of component quality and delivery performance. We generally have multiple sources for raw
materials, supplies and components, and are often able to acquire component parts and materials on a volume
discount basis.

Industry Standards and Government Regulations

Electronic payment system providers must certify products and services with card associations, financial
institutions and payment processors, as well as comply with government and telecommunications company
regulations. We are also subject to other domestic and international legal and regulatory requirements.

We comply with the following standards and requirements:

» Security Standards.  Security standards in our industry are promulgated largely by government, regional
bank associations and card associations. These standards ensure the integrity of the payment process and
protect the privacy of consumers using electronic transaction systems. New standards are continually being
adopted or proposed as a result of worldwide fraud prevention initiatives, increasing the need for new
security solutions and technologies. We have developed a security architecture that incorporates physical,
electronic, operating system, encryption and application-level security measures in order to remain com-
pliant with the growing variety of international requirements. This architecture is particularly successful in
countries that have stringent and specific security requirements.

*» EMVand PCI Standards. EMY standards define a set of requirements to ensure interoperability between
chip cards and terminals on a global basis, regardless of the manufacturer, the financial institution, or where
the card is used or issued. Specific certifications are required for all electronic payment systems and their
application software. PCl is a set of specification and test methods for the certification of electronic payment
systemns for secure debit transactions. We obtain EMV/PCI certifications where required.

* Payment Processor/Financial Institution Requirements. Inthe U.S., we are required to certify our products
with payment processors. We actively perform the essential Class B and Class A product certifications with
all the major payment processors in the U.S. and international markets. The Class B certification process
pertains to successful testing of the integrity of the host (interface) message formats with the payment
processor’s requirements and specifications. Once the Class B certification process is completed, the
payment processor may elect o take the software application and the hardware for additional in-house

12




testing and support. Class A certification {which may take up to 12 months or more} includes more intensive
functional and user-acceptance testing in order to eLtablish their help-desk infrastructure. Class A Certi-
fication enables payment processors to provide direqt support, deploy and promote the new products with
their merchant base and sales force. We have significant experience in attaining these critical payment
processor certifications and have a large portfolio|of Class A certifications with major U.S. payment
processors. We also have obtained certifications from international financial institutions and payment
processors so that our products can be used on their specific networks.

» WEEE and RoHS Directives. In the European Umon we are subject to the Waste Electrical and Electronic
Equipment (“WEEE") Directive and the Restriction on Hazardous Substances (“RoHS”) Directive. The
WEEE Directive requires producers of electrical anerIectronic equipment to label all covered products and
also establish collection, reatment, and recovery syslems for their electric and ¢lectronic waste. The RoHS
Directive restricts the use of certain material in physical devices that include our solutions and/or require
active steps to promote the recycling of materials.

s Telecommunications Regulatory Authority and Carrier Requiremnents. Our products must comply with
government regulations, including those imposed by the Federal Communicatiens Commission (“FCC”)
and similar telecommunications authorities worldwide regarding emissions, hazardous materials, radiation,
safety and connections with telephone lines and radio networks. Our products must also comply with
recommendations of quasi-regulatory authorities and of standards- setting committees. Our products have
been certified as compliant with a large number of national requirements, including those of the FCC and
Underwriters Laboratory in the U.S., and similar requirements in other countries. Wireless network carriers
have standards with which systems connected to their networks must comply. In addition to national
requirements for telecommunications systems, many|wireless network carriers have their own certification
process for devices to be used on their networks.

Proprietary Rights

We rely upon patents, copyrights, trademarks and trade secret laws to establish and maintain our proprietary
rights in our technology and products. We currently hold patents issued in the U.S. and several other countries
relating to POS terminal products. We also have a number of pending U.S. and foreign patent applications refating
to our POS terminal products and networking products.

We currently hold trademark registrations in the U.S. and numerous other countries for the “Hypercom™ mark
and logo. In addition, we have several other U.S. and foreign trademark registrations and pending U.S. and foreign
trademark applications relating to our products and services.

We embed copyright notices in our software products advising all users that we own the rights to the software.
We also place copyright notices on documentation related| 1o these products. We routinely rely on contractual
arrangements to protect our proprietary software programs, including written contracts prior to product distribution
or through the use of shrink-wrap license agreements. We typically do not obtain federal copyright registrations for
our software.

Employees

As of March 8, 2007, we employed approximately 1,358 people on a full-time basis, 344 of which are located
in the U.S., with the remaining 1,014 located internationally, as set forth in the following table:

% International Total
Sales, Marketing and Operations . .. ........ ... 0. oo oo 76 54 130
Development ... ... .. e 104 138 242
Service OPerations ... ....... ... it i 12 292 304
Manufacturing .. . ... .. 83 181 264
Finance and Administration. . . ... .......... ... J.... e _69 349 418
Total Employees . .. ........ ... ... ... .. . ] i, 344 1,014 1,358




We believe that we have an excellent relationship with our employees. Competition for employees is intense in
the electronic payments industry. We believe we have been successful in our efforts to recruit qualified employees,
but we cannot guarantee that we will continue to be as successful in the future. Certain of our employees at our
facilities in Brazil and Sweden are subject to collective bargaining agreements,

Available Information

Our principal executive offices are located at 2851 West Kathleen Road, Phoenix, Arizona, 85053, and our
telephone number is (602) 504-5000. Our website is located at www.hypercom.com. We make available free of
charge, through our website, our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on
Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports, as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file or furnish
such material to the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). The information found on our website is not
part of this or any other report we file or furnish to the SEC.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

The risks set forth below may adversely affect our business, financial condition and operating results and cause
actual results to differ materially from the results contemplated by the forward-looking statements contained in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K or elsewhere in our SEC filings. In addition to the risks set forth below, and the factors
affecting specific business operations identified elsewhere in this Annual Report on 10-K, there may also be risks of
which we are currently unaware, or that we currently regard as immaterial based on the information available to us,
that later may prove to be material.

Risks Related To Our Business

We have incurred significant losses in the past and our results of operations have and may continue to
vary from guarter to quarter, impacted in particular by business reviews performed by management. If
our financial performance is not in line with investor expectations, the price of our common stock will
suffer and our access to future capital may be impaired.

We had a net loss from continuing operations of $30.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 and a net
loss from continuing operations of $12.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, If the results of our
continuing efforts to improve profitability, increase our cash flow and strengthen our balance sheet do not meet or
exceed the expectations of securities analysts or investors, the price of our common stock will suffer.

Further, given the variability in our revenues, our quarterly financial results have fluctuated significantly in the
past and are likely to do so in the future. Accordingly, we believe that period-to-period comparisons of our results of
operations may be misleading and not indicative of future performance. If our quarterly financial results fall below
the expectations of securities analysts or investors, the price of our common stock may suffer.

Quarterly revenue and operating results can vary, depending on a number of factors, including:

» variations in product mix, timing and size of fulfilled orders as a result of customer deferral of purchases
and/or delays in the delivery of our products and services;

* accomplishment of certain performance parameters embedded in our service level agreements;
» market demand for new product offerings;

= delays in the delivery of our products and services;

« the type, timing and size of orders and shipments;

+ product returns and warranty claims;

« variations in product mix and cost during any period,

« development of new relationships and maintenance and enhancement of existing relationships with
customers and strategic partners;
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s deferral of customer contracts in anticipation of product or service enhancements;

+ incremental costs incurred as a result of product quality andfor performance issues:
» write-off of doubtful accounts receivable;
* inventory obsolescence and write-downs related to|product life cycles;
= write-offs of research and development expenses;

« variations in operating expenses, including research and development, selling, and general and adminis-
trative expenses;

+ lease portfolio risk adjustments and loss provisions;
 restructuring activities;

» employment and severance agreement charges;
* foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations;

= availability and cost of financing;

» variations in income tax as a function of income recognition by tax jurisdiction; and
» industry and economic conditions, including competition, industry standards, product certification require-
ments, trade restrictions and other regulations.
The loss of ene or more of our key customers could significantly reduce our revenues and profits.

We have derived, and believe that we may continue to derive, a significant portion of our revenues from a
limited number of large customers. For the fiscal year ended{December 31, 2006, our largest customer accounted for
10.8% of our revenue, and our five largest customers accounted for 25.9% of our revenue. In addition, our largest
customer does substantial business with some of our most significant competitors. Qur customers may buy less of
our products or services depending on their own technological developments, end-user demand for our products and
internal budget cycles. A major customer in one year may hot purchase any of our products or services in another
year, which may negatively affect our financial performance. If any of our large customers significantly reduces or
delays purchases from us or if we are required to sell proddcts to them at reduced prices or unfavorable terms, our
revenue and results of operations could be materially advergely affected. See “Business — Sales and Distribution”
for more information on our customer base,

Our products may contain defects that may be difficult or even impossible to correct. Product defects
could result in lost sales, additional costs and customer erosion.

We offer technologically complex products which, \Jhen first introduced or released in new versions, may
contain software or hardware defects that are difficult to detect and correct. The existence of defects and delays in
correcting them could result in negative consequences, including the following:

+ delays in shipping products;

+ cancellation of orders;

» additional warranty expense;

= delays in the collection of receivables;

= product returns;

« the loss of market acceptance of our products;
*» claims against us;

» diversion of research and development resources from new product development; and
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* inventory write-downs.

Even though we test all of our products, defects may continue to be identified after products are shipped. In
past periods, we have experienced various issues in connection with product launches, including the need to rework
certain products and stabilize product designs. Correcting defects can be a time-consuming, difficult and expensive
task. Software errors may take several moaths to correct, and hardware errors may take even longer.

We may accumulate excess or obsolete inventory that could result in unanticipated price reductions and
write downs and adversely affect our financial results.

Managing the proper inventory levels for components and finished products is challenging. In formulating our
product offerings, we have focused our efforts on providing to our customers products with greater capability and
functionality, which requires us to develop and incorporate the most current technologies in our products. This
approach tends to increase the risk of obsolescence for products and components we hold in inventory and may
compound the difficulties posed by other factors that affect our inventory levels, including the following:

* the need to maintain significant inventory of components that are in limited supply;
= buying components in bulk for the best pricing:

* responding to the unpredictable demand for products;

+ responding to customer requests for short lead-time delivery schedules;

* failure of customers to take delivery of ordered products; and

» product returns.

If we accumulate excess or obsolete inventory, price reductions and inventory write-downs may result, which
could adversely affect our results of operation and financial condition.

Security is vital to our customers and therefore breaches in the security of transactions involving our
products or services could adversely affect our reputation and results of operations.

Protection against fraud is of key importance to the purchasers and end-users of our solutions. We incorporate
security features, such as encryption software and secure hardware, into our solutions to protect against fraud in
electronic payment transactions and to ensure the privacy and integrity of consumer data. Our solutions may be
vulnerable to breaches in security due to defects in the security mechanisms, the operating system and applications
or the hardware platform. Security vulnerabilities could jeopardize the security of information transmitted or stored
using our solutions. In general, liability associated with security breaches of a certified electronic payment system
belongs to the institution that acquires the financial transaction. We have not experienced any material security
breaches affecting our business. However, if the security of our solutions is compromised, our reputation and
marketplace acceptance of our solutions will be adversely affected, which would adversely affect our results of
operations, and subject us to potential liability.

If we are unable to adequately protect our proprietary technology, our competitors may develop products
substantially similar to our products and use similar technologies, which may result in the loss of
customers.

We rely on patent, copyright, trademark and trade secret laws, as well as confidentiality, licensing and other
contractual arrangements, to establish and protect the proprietary aspects of our products. Our efforts may result in
only limited protection, and our competitors may develop, market and sell products substantially equivalent to our
products, or utilize technologies similar o those used by us. If we are unable to adequately protect our proprietary
technology, these third parties may be able to compete more effectively against us, which could result in the loss of
customers and adversely atfect our business.

In addition, the legal systems of many foreign countries do not protect or honor intellectual property rights to
the same extent as the legal system of the United States. For example, in China, the legal system in general, and the
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intellectual property regime in particular, is still in the development stage. It may be very difficult, time-consuming
and costly for us to attempt to enforce our intellectual property rights in such jurisdictions.

Our products and other proprietary rights may infringe on the proprietary rights of third parties, which
may expose us to claims and litigation.

Although we believe that our products do not infringe on any third party’s patents, from time to time we have
become involved in claims and litigation involving patents or proprietary rights. Patent and proprietary rights
litigation entails substantial legal and other costs, and diverts the attention of our management resources, There can
be no assurance that we will have the necessary financial Lmd other resources required to appropriately defend or
prosecute our rights in connection with any such litigation.

In the past we have received third-party claims of infringement and may receive additional claims of
infringement in the future. To date, such activities have not had a material adverse effect on our business and we
have either prevailed in litigation, obtained a license on commercially acceptable terms or otherwise been able to
modify any affected products or technology. However, there can be no assurance that we will continue to prevail in
any such actions, or that any license required under any s ch patent or other intellectual property would be made
available on commercially acceptable terms, if at all, or that we would be able to successfully modify our products
or technology to negate claims of infringement.

A disruption in our manufacturing capabilities or those of our third-party manufacturers or suppliers
would negatively impact our ability to meet customerLrequirements.

We currently manufacture the majority of our products at our facility in Shenzhen, China but also rely on third-
party manufacturers to manufacture and assemble certain of our products. We expect to increase our reliance on
third party manufacturers in the future. We also depend upon third-party suppliers to deliver components that are
free from defects, competitive in functionality and cost, Eﬂd in compliance with our specifications and delivery
schedules. Since we generally do not maintain large inventories of our products or components, any termination of,
or significant disruption in, our manufacturing capability or our refationship with our third-party manufacturers or

suppliers may prevent us from filling customer orders inja timely manner.

We have occasionally experienced, and may in the future experience, delays in delivery of products and
delivery of products of inferior quality from third-party manufacturers. Although alternate manufacturers and
suppliers are generally available to produce our products and product components, the number of manufacturers or
suppliers of some of our products and components is limited, and qualifying a replacement manufacturer or supplier
could take several months. In addition, our use of third-p:j‘*ly manufacturers reduces our direct control over product
quality, manufacturing timing, yields and costs. Disruption of the manufacture or supply of our products and
components, or a third-party manufacturer’s or supplier’sjfai]ure to remain competitive in functionality, quality or
price, could delay or interrupt our ability to manufacture or deliver our products to customers on a timely basis,
which would have a material adverse effect on our busieljless and financial performance.

International operations pose additional challenges de risks that if not properly managed could
adversely affect our financial results.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, we derived approximately 67.4% of our total revenues outside of the
United States, principally in Central and South America and Europe. We expect that international sales will
continue to account for a significant percentage of our net income in the foreseeable future. In addition,
substantially all of our manufacturing operations are located outside of the United States. Accordingly, we face
numerous risks associated with conducting international operations, any of which could negatively affect our results
of operations and financial condition. These risks include the following:

» changes in foreign country regulatory requirements;
« various import/export restrictions and the availability of required import/export licenses;

» imposition of foreign tariffs and other trade barriers;
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+ political and economic instability;
« foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations;
= inability to secure commercial relationships to help establish our presence in international markets;

« inability to hire and train personnel capable of marketing, installing and integrating our products and
services, supporting customers and managing operations in foreign countries;

* building our brand name and awareness of our products and services among foreign customers;

* competition from existing market participants that may have a longer history in and greater familiarity with
the foreign markets we enter;

+ extended payment terms and the ability to collect accounts receivable;
* the ability to repatriate funds;
» complicated tax and regulatory schemes where failure to comply may result in fines, penalties or litigation;

+ complications associated with enforcing legal agreements in certain foreign couantries, including Brazil,
China and in developing countries; and

« availability of qualified and affordable staff with which to manage our foreign operations.

Additionally, we are subject to the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, which may place us at a competitive
disadvantage to foreign companies that are not subject to similar regulations.

We are subject to a complex system of domestic and foreign taxation and unanticipated changes in our
tax rates or exposure to additional tax liabilities could affect our profitability.

We are subject to income taxes in both the United States and various foreign jurisdictions, and our domestic
and international rax liabilities are subject to the allocation of expenses in different jurisdictions. Qur effective tax
rates could be adversely affected by changes in the mix of earnings in countries with differing statutory tax rates, in
the valuation of deferred tax assets and liabilities or in tax laws, or by material audit assessments, which could affect
our profitability. In addition, the amount of tax we pay is subject to ongoing audits in various jurisdictions, and a
material assessment by a governing tax authority could affect our profitability. Further tax law changes in
jurisdictions in which we conduct business could materially affect our profitability.

We are responsible for charging end customers certain taxes in numerous international jurisdictions. In the
ordinary course of our business, there are many transactions and calculations where the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. ln the future, we may come under audit which could result in changes to the estimates. We believe that
we maintain adequate tax reserves to offset potential liabilities that may arise upon audit. Although we believe our
tax estimates and associated reserves are reasonable, the final determination of tax audits and any related litigation
could be materially different than the amounts established for tax contingencies. To the extent that such estimates
ultimately prove to be inaccurate, the associated reserves would be adjusted resulting in our recording a benefit or
expense in the period a final determination was made.

Fluctuations in currency exchange rates may adversely affect our financial results.

A substantial part of our business consists of sales to international customers. A portion of revenues and
expenses related to our international operations are denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar. Adverse
currency exchange rate fluctuations could have a material impact on our financial results in the future. In addition,
our balance sheet reflects non-U.S. dollar denominated assets and liabilities which can be adversely affected by
fluctuations in currency exchange rates. We have entered into foreign currency forward contracts intended to hedge
our exposure to adverse fluctuations in exchange rates. Nevertheless, these hedging arrangements may not always
be effective, particularly in the event of imprecise forecasts of non-U.S. denominated assets and liabilities. Further,
we are not able to hedge against our entire foreign currency risk. Accordingly, an adverse movement in exchange
rates could have a material adverse effect on our financial results. In the year ended December 31, 2006, we incurred
foreign currency expense of approximately $0.7 million, net of foreign currency transaction gains or losses.
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Adverse resolution of litigation may adversely affect our business or financial results.

We are party to litigation in the normal course of our business. Litigation can be expensive, lengthy and
disruptive to normal business operations. Moreover, the results of complex legal proceedings are difficult to predict.
An unfavorable resolution of a particular lawsuit could ha\)p a material adverse effect on our business, operating
results, or financial condition. See Item 3. “Legal Proceedings™ below for more information on our litigation.

Our future success is substantially dependent on the continued service of our senior management and
other key employees.

Our future success is substantially dependent on the continued service of our senior management and other key
employees. The loss of the services of our senior management or other key employees could make it more difficult
to successfully operate our business and achieve our business goals.

We also may be unable to retain existing management, sales personnel and development and engineering
personnel that are critical to our success, which could resylt in harm to key customer relationships, loss of key
information, expertise or know-how and unanticipated recruitment and training costs.

We have in the past and may in the future make acquitions and strategic investments, which involve
numerous risks. We may not be able to address these risks without substantial expense, delay or other
operational or financial problems.

ted businesses, technologies, products or services in the
ncluding:

We may acquire or make substantial investments in rela
future. Acquisitions or investments involve various risks, i

the inability to assimilate the technologies, operation
product;

5 and personnel of the acquired business, technology or

the potential disruption of our existing business, including the diversion of management attention and the

redeployment of resources;
the loss of customers;
the possibility of our entering markets in which we have limited prior experience;

the loss of key employees of an acquired business; jand

the inability to obtain the desired strategic and financial benefits from the acquisition or investment.

Future acquisitions and investments could also result in substantial cash expenditures, potentially dilutive
issuance of our equity securities, our incurring of additignal debt and contingent liabilities, and amortization
expenses related to intangible assets that could adversely affect our business, operating results and financial
condition.

Shipments of electronic payment systems may be delayed by factors outside of our control, which can
harm our relationships with our customers.

The shipment of payment systems requires us or ouf
customs or other government certifications and approvals, a
systems in transit, Failure to satisfy these requirements, and
delays in the delivery of our solutions to our customers w

While we believe we comply with environmental laws
risks associated with them.

We are subject to other legal and regulatory require

manufacturers, distributors or other agents to obtain
nd, on occasion, to submit to physical inspection of our
the process of trying to satisfy them, can lead to lengthy
hich may harm our relationships with our customers.

and regulations, we are still exposed to potential

ments, including the WEEE Directive and the RoHS

Directive. The RoHS Directive sets a framework for producers’ obligations in relation to manufacturing (including
the amounts of named hazardous substances contained in p[loducts sold} and the WEEE Directive sets a framework

for treatment, labeling, recovery and recycling of electronid
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to alter the manufacturing of the physical devices that include our solutions and/or require active steps to promote
recycling of materials and components. Although the WEEE Directive has been adopted by the European
Commission, naticnal legislation to implement the directive is still pending in the member states of the European
Unton. In addition, similar legislation could be enacted in other jurisdictions, including in the United States. If we
do not comply with the RoHS Directive and the WEEE Directive, we may suffer a loss of revenue, be unable to sell
in certain markets or countries, be subject to penalties and enforced fees and/or suffer a competitive disadvantage.
Furthermore, the costs to comply with the RoHS Directive and the WEEE Directive, or with current and future
environmental and worker health and safety laws, may have a material adverse effect on our results of operation,
expenses and financial conditton.

Force majeure events, such as terrorist attacks, other acts of vielence or war, and health epidemics may
adversely affect the markets in which our common stock trades, our ability to operate and our financial
results.

Domestic and international terrorist attacks, wars and regional conflicts may cause instability in the global
financial markets, and contribute to downward pressure on securities prices of United States publicly traded
companies, such as us. Future terrorist attacks or armed conflicts, and epidemics, such as SARS, influenza or bird
flu, could result in economic, political and other uncertainties that could adversely affect our revenues and operating
results, and depress securities prices, including the price of our common stock. Such events may disrupt the global
insurance and reinsurance industries, and adversely affect our ability to obtain or renew certain insurance policies,
and may result in significantly increased costs of maintaining insurance coverage. Further, we may not be able to
obtain insurance coverage at historical or acceptable levels for all of our facilities. Future terrorist attacks, armed
conflicts and epidemics could affect our domestic and international sales, disrupt our supply chain and impair our
ability to produce and deliver our products. Such events could directly impact our physicat facilities or those of our
suppliers or customers in the United States and elsewhere. Our primary facilities include administrative, sales and
research and development facilities in the United States, and manufacturing facilities in China. Acts of terrorism,
wars and epidemics may make transportation of our supplies and products more difficult or cost prohibitive.

China’s changing economic environment may impact our ability to do business in China.
ging Ly tmp

In recent years, the Chinese government has been reforming the economic system in China to increase the
emphasis placed on decentralization and the utilization of market forces in the development of China’s economy.
These reforms have resulted in significant economic growth. However, any economic reform policies or measures
in China may from time to time be modified or revised by the Chinese government. While we may be able to benefit
from the effects of some of these policies, certain policies and other measures taken by the Chinese government to
regulate the economy could also have a significant negative impact on economic conditions in China, which would

.result in an adverse impact on our business. China’s economic environment has been changing as a result of China’s
2001 entry into the World Trade Organization (the “WTO”). China’s entry into the WTO required that China reduce
tariffs and eliminate non-tariff barriers, including quotas, licenses and other restrictions, and we cannot predict the
future impact of such changes on China’s economy. Moreover, although China’s entry into the WTQ and the related
relaxation of trade restrictions may lead to increased foreign investment, it may also lead to increased competition
in China’s markets from other foreign companies. If China’s entry into the WTO results in increased competition or
has a negative impact on China’s economy, our business couid suffer. In addition, although China is increasingly
affording foreign companies and foreign investment enterprises established in China similar rights and privileges as
Chinese domestic companies, special laws, administrative rules and regulations governing foreign companies and
foreign investment enterprises in China may still place foreign companies at a disadvantage in relation to Chinese
domestic companies and may adversely affect our competitive position.

Uncertainties with respect to the Chinese legal system may adversely affect us,

We conduct our business in China primarily through wholly-owned subsidiaries incorporated in China and
Hong Kong. Our subsidiaries are generally subject to laws and regulations applicable to foreign investment in
China. Accordingly, our business may be affected by changes in China’s developing legal system. Many new laws
and regulations covering general economic matters have been promulgated in China in recent years, and
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government policies and internal rules promulgated by governmental agencies may not be published in time, or at
all. As a result, we may operate our business in violation of ngw rules and policies without having any knowledge of
their existence. In addition, there are uncertainties regarding the interpretation and enforcement of laws, rules and
policies in China. The Chinese legal system is based on written statutes, and prior court decisions have limited
precedential value. Because many laws and regulations are relatively new and the Chinese legal system is still
evolving, the interpretations of many laws, regulations and|rules are not always uniform. Moreover, the relative
inexperience of China’s judiciary in many cases creates additional uncertainty as to the outcome of any litigation,
and the interpretation of statutes and regulations may be subject to government policies reflecting domestic political
concerns. Finally, enforcement of laws or contracts based on l‘:xisling law may be uncertain and sporadic, and it may
be difficult to obtain swift and equitable enforcement, or to gbtain enforcement of a judgment by a court of another
jurisdiction. Any litigation in China may be protracted, have unexpected outcomes and result in substantial costs
and diversion of resources and management’s attention.

If we are unable to maintain the quality of our internal control over financial reporting, any unremedi-
ated material weaknesses could materially and adversely affect our ability to provide timely and accurate
information about our business, which could harm our business and stock price.

Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (“SOX #04™) requires that we establish and maintain effective
internal controls over financial reporting. SOX 404 also requires us to include a management report of internal
control over financial reporting in our annual report on Form 10-K. Based on management’s evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, wl(ve are able 1o conclude that our internal control over
financial reporting is effective. However, we cannot be certa'E that our internal control over financial reporting will

remain effective in the future. Any future failure to maintain adequate internal control over our financial accounting
and reporting could harm our operating results or could cause investors to lose confidence in our reported financial
results or condition, which could adversely affect our business and the trading price of our common stock.

Risks Related To The Industry
The markets in which we compete are highly competitive, maturing, and subject to price erosion.

The markets in which we operate are maturing and highly competitive. Increased competition from man-
ufacturers or distributors of products similar to or competitive with ours, or from service providers that provide
services similar to our services, could result in price reductilons, extended terms, free services, lower margins and
loss of market share. In some markets, we may sell products with negative margins to large customers who have
existing service contracts that generate contractual service revenue at positive margins over a multi-year period.
Such transactions may negatively affect our revenue, margjns and net income.

We expect to continue to experience significant and increasing levels of competition in the future. With respect
to our POS payment system products, we compete primarily on the basis of ease-of-use, product performance, price,
features, quality, the availability of application software programs, the number of third-party network host and
telecommunication system certifications we have obtained for our products and application programs, rapid

development, release and delivery of software products
products compete on the basis of functionality, scalability,

We often face additional competitive factors in foreign

national vendors, difficulties in obtaining required certifica

trade practices, and compliance with the Foreign Corrupt

and customer support and responsiveness. Software
price, quality and support.

countries, including but not limited to preferences for
tions, conformity with local government policies and
Practices Act. Some of our competitors and potential

competitors are more established, benefit from greater name recognition and have significantly greater resources
than we do. Moreover, there are limited barriers to entry that could keep our competitors from developing products

or services and technelogy similar to ours, or from selling ¢

there can be no assurance that we will be able to lower our pr

markets.
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We are subject to industry and technology changes and are dependent on development and market accep-
tance of new products. If we are unable to adequately respond to these changes and to market demands
in a timely manner, our business will not be successful.

The industry in which we operate is characterized by rapid changes in technology and numerous new product
introductions. Our success depends to a large degree upon our continued ability to offer new products and services,
and enhancements to our existing products and services, to meet changing market requirements, including
conformity with applicable standards. The introduction of new products, services and technologies by third parties
could have an adverse effect on the sales of our existing products, services and technologies. We cannot be certain of
our ability to successfully:

* identify, develop, or manufacture new products, services and technologies in a cost effective manner;
» market or support these new products, services and technologies on a timely and effective basis;

* eliminate defects in new products and service offerings;

» gain market acceptance for new products, services and technologies; or

* respond to technological changes, new industry standards, and announcements of new products, services and
technologies by competitors.

Developing new products, services and technologies is a complex, uncertain process requiring innovation and
accurate anticipation of technological and market trends. When changes to our product line are announced, we will
be challenged to manage possible shortened life cycles for existing products, continue to sell existing products and
prevent customers from returning existing products. Our inability to respond effectively to any of these challenges
may have a material adverse effect on our business and financial results.

We are subject to extensive indusiry standards and government regulations. Our failure to properly com-
ply with these standards and regulations could adversely affect our production and sales.

QOur product sales are subject to a substantiai and complex array of industry driven standards and governmental
regulation, both domestic and foreign, including:

= industry standards imposed by EuroPay International, MasterCard International, VISA International, and
others;

« certification standards required for connection to some public telecommunications networks;
* Federal Communications Commission regulations;

* Underwriters Laboratories’ regulations;

+ the WEEE and RoHS Directives in the European Union; and

« certification standards set by domestic processors.

Our failure to properly comply with these standards and regulations could result in lost product sales,
significant costs associated with required remedial measures or production stoppages, any of which could have a
material adverse effect on our business and financial results.

Risks Related To Our Common Stock

Our stock price has been and may continue to be volatile.

The market price of our common stock has been, and is likely to continue to be, volatile. When we or our
competitors announce new products, services, or customer orders, change pricing policies, experience quarterly
fluctuations in operating results, anncunce strategic relationships, acquisitions or dispositions, change earnings
estimates, fail to maintain effective internal controls, restate financial results, incur litigation, experience gov-
ernment regulatory actions or suffer from generally adverse economic conditions, our stock price is often affected.

22




Recently, companies similar 1o ours have experienced extreme|price fluctuations, often for reasons unrelated to their
performance. The volatility of our stock price may be accentuated during periods of low volume trading.

Our publicly-filed reports are reviewed by the SEC from|time to time and any significant changes
required as a result of such review may have a material adverse impact on the trading price of our
common stock.

The reports of publicly-traded companies are subject to review by the SEC from time to time for the purpose of
assisting companies in complying with applicable disclosure requirements and to enhance the overall effectiveness
of companies’ public filings, and comprehensive reviews of such reports are now required at least every three years
under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. SEC reviews may l|)e initiated at any time. While we believe that our
previously filed SEC reports comply, and we intend that all future reports will comply in all material respects with
the published SEC rules and regulations, we could be requireh to modify or reformulate information contained in
prior filings as a result of an SEC review. Any modification or reformulation of information contained in such
reports could be significant and result in a material adverse impact on the trading price of our common stock.

We are subject to anti-takeover effects of certain charter and bylaw provisions and Delaware law.

We have provisions in our certificate of incorporation and bylaws which:

+ make it more difficult for a third party to acquire con(r(ll of us, and discourage a third party from attempting
to acquire control of us;

* may limit the price some investors are willing to pay [for our common stock;

* enable us to issue preferred stock without a vote of our stockholders or other stockholder action;

» provide for a classified Board of Directors and regulate nominations for the Board of Directors;
+ make it more difficult for stockholders to take certain corporate actions; and
» may delay or prevent a change of control.

These and other provisions of our charter documents, as well as certain provisions of Delaware law, could
delay or make more difficult certain types of transactions iFvolving a change of control of Hypercom or our
management. As a result, the price of our common stock may be adversely affected.

Our stock price could be affected because a substantial number of shares of our common stock will be
available for sale in the future.

As of March 6, 2007, we had 53,061,798 shares of our common stock outstanding, all of which have been listed
for trading according to the rules of the New York Stock Exch%ngc. We also had outstanding, as of March 6, 2007,
options to acquire an additional 3,568,031 shares of our comm \n stock. All of the shares underlying the outstanding
options have been registered for resale. Future public sales of%ur common stock, or the availability of such shares
for sale, including the shares subject to outstanding options, could adversely affect the prevailing market price of
our common stock and impair our ability to raise capital through the sale of additional equity securities.

We currently do not intend to pay any dividends on our common stock.

We currently do not intend to pay any dividends on our common stock. While we may declare dividends at
some point in the future, we cannot assure you that you will ever receive cash dividends as a result of ownership of
our common stock and any gains from investment in our common stock may only come from increases in our stock
prices, if any.

Risks Related To Our Indebtedness

Although our current indebtedness is limited, we may be'required to incur additional debt to meet the
future capital requirements of our business. Should we be required to incur additional debt, the
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restrictions imposed by the terms of our debt arrangements could adversely affect our financial condition
and our ability to respond to changes in our business.

If we incur additional debt, we may be subject to the following risks:
* our vulnerability to adverse economic conditions and competitive pressures may be heightened;
= our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and industry may be limited;

* we may be sensitive to fluctuations in interest rates if any of our debt obligations are subject to variable
interest rates; and

* our ability to obtain additional financing in the future for working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions,
general corporate purposes or other purposes may be impaired.

We cannot be assured that our leverage and such restrictions will not materially and adversely affect our abitity
to finance our future operations or capital needs or to engage in other business activities. In addition, we cannot be
assured that additional financing will be available when required or, if available, will be on terms satisfactory to us.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

We own our 142,000 square foot corporate headquarters building located in Phoenix, Anzona. In February
2007, we listed the building for sale and will seek new leasehold facilities in Phoenix in 2007. This building is also
utilized for research and develepment, design, prototype manufacturing, testing and repair. We lease an adjacent
23,700 square foot building, which formerly housed our network solutions products and services business, pursuant
to a lease that expires August 31, 2011, We are currently seeking to sublease this facility and, as a part of our 2005
business review, we accrued the estimated loss in connection with a sublease of this facility on our financial
statements.

We also own an approximately 102,000 square foot facility in Brazil that is utilized for administrative, final
assembly, warehouse, distribution, and sales and support services,

We lease a manufacturing facility in Shenzhen, China, that also includes living quarters for the manufacturing
staff at such facility, which is a common arrangement in China. The manufacturing portion of the facility is
approximately 73,200 square feet. The lease for this facility expires on September 30, 2010.

In September 2006, we completed the sale of our real property in Hong Kong. We lease two facilities in Hong
Kong; one for sales, support and representation, and the other for manufacturing and procurement suppori,
respectively. The separate facilities make better use of lease space and geography to better serve these separate
functions.

Inthe U.S., we also lease offices in Atlanta and Savannah, Georgia and Redmond, Washington. Internationally,
we lease facilities in Australia, Brazil, Chile, China, Hong Kong, Hungary, Latvia, Mexico, Puerto Rico, Russia,
Singapore, Spain, Sweden, Thailand, the United Arab Emirates and the United Kingdom for sales, support,
representation, and research and development activities.

We believe that our facilities are adequate for our current operations and will be sufficient for the foreseeable
future. However, we are considering the potential sale of our headquarters facility and adjacent land in Phoenix and
the leasing of new facilities in the Phoenix area that are more conducive and appropriate to our current activities.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are currently a party to various legal proceedings, including those noted below. While we presently believe
that the ultimate outcome of these proceedings, individually and in the aggregate, will not have a material adverse
affect on our financial position or results of operations, litigation is subject to inherent uncertainties, and
unfavorable rulings could occur. An unfavorable ruling could include monetary damages or, in cases where
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injunctive relief is sought, an injunction. Were an unfavorable
a material adverse impact on our results of operations or our
occurs or in future periods.

Shareholder Derivative Actions.

ruling to occur, it is possible such a ruling could have

financial position in the period in which the ruling

In March 20035, a sharcholder derivative action was filed in U.S. District

Court for the District of Arizona (Siege! v. Alexander, et al., ‘Case No. 2:05¢v00664) against the members of our

Board of Directors and two of our former officers, alleging b

nominal defendant against whom no recovery was sought. In

was filed in the Superior Court of Maricopa County, Arizona (
against the members of our Board of Directors and two of ou

abuse of control, gross mismanagement, waste of corporate as
a nominal defendant against whom no recovery was sought.

Both derivative complaints generally were based on fac

restatement of our financial statements for the first three
participated in issuing misteading and inaccurate statements
The actions sought damages in an unspecified amount again
expenses, among other forms of relief.

In July 2006, the parties reached an agreement to settle tl
stipulation of settlement and related pleadings with the Federa

reach of fiduciary duty. We were named solely as a
April 2003, a separate shareholder derivative action
dong v. Alexander, et al., Case No. CV 2005-007093)
r former officers, alleging breach of fiduciary duty,
sets and unjust enrichment. We were named solely as

ts and circumstances related to our February 2005
quarters of 2004, and alleged that the defendants
and failed to implement adequate internal controls.
t the individual defendants, and attorneys’ fees and

he actions and in September 2006, the parties filed a
Court. The federal settlement was conditioned upon

wrongdoing on our part or that of any of the individual defendants. In connection with the settlement, we agreed to
implement certain corporate practices. Following a hearing on November 9, 2006, the Court approved the
setilement, including an award of fees and expenses in thg amount of $170,000 to plaintiffs’ counsel and a
release of us and the individual defendants from all claims asseilned in the litigation. The award of fees and expenses
was paid by our directors and officers liability insurance carrjer. On November 28, 2006, the plaintiff in the state
action voluntarily dismissed his complaint.

the dismissal of the state derivative action. The settlement aE'eemem does not contain any admission of fault or

Verve LLC v. Hypercom Corporation (United States District Court for the District of Arizona, Civil Action
No. 05-CV-0365-PHX-FIM, filed on February 4, 2004). Verve LLC (“Verve”} commenced this action in the
United States District Court for the Western District of Texas against us and others, alleging infringement of
U.S. Patent No. 4,562,341, In December 2004, the claims against us were severed and transferred to United States
District Court for the District of Arizona. We filed an answef denying all claims. In November 2005, we filed a

counterclaim against Verve, Simon, Galasso & Frantz, PLC,
defendants™) for abuse of process, malicious prosecution, and v
Court dismissed Verve’s patent infringement claim for lack
judgment against Verve and in our favor on Verve's patent

Verve's lawsuit “exceptional” under 35 U.S.C. § 285, granted 4
against Verve in the total amount of $100,042. In June 2006, V
Court of Appeals {rom the judgment entered against Verve.

Raymond Galasso, and Kevin Imes (the “Counter-
iolation of 28 U.S.C. § 1927. In December 2005, the
of prosecution. In May 2006, the Court entered
nfringement claim. Also, the Court, having found
n award of attorneys’ fees and costs in our favor and
erve filed a notice of appeal with the Federal Circuit
That appeal has now been fully briefed, but oral

argument is not yet scheduled.

In August 2006, the District Court granted summary judgment in our favor on our counterclaims for malicious
prosecution and abuse of process as to certain actions that Verve had filed against us. The Court dismissed without
prejudice our malicious prosecution claims that were based on this pending action and on a proceeding that was
brought against us in the International Trade Commission (“ILI‘C"), on grounds that those cases had not yet been
finally terminated in our favor. The Court indicated that we could re-file the claims after the [TC proceedings were
finally terminated.

In October 2006, following a five-day trial, a jury awarded compensatory damages in our favor and against the
Counterdefendants, jointly and severally, in the amount of $223,500, and awarded punitive damages in our favor
and against the Counterdefendants, jointly and severally, in the amount of $476,500. After the trial had concluded
and pursuant to our claim for relief against Counterdefendant Raymond Galasso for his violation of 28 U.S8.C.
§ 1927, the Court awarded sanctions in our favor against Ga]a%so in the amount of $100,042. On January 9, 2007,
the Court entered final judgment in this case. The Counterdefendants filed post-trial motions for judgment as a
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matter of law regarding the award of punitive damages. We filed our brief opposing the post-trial motions on
February 9, 2007, and requesting that these motions be denied. The Verve Counterdefendants have filed their reply
brief, but the Imes’ reply brief is not yet due. The Court will not rule on the post-trial motions until after the Imes’
reply brief has been filed.

Hypercom Corporation v. Omron Corporarion  (United States District Court for the District of Arizona, Civil
Action No, 04-CV-0400-PHX-PGR, filed on Febmary 25, 2004). We commenced this action against Verve, and
later filed amended complaints joining Omron Corporation (“Omron”}, seeking a declaration of invalidity and non-
infringement of certain Omron patents and asserting claims for conspiracy, abuse of process, malicious prosecution,
and aiding and abetting. We voluntarily dismissed Verve from the action in favor of asserting our claims against
Verve as counterclaims in the action described above. The declaratory judgment claims were also dropped after all
of the patent infringement actions that were brought against us on the Omron patents had been dismissed. Discovery
closed in June 2006. Omron moved for summary judgment in July 2006. On February 22, 2007, the Court denied
Omron’s summary judgment motion. The Court has scheduled a final pretrial conference for April 2, 2007. A trial
date has not been set.

Brazilian Central Bank Administrative Proceeding. In May 2002, the Brazilian Central Bank Foreign
Capital and Exchange Department (“Bank™) commenced an administrative proceeding against our subsidiary,
Empresa Brasileira Industrial, Comercial e Servicos Ltda. (“EBICS™), formerly known as Hypercom do Brasil
Industria e Comercio Ltda., alleging that it is subject to a fine totaling approximately R$243 million (approximately
US$114 million as of December 31, 2006) for failing to pay Hypercom, as the parent company shipper and seller,
for imported inventory items during the applicable 180 day period established for payment in the respective
Statements of Importation. In July 2002, EBICS petitioned the Federal Civil Court in Sao Paulo, Brazil to have the
administrative proceeding suspended and the applicable provision of the Brazilian law declared unconstitutional on
the basis that it is confiscatory. Also in July 2002, EBICS filed an administrative defense with the Bank. [n May
2003, the Federal Civil Court rendered judgment dismissing EBICS’ petition for a Writ of Mandamus, which
EBICS has appealed. In May 2005, EBICS’ defense in the administrative proceeding was denied on procedural
grounds, deferring the constitutional issues to the pending judicial action. EBICS has appealed the administrative
decision and raised additional defenses. including that the Bank’s recently adopted 0.5% limitation on the penalty
amount should be applied retroactively in this matter. If the 0.5% penalty limitation were to be applied in the Bank’s
administrative proceeding, the total penalty as of December 31, 2006 would be approximately US$570,000. EBICS
has also filed an appeal in the judicial action, raising similar defenses. Neither of these appeals is expected to be
finally decided for another two to three years. We believe that the original fine is confiscatory in nature and illegal,
and do not believe that such fine will be enforced in the amount asserted by the Bank.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Securities Holders

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006.
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Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following are our executive officers as of March '

Name

William Keiper

Philippe Tartavull

Thomas Liguori

John Andrews

Neil Hudd

Douglas J. Reich

Scott Tsujita

Age
56

49

48

51

61

63

43

Title

Chief Executive

Officer (since August 2005)

President {Since
February 2007)

Senior Vice President .
and Chief Financial

7, 2007:

Officer (since November 2005)

Sentor Vice President,
Global Customer Service
(since May 2006)

Senior Vice President,

Global Product Development

and Marketing
(since September 2005)

Senior Vice President,
General Counsel,
Chief Compliance Officer
and Secretary

(since November 2001)
Senior Vice President, Fin
Treasury and

Investor Relations
(since October 2003)
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ance,

Other Business Experience since 1/1/2001

Chairman and Interim Chief Executive
Officer, Hypercom Corporation;
Director, Hypercom Corporation (since
2000); Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer, Arrange Technology, LLC

Presideat, Oberthur Card Systems,
USA

Chief Financial Officer, lomega
Corporation; Chief Financial Officer,
Channell Commercial Corporation.

Principal of iClient Global, LLC;
Chief Executive Officer of Excell
Agent Services, LLC

President, Americas Sales and Vice
President, Strategic Initiatives, Way
Systems Incorporated; President, NBS
Transaction Systems, Inc.

Senior Vice President, General
Counsel and Secretary, Wavo
Corporation

Vice President, Finance and Treasurer,
Hypercom Corporation; Senior
Executive Officer, Golden Eagle
Leasing, Inc., Hypercom’s former U.S.
leasing subsidiary




PART 1

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

Our common stock trades on the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE") under the symbol “HYC.” The
following table sets forth, for the fiscal quarters indicated, the high and low sales prices for our common stock as
reported on the NYSE.

RANGE OF SALES PRICES

_High Low
Year Ended 12/31/06
FIrst QUArter. . . ..ot e e $ 957 $6.32
Second QUATET. . .. ..t e e e 11.16 8.00
Third QUarer . . . .. .. e e e e e 9.70 6.77
Fourth Quarter . ... ... . . i i i 7.95 6.08
Year Ended 12/31/05
FIrst QUAner. . . . . e e $ 600 $4.11
Second QUarer. . ... ... e e 6.83 4.65
Third QUarter. . .. .o e e e 7.17 5.73
Fourth Quamer . .. e e e e e s 7.25 5.57

Since being publicly-traded, we have not paid any cash dividends on our common stock. We currently intend to
retain our earnings for our business and do not anticipate paying any cash dividends on our common stock in the
foreseeable future. See Item 7. “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations — Liquidity and Capital Resources” for more information on retained earnings.

As of March 6, 2007, we had approximately 51 stockholders of record and approximately 6,260 beneficial
stockholders.

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

(¢} Total Number (d) Approximate
of Shares Purchased Dollar Value of
as Part of Publicly Shares that May Yet
(a) Total Number of  (b) Average Price Announced Plans or Be Purchased Under
Period Shares Purchased Paid per Share Programs the Plans or Programs

Month #1 (October 1, 2006

to October 31, 2000). .. .. — — — —
Month #2 (November 1,

2006 to November 30,

2006) ... ... ... ... ... —_ — — —
Month #3 (December 1, 2006

to December 31, 2006) . .. — — — —

Total ................ — — — $9,870,925

In August 2003, our Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase, program authorizing the repurchase of up
to $10.0 million of our common stock (the “2003 Program™) and on November 3, 2003, our Board of Directors
announced a second stock repurchase program authorizing the repurchase of up to $20.0 million of our common
stock (the “2005 Program™). As of March 31, 2006, we had repurchased 1,670,509 shares of common stock at an
average price of $6.05 per share which completed all authorized repurchases under the 2003 Program. As of
December 31, 2006, we had repurchased 1,261,528 shares of common stock at an average price of $7.93 per share
under the 2005 Program, including the repurchase of up to $10.0 million of our common stock pursuant to the
Rule 10b5-1 plan authorized by our Board of Directors on August 8, 2006. We did not repurchase any shares of our
common stock during the quarter ended December 31, 2006.

28




Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table contains selected consolidated financial data for the five years ended December 31, 2006,
derived from our audited consolidated financial statements. The selected financial data should be read in
conjunction with our consolidated financial statements, related notes and the section of this annual report entitled
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conéilion and Results of Operations.” Historical consol-

idated financial data may not be indicative of our future performance (in thousands, except per share data and

percentages).
Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Statements of Operations Data:
NEetTevenue .. .....covreninvennennenn.. $248,565) $ 245,223  $241,285 $218,816  $232,666
Costsofrevenue. .. .................... 159,540 172,091d 144,140 128,212 147,094e
Provision for deferred contract costs . ....... — — 11,305f — —
Grossprofit ... ... . . . i, $ 89,025 $ 73,132 % 85840 $ 80,604 § 85,572
Gross profit percentage . . .. .............. 35.8% 29.8% 35.6% 41.4% 36.8%
Research and development .. ............. $ 27,706 $ 27,555 $ 27,188 §$ 24163 § 24,744
Selling, general, and administrative . . .. ... .. 60,105 72,649 65,242 57,662 57,256
In-process research and development. ... .. .. 10004 — — - —
Gain on sale of real property. . ............ (2,953)b — —_ —
Restructuring charges . . . ................ — — — — 4,434¢

Total operating expenses . .. ............ $ 85.858] $100,204d § 92430 § 81,825 § B6434

Income (loss) from continuing operations. .. $ 3,167 $ (27,072) $ (6,590) § 8779 $ _(862)

Income (loss) before discontinued operations
and cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle . ........... ... ... $ 4,737 % (30,243) $(12,530) $ 851  $(29,716)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations . . . 2,233 (3,123 3,868g 10,347chi  (9,602)chi
Cumulative effect of change in accounting

principle . . ... ... — — — — {21,766))

Net income (loss) .. .. ..........o.on. $ 69700 $ (33366) § (8,662) §$ 11,198 $(61,084)

Diluted income (loss) per share:
Income (loss) before discontinued operations
and cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle . ...... ... ... .. ... $ 009 $ (038 $ (024) $ 002 3§ (069
Loss from discontinued operations. . ........ 0.04 (0.06) 0.07 0.20 0.21)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting

principle . . . ... L. L — — — — 0.47)
Diluted income (loss) pershare. .. ......... $ 013 § e $§ (017 § 022 0§ (1.32
Weighted average basic shares .. ..... ... .. 53,248 52,395 51,252 49,146 46,142
Weighted average diluted shares .. ......... 53,966 52,395 51,252 50,351 46,142
Balance Sheet Data:

Cash and equivalents ................... $ 34,1900 $ 35940 $ 23445 $ 65415 $ 23,009
Short-term investments . . . ............... 47,228 57,951 69,962 17,400 —
Working capital ... ... .. ... ... .. ... 141,923 143,039 159,789 155,048 128,179
Total assets. .. ... .ot i 236,716 238,914 277,260 264,568 258,860
Short and long-term debt ... ............. — 8,377 8,829 9,857 25,025
Total shareholders’ equity . ............... 178,931 170,774 205,372 204,297 187,972

a) During December 2006, the Company acquired TPI Software, LLC and incurred a $1.0 million charge for the
acquired in-process research and development. See Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
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b)

<)

d}

€)

g)

h}

i)

During September 2006, the Company completed the sale of its real property in Hong Kong for $5.2 million. The
Company recorded a gain of approximately $3.0 million on the sale in the third quarter of 2006. See Note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements.

During the fourth quarter of 2005, the Company made the decision to sell its United Kingdom lease portfolio (the
“UK Lease Business”) as this leasing business did not align with its core business. As of December 31, 2005, the
UK Lease Business’ operating results have been classified as discontinued operations in the statements of
operations for all periods presented. The Company recognized a $6.6 million loss on the write-down of the UK
Lease Business to it estimated fair value based on purchase offers received from potential buyers. See Note 5 to
the consolidated financial statements.

During 2003, the Company performed a comprehensive review of its financial performance; market strategy;
products; product development and life cycle management; and employee, customer and vendor relationships.
The objective of the business review was to create a plan to improve profitability and customer relations,
transition more rapidly to 32-bit technology products, rationalize operations and reorganize the Company’s
corporate structure, As a result of this business review, the Company recorded charges of $20.0 million to cost of
revenue and $7.7 million to operating expenses during 2003. See Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the third quarter of 2002, the Company committed to a profit improvement plan which included the
closure of offices around the world in favor of a more cost-effective distributor sales model and the termination
of our direct manufacturing operations in Brazil. Restructuring charges in cost of sales include $2.0 million
related to the write-down of inventories and other related costs. Restructuring charges of $4.4 million, which are
separately stated, include $3.6 million related to the write-down of a building and other fixed assets to their
estimated fair value and $0.8 million related to termination costs and other charges. See Note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements,

During the second quarter of 2004, the Company recorded an $11.3 million charge to cost of revenue to reserve
all costs previously deferred under a contract with the Brazilian Health Ministry. See Note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

During 2002, the Company recorded a $2.6 million loss on early extinguishment of debt in connection with the
early retirement of two term loans. The loss resulted from the write-off of unamortized debt issuance costs and a
loan discount associated with the term leans.

During 2003, the Company completed the disposition of all remaining operating units identified and initially
held for sale in September 2002, In connection with the disposition of these operating units, the Company
recorded a loss on sale of the units totaling $3.2 million during 2003 comprised of a $0.3 million cash infusion
made by the Company in accordance with the terms of the sale, non-cash inventory and fixed asset write-downs
of $1.4 million, severance costs of $0.5 million, the write-off of $0.8 million in uncollectible accounts
receivable, and facility lease and other exit costs of $0.2 million.

Consistent with the Company’s strategy of disposing of operating units not aligned with its core business, the
Company sold its direct finance lease subsidiary, Golden Eagle, effective October 1, 2003, for $30.0 million
gross cash proceeds, and recorded a $7.0 million gain net of severance and other exit costs. As a result of the
disposition, the net operating results of Golden Eagle have been classified as discontinued operations in the
statement of operations for all periods presented.

During 2002, the Company adopted SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (“SFAS 142”), Under
the transition provisions of SFAS 142, the Company evaluated our reporting units for impairment of goodwill
and recorded a $21.8 million write-off primarily attributable to goodwill associated with the 2000 acquisition of
Golden Eagle Leasing.

See Note 25 to our consolidated financial statements for a presentation of certain of the above information on a

quarterly basis for each of the four quarters in the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following sets forth a discussion and analysis of Hypercom Corporation’s financial condition and results
of operations for the three years ended December 31, 2006. This discussion and analysis should be read in
conjunction with our consolidated financial statements appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
The following discussion contains forward-looking statements. Our actual results may differ significantly from the
resulis discussed in such forward-looking statements. Factbrs that could cause or contribute to such differences
include, but are not limited to, those discussed in “ltemn 1A L Risk Factors” of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our
consolidated financial statements, which have been prepan!:d in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and
judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabillties, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of
contingent liabilities. On an on-going basis, we evaluate past judgments and our estimates, including those retated
to bad debts, product returns, long-term contracts, inventories, goodwill and other intangible assets, income taxes,
financing operations, foreign currency, and contingencies and litigation. We base our estimates on historical
experience and on various other assumptions that are believéd to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis for making judgments about the carkying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or
conditions.

We believe the following critical accounting policies af
in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements

fect our more significant judgments and estimates used

Share-Based Compensation

Prior to fiscal 2006, we accounted for stock-based compensation plans under the recognition and measurement

provisions of Accounting Principles Board (“APB™) Opini
provisions of SFAS 123R using the modified-prospective-
recognize the fair-value of stock-based compensation transa
stock-based awards is estimated at the date of grant using

on No, 25. Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted the
ransition method. SFAS 123R requires companies to
ctions in the statement of income. The fair value of our
the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The Black-

Scholes valuation calculation requires us to estimate key assumptions such as future stock price volatility, expected
terms, risk-free rates and dividend yield. Expected stock price volatility is based on the historical volatility of our
stock, We also use historical data to estimate option exercises and employee terminations within the valuation
model. The expected term of options granted is derived f%om an analysis of historical exercises and remaining
contractual life of siock options, and represents the period of time that options granted are expected to be
outstanding. The risk-free rate is based on the U.S. Treasury !yield curve in effect at the time of grant. We have never
paid cash dividends, and do not currently intend to pay cash dividends, and thus have assumed a 0% dividend yield.
If our actual experience differs significantly from the assumptions used to compute our share-based compensation
expense, or if different assumptions had been used, we may have recorded too much or too little share-based

compensation expense. In addition, we are required to estim
only recognize the expense for those shares expected 1o vest
our estimate, our share-based compensation expense could

ate the expected forfeiture rate of our stock grants and
If the actual forfeiture rate is materially different from
be materially different. For stock options with graded

vesting terms, we recognize compensation expense over the requisite service period on the accelerated method

prescribed by FIN 28 rather than the straight-line method.

compensation expense related to stock options at Decemb
weighted-average period of 1.4 years. See Note 14 to the co
on stock-based compensation.

The fair value of our restricted stock grants is basedont
grant,

31

e had approximately $5.7 million of total unrecognized
er 31, 2006 that are expected to be recognized over a
msolidated financial statements for a further discussion

he fair market value of our commeon stock on the date of




Allowance for Doubiful Accounts

Payment terms for product and service trade receivables generally range from 30 to 60 days depending on the
circumstances of each order or service contract. Payment on trade receivables from long-term contracts is generally
received within four months of the milestone approval date. Any payments not received within the agreed upon due
date are considered past due,

An allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of our customers to make
required payments is maintained. Such allowance is computed based upon a specific customer account review of
larger customers and balances past due. Our assessment of our customers” ability to pay generally includes direct
contact with the customer, investigation into our customers’ financial status, as well as consideration of our
customers’ payment history with us. If the financial condition of our customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make payments, additional allowances may be required. If we determine, based on our
assessment, that it is more likely than not that our customers will be unable to pay, we will charge off the account

- receivables to selling, general and administrative expense.

Sales-Type Leases

Certain sales of product are made under capital lease arrangements and are recorded as a sales-type leases in
accordance with SFAS No. 13, Accounting for Leases. Lease contract receivables represent the total lease payments
to be received reduced by lease payments already collected. Sales-type lease revenues consists of the initial sale of
the product shipped and the interest and maintenance elements of the lease payments as they are earned. An
allowance for estimated uncollectible sales-type lease receivables at an amount sufficient to provide adequate
protection against losses in our sales-type lease portfolio is recorded. The altowance is determined principally on
the basis of historical loss experience and management’s assessment of the credit quality of the sales-type lease
customer base. If loss rates increase or customer credit conditions deteriorate, the allowance for uncollectible sales-
type leases may need to be increased. Unearned income, including an interest and maintenance element, is the
amount by which the original sum of the lease contract receivable exceeds the fair value of the equipment sold. The
interest element is amortized to lease income over the lease in a manner that produces a constant rate of return. The
maintenance element is amortized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Recognition of the interest and
maintenance income did not exceed 10% of our net revenues in 2006, 2005 or 2004.

During the fourth quarter of 2005 we made the decision to sell our UK Lease Business which comprised
primarily all of our sales-type leases. See Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is computed using standard cost, adjusted for
absorption of manufacturing variances, which approximates actual cost, on a first-in, first-out basis. We record
reserves for estimated excess andfor obsolete inventory on a product or part level basis based upon future demand
and historical usage and establish a new cost basis for the respective item.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue pursuant to applicable revenue recognition guidance and interpretations, including the
requirements of Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 00-21, Revenue Arrangements with Muliiple Deliverables,
Statement of Position 97-2, Software Revenue Recognition, Statement of Position 81-1, Accounting for Perfor-
mance of Construction-Type and Certain Production Type Contracts, Staff Accounting Bulletins No. 101 and
No. 104 (“SAB 104”), Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements, and other applicable revenue recognition
guidance and interpretations. Accordingly, revenue is recognized when all four of the following criteria are met:
(i) persuasive evidence that an arrangement exists; (ii) delivery of the products and/or services has occurred; (iii) the
selling price is both fixed and determinable; and (iv) collectibility is reasonably assured.

We generally recognize product revenue, including sales to distributors, upon shipment of product. We
recognize services revenue when services have been provided and collection of invoiced amounts is reasonably
assured. Routine recurring services include terminal repairs, help-desk, on-site technician visits, deployment and
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the provision of supplies. In addition, we have transaction service and software revenue. Amounts received in
advance of services being rendered are recorded as deferl:'ed revenue. Revenues from long-term contracts that
require substantial performance of customized software and hardware over an extended period are recorded based
upon the attainment of scheduled performance milestones under the percentage-of-completion method. Operating
lease revenue is recognized monthly over the lease term.j The cost of units, net of depreciation, leased under
operating leases are included in the balance sheet under “Property, plant and equipment.” We accrue for warranty
costs, sales returns and other allowances at the time of shipment.

Revenue arrangements with multiple deliverables are elvaluated to determine if the deliverables (items) can be
divided into more than one unit of accounting. An item can generally be considered a separate unit of accounting if

all of the following criteria are met:
« The delivered item(s) has value to the customer on|a standalone basis;

*» There is objective and reliable evidence of the fair lvalue of the undelivered item(s); and

+ If the arrangement includes a general right of return r Ilative to the delivered item(s), delivery or performance
of the undelivered item(s) is considered probable and substantially in our control.

Items which do not meet these criteria are combined i lto a single unit of accounting. If there is objective and
reliable evidence of fair value for all units of accounting, thj arrangement consideration is allocated to the separate
units of accounting based on their relative fair values. In casks where there is objective and reliable evidence of the
fair vatue(s) of the undelivered item(s) in an arrangement but no such evidence for one or more of the delivered
item(s), the residual method is used to allocate the arrangement consideration. In cases in which there is not
objective and reliable evidence of the fair value(s) of the undelivered item(s), we defer all revenue for the
arrangement until the period in which the last item is delivered.

Product Warranty

We accrue for estimated warranty obligations when revenue is recognized based on an estimate of future

warranty costs for delivered products. Such estimates are ba,
costs. We periodically evaluate and adjust the accrued warrd
the original estimates. Qur warranty period typically exter
depending upon the product. Costs associated with mainten
are expensed when they are incurred. Actual warranty cos

Legal Contingencies

In the ordinary course of business, we are involved in le

relationships, product liability claims, patent rights, and a v3

resulting from asserted and unasserted claims against it, whe

sed on historical experience and expectations of future
nty costs to the extent actual warranty costs vary from
ds from one to five years from the date of shipment
ance contracts, including extended warranty contracts,
s may differ from our estimates.

pal proceedings involving conlractual and employment
iriety of other matters. We record contingent liabilities
n it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the

amount of the loss is reasonably estimable. We disclose contingent liabilities when there is a reasonable possibility

that the ultimate loss will exceed the recorded liability. Es
factors, in some cases including judgments about the p

imating probable losses requires analysis of multiple
tential actions of third-party claimants and courts.

Therefore, actual losses in any future period are inherently uncertain. Currently, we do not believe any of our
pending legal proceedings or claims will have a material impact on our financial pesition or results of operations.-
However, if actual or estimated probable future losses exccec:l our recorded liability for such claims, it would record
additional charges as other expense during the period in which the actual loss or change in estimate occurred.

Foreign Currency

All of our foreign subsidiaries and divisions use the U.S
currency translation gains and losses from remeasurement

dollar as the functional currency. Accordingly, foreign
are included in current earnings. Monetary assets and

liabilities denominated in local currency are remeasured at period end exchange rates whereas non-monetary assets,

including inventories and property, plant and equipment, ar
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 we recorded an immate
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periods, we recorded net losses on transactions denominated in foreign currencies of approximately $0.7 million,
$2.0 million, and $1.9 million, respectively.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the
years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets
and liabilities of a change in tax laws (including rates) is recognized in income in the peried that includes the
enactment date. See Note 17 regarding the valuation reserve against our deferred tax assets,

We do not provide for federal income taxes on the undistributed earnings of our international subsidiaries
because earnings are reinvested and, in our opinion, will continue to be reinvested indefinitely.

Overview of Financial Results

The following overview will highlight certain key events and factors impacting our financial performance over
the past three years. For the years ending December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 and any related interim periods
reported we have reclassified certain revenues and related costs previously reported as part of “Products and Other”
into “Services” as it was determined that certain activities considered as “Other” revenues and cost of sales more
appropriately should be classified as “Service” revenue and cost of sales. The activities reclassified consisted
principally of repair laboratory work, software and software development sales as well as consuling. See Note 3 to
the consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for amounts reclassified.

Year 2006

For 2006, we recorded net income of $7.0 million ($0.13 per diluted share) on revenues of $248.6 million.
Revenues for 2006 increased by 1.4% over 2003 revenues of $245.2 million. Product revenue gains were achieved
in Central and Eastern Europe, Russia and the Commonwealth of Independent States, Middle East and Africa, as
well as Mexico and South America from increased sales of our Optimum T2100 product. We experienced declines
in the multi-lane sector in North America due to the completion of a significant order in the first half of 2006 as well
as the effects of transitioning from a direct to indirect sales model for that product line; and we experienced declines
in our Pacific region due to reduction in product volume at a large customer in Australia and a slow down in the New
Zealand market and EMV migration. Our service revenues increased by 4.1% in 2006 to $57.3 million principally
from gains in Brazil due to new service contract awards, including servicing competitor products, as well as
increased terminal sales which were put under existing service contracts.

The return to profit in 2006 from iosses in 2005 and 2004 resulted from favorable impacts of our 2003 business
review (see Note 4) actions which improved profitability. These actions resulted in a lower cost structure, a
streamlined product line, an increase in revenues from newer 32-bit products and the establishment of a global
product marketing group.

As of December 31, 2006 we had $1.4 million remaining in liabilities associated with the 2005 business review
compared to $5.3 million a1 December 31, 2005. During 2006, $1.6 million of the $5.3 million was reversed out
through earnings as a result of customers opting out of a particular warranty program and a change in severance
benefits paid out. The remaining liability balance at December 31, 2006 relates to a particular warranty matter in
Australia of $0.8 million where we expect to replace certain faulty units in 2007 and the balance of an idle facility

. charge of $0.6 million expected to be paid out through 2011.

We also experienced a favorable impact of a gain on the sale of real property in Hong Kong and had a net
positive contribution from interest income less interest expense and foreign exchange losses.

On December 14, 2006, we also acquired the assets of TPI Software, LLC (“TPI") which resulted in a charge of
$1.0 million related to acquired in-process research and development. While this acquisition is expected to
contribute significantly toward both our product and services offerings, the contribution in 2006 was not material.
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On February 8, 2007, we acquired the assets of a services co
financial statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

mpany in Australia — see Note 22 to the consolidated

1.6 million as of December 31, 2006. This balance
f TPI, use of cash in operations, and our purchase of

Our cash and short-term investments amounted to $8
decreased from December 31, 2005 due to the acquisition g
additional treasury shares.

Year 2005

For 2005, we recorded a net loss of $33.4 million ($0.64 loss per share) on revenues of $245.2 million.
Revenues for 2005 increased by 1.6% over 2004 revenues of $241.3 million due to gains in multi-lane and processor
sales markets in North America as well as in our servinI: businesses, offset by declines associated with the
completion of EMV rollotts in Europe and Asia in 2004 and the completion of a significant portion of an outsource

1
manufacturing contract in late 2004 for one of our larger global customers.

The 2005 net loss was most notably impacted by charges resulting from a comprehensive business review and
the discontinuance of our UK Lease Business. During the latter part of March 2005, a change in senior management
was made. An interim Chief Executive Officer and interim' Chief Financial Officer {collectively “Interim Man-
agement”) were appointed to replace the former Chief Execlitive Officer and Chief Financial Officer. The interim
Chief Executive Officer, William Keiper, was appointed as lour Chief Executive Officer and President in August
2005 and a new Chief Financial Officer, Tom Liguori, waé appointed in November 2005. Interim Management
commenced a comprehensive review of our financial performance; market strategy; products; product development
and life cycle management; and employee, customer and vertldor relationships (the “2005 Business Review™). The
objective of the 2005 Business Review was to create a plan to improve profitability and customer relations,
transition more rapidly to 32-bit technology products, rationalize operations and reorganize our corporate structure.
The 2005 Business Review included the following actions and amounts:

 Implementing an end-of-product-life cycle strategy,

with near term end-of-life requirements resulting in

including identifying products and related inventory
charges of $12.1 million;

More aggressively addressing and correcting product performance issues, including negotiated warranty and

product trade-in/trade-out programs required for the e
of $7.4 million;

Implementing certain workforce reductions, includi

nd-of-product-life cycle strategies resulting in charges

ng members of the senior management team, sales,

operations and manufacturing personnel, as well as moving certain research and development resources to

lower cost foreign geographies, and compensation p

Vacating a leased building in Phoenix, Arizona dug
$1.0 million in future rental expense, net of estimate

Evaluating other assets and liabilities and evaluating
supporting such assets and liabilities resulting in cha

Investing in the implementation of a comprehensive

an changes resulting in charges of $5.4 million;

1o the reductions in force resulting in a charge of
d sublet recoveries:

the past underlying operating decisions or strategies
rges of $1.8 million;

product marketing function; and

Evaluating opportunities for short, medium and longrterm improvements in manufacturing costs.
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The following table sets forth the restructuring and other charges recorded during 2005 in conjunction with the
2005 Business Review (in thousands):
2005 2005 2005

First Second Fourth 2005
Quarter Quarter Quarter  Full Year

Costs of revenue:

Warranty charges and product return accruals . . ........ $ 706 $6076 $ 667 $ 7449
Inventory write-downs . . . .. ... .. .. 2,132 7,000 2,889 12,111

One-time termination benefits and related costs ... ... .. — 177 292 469
Other. .. ... .. 148 161 — 309

Total costs of revenue . . ... ... . e 2,986 13,504 ' 3 843 20,338
Operating expenses:

One-time termination benefits and related costs .. ... ... i,543 2,021 1,349 4913

Idle facility lease charge . ........................ — — 1,013 1,013

Other. . .. ... e 525 463 632 1,620

Total operaling expenses . ... ...........vvueenn.., 2,068 2,484 2,994 7,546

Non-operating expenses and income taxes:

Other, including tax impact of above entries, . ......... — 6i (203) (142)
Total non-operating expenses and income taxes ........ — 61 (203) (142)

$5,054  $16,049  $6,639  $27,742

There were no significant charges resulting from decisicns and actions taken during the third quarter of 2005 as
part of the 2005 Business Review.,

The 2005 Business Review was completed as of December 31, 2005. While we believe significant progress has
been made and strategic initiatives put in place as of December 31, 2005, we will continue to review and align our
business as demands and markets change and evolve. Accordingly there could be additional charges in future
periods arising from the decisions and actions related to engoing business reviews.

In addition to the 2005 Business Review, we also evaluated our UK Lease Business during the fourth quarter of
2005 and decided to exit this business and sell the existing lease portfolio and related assets, resulting in its
classification as a discontinued operation for all periods being presented. We recognized a $6.6 million loss on the
wrile-down of the UK Lease Business to its estimated fair value based on purchase offers received from potential
buyers.

We continued to maintain our cash reserves, consisting of cash and cash equivalents and short-term
investments of $93.9 million at December 31, 2005 compared to $93.4 million at December 31, 2004, despite
funding the cash elements of the 2005 Business Review of $6.6 million, and purchasing $9.2 million of treasury
stock, and without incurring any indebtedness to fund continuing operations.

Year 2004

For 2004, we recorded a net loss of $8.7 million ($0.17 loss per share) on revenues of $241.3 miilion. Our
10.3% revenue growth in 2004 was primarily due to bringing our new 32-bit products to market, expanding our
multi-lane and QSR base, and serving the growing European market led by tightening security standards. The 2004
results include a second quarter charge of $11.3 million to write-off all costs previously deferred under our contract
with the Brazilian Health Ministry.

The increase in revenues was tempered by a decline in gross profit as a percent of revenues resulting primarily
from the aforementioned deferred contract charge in-Brazil. To a lesser degree, the 2004 gross profit percentage was
negatively impacted by pricing pressures in certain markets, a lower margin on a high volume contract with a
domestic processor, sales to high volume multi-lane and quick service restaurant customers, and incremental

36




inventory reserves attributable to technology obsolescence in
demand for dated products and components. Additionally, the
by the reclassification of certain leases as operating leases

Operating expenses increased by $10.6 million in 2004

duced by our new product offerings and altered market
2004 gross profit percentage was negatively impacted
rather than sales-type leases.

from $81.8 million in 2003 to $92.4 million in 2004.

Operating expenses represented 38.3% of net revenues in 2004 versus 37.4% in 2003, This increase was primarily
due to costs for Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act compliance and higher selling expenses principally related

to accelerating expansion into certain markets in response 1o 3
to longer sales cycle multi-lane contracts.

Non-operating expenses (net interest expense, foreign
$1.7 million in 2004. This decrease was primarily due to high
short-term investment balances as well as rising interest rates
fees and the cessation of amortization of debt issuance cos

Results of Continuing Operations

The following table sets forth the operating results exp
indicated. Resulis for any one or more periods are not ne
continuing operations discussed below exclude the operation
operations. See Note 4 to the consolidated financial statem

NEtFEVEIUE . . o o oo ittt a st aeeeeeaeas
Costs Of TeVENUE. . . oot i it e e e ien e e
Provision for deferred contract costs .. .. .........

Grossprofit .. ... ... ... ... i,
Research and development . .. .................
Selling, general and administrative . . ............
Acquired in-process research and development . .. ..
Gain on sale of real property. . .................

Income (loss) from continuing operations . ... ...

2003 market opportunities and pre-selling costs related

currency losses and other income/loss) decreased by
er interest income as a result of our increased cash and
and lower interest expense as a result of reduced debt
ts in 2004,

ressed as a percentage of net revenue for the periods
cessarily indicative of future results, The results of
s of the operating units being reported as discontinued
nts.

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
................ 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
................ 64.2 70.2 59.7
................ — — 4.7

................ 358 29.8 35.6
................ 1.1 11.2 11.3
................ 242 29.6 27.0
................ 04 — —
(1.2) — —

................ 1.3 (11.0) 2.7

Interest and other income net of interest and other expense . ........... 1.4 0.7 (0.1}

Foreign currency loss .. ... .. ... . .t

................ 0.3y (0.6) (0.8)

Income (loss) before taxes and discontinued operations ... .. ........ 24 (10.9) (3.6)

Provision for income taxes . . ... cn vy

Income (loss) before discontinued operations. . . . . ..
Income (loss) from discontinued operations. . ... ...

Net income (l0S8) . . ... oo
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................ (0.5) (1.4 {1.6)

................ 19 (123)  (5.2)
................ 09 (13) 1.6

28% (13.6)% (3.6)%




Net revenue by geographic region is presented in the following table as a percentage of net revenues for the
periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31,

Revenues by Region 2006 2005 2004
North America . ... ... ... i 326% 394% 34.1%
Latin America including Central and South America and Mexico. .. ... .. 26.0 20.3 18.3
Asta/Pacific . .. .. 14.3 16.4 17.8
Europe, Middle East and Africa . ........... ... ... . L, 27.1 23.9 29.8
Totals ., . ..o e 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Our product revenues relate primarily to the sale of POS terminals, peripheral devices, and transaction networking
devices. Our services revenues are comprised of asset management services, trusted transaction services and payment
solutions, as described in Part I to this Annual Report on Form 10-K. No other type of revenue exceeded 10% of our
consclidated net revenues in 2006, 2005 or 2004.

Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2006 and 2005

Dollars in thousands

% of % of Increase
2006 Rev 2005 Rev (Decrease)

(Dollars in thousands)

| Net revenue:

Product .. ... ... e $191,286 77.0% $190,214 77.6% $ 1,072

N i T - S 57279 23.0%  55.009 22.4% 2,270

Total Nnetrevenue . . . ... . .. vt 248,565 100.0% 245223  100.0% 3,342
Costs of revenue:

Product ........0 i e 117,756 61.6% 131,326 69.0% (13,570)

BEIVICES . . e e 41,784 72.9% 40,765 74.1% 1,019

Provision for deferred contract costs . ... . ........ — 0.0% — 0.0% —

Total costs of revenue. . ... ... .. ............ 159,540 64.2% 172,091 70.2% {12,551)
Grossprofit. .. ... ... ... . ... . ... 89,025 358% 73,132 298% 15,893
Operating expenses:

Research and development ., ... ... .. .. ....... 27,706 11.1% 27,555 11.2% 151

Selling, general and administrative ... ........... 60,105 242% 72,649 296% (12,544)

In-process research and development. . ... ........ 1,000 0.4% — -— 1,000

Gain on sale of real property. . . ......... ... .... (2,953) (1.2Y% — — {2.953)
Total operating expenses . ...................... 85,858 34.5% 100,204 40.9% (14,346)
Income (loss) from continuing operations . . .. ....... 3,167 1.3% (27,072) (11.0)% 30,239
Non-operating incCome . ................iveno.. 2,916 1.1% 355 0.1% 2,561
Income (loss) before income taxes and discontinued

OPEratioNs . ...ttt i s 6,083 24% (26,7117 (10.9)% 32,800
Provision for income taxes . .. ... .. ..o i (1,346) (0.3)% (3,526) (1.4)% 2,180
Income (loss) before discontinued operations ........ 4,737 1.9% (30,243) (12.3)% 34,980
Income (loss) from discontinued operations ., . ..., .. 2.233 09% (3,123) {1.3Y% 5,356
Netincome (Jo8S). . . .o i et e e et $ 6970 2.8% $(33,366) (13.6)% $ 40,336
Income (loss} per diluted share. .. ................ $§ 013 $ (0.64) $ 0.77




Net revenue

Net revenue increased approximately $3.3 million or
comprised of an increase of $1.1 million or 1.0% in product r

4% in 2006 compared 1o 2005. This increase was
evenue, and $2.3 million or 4.1% in services revenue.

The increase in product revenue of $1.1 million was principally the result of increases in South America,
principally Brazil, of $8.9 million, Europe and the Middle East of $9.0 million, Mexico, Central America and
Caribbean of $2.7 million and Asian markets of $1.3 million] The gains were primarily related to the re-entry into
markets with our new Optimum product line in Brazil and Mexico as well as the expansion of geographic markets in
Europe and the Middle East. Offsetting most of the increases|were declines in multi-lane product of $14.3 million
due partially to the completion of large orders in the first half of 2006 and also general market conditions, a decline
in Australia/New Zealand of $5.8 millien due to a reduction [in volume to a significant customer in Australia and
general softness in the New Zealand market.

The increase in service revenues of $2.3 million was principally the result of increases in our service operations
in Brazil and Mexico as well as continued growth in our transaction services offering. Service revenues in Brazil
increased $2.5 million from 2005 to 2006 due to additional er:rvice contracts added in 2006 and an increase in the
installed base of terminals due to increased sales of terminalgl. Mexico services increased approximately $1.3 mil-
lion from 2005 to 2006 due to general growth in terminals under service contract and a new service contract entered
into with a major customer. We also experienced an increase in our transaction services revenues of approximately
$0.6 million due to adding new customers to the service as \!lvell as a general increase in volumes year over year,
Offsetting these increases were declines in Chile of $0.5 million due to a general downsizing of operations in that
country, multi-lane of $0.4 million due to less repairs required for the Optimum product line, and the U.S. repair
laboratory of $0.7 million.

Cost of revenue and gross profit

Costs of revenue include the costs of raw materials, ma
tracted manufacturing costs, telecommunication cost, inventol
with respect to sales-type leases included in continuing ops

nufacturing and service labor, overhead and subcon-
ry valuation provisions as well as loan loss provisions
erations. Total gross profit as a percent of revenue

increased to 35.8% in 2006 from 29.8% in 2005. Total gross proﬁl in 2005 was impacted by $20.3 million in charges
related to the 2005 Business Review. In addition there were approximately $4.9 million in incremental inventory
valuation provisions included in 2005 versus 2006. Excluding these incremental charges, total gross profit as a
percent of revenue was 40.1% for 2005,

Product gross profit was 38.4% in 2006 compared to 43.0% in 2005, excluding $18.8 million of charges
associated with the 2005 Bustness Review and $4.1 million in incremental inventory valuation provisions. This year
over year decrease in product gross margin was principally attributable to a change in the mix of product sales with
increases in lower margin geographies such as Brazil as well as higher volumes of Optimum terminals that do not
have as high a margin as the legacy terminals that have been fully cost reduced and certain declines in selling prices
to address strategic market conditions. Additionally, during[the second quarter of 2006 product liabilities were
reduced by a net $1.6 million primarily as a result of two customers opting out of the warranty program offered as
part of the 2005 Business Review. However, in the third and fourth quarter of 2006, we recorded charges in the
amount of $0.7 and $0.5 millicn, respectively. These charges telated to a payroll tax charge associated with former
employees in China and a settlement of a royalty claim associated with patented technologies used in our terminals
with signature capture functionality. There will be a royalty fee charged on our signature capture terminals going
forward as well, but it will not significantly impact our gross profit on such terminals.

Services gross profit percentage was 27.1% in 2006 and 30.1% in 2005, excluding $1.5 million of charges
associated with the 2005 Business Review and $0.8 million in incremental inventory valuation provisions. This year
over year decrease is principally due to additional overhead absorption related to the sale of our UK Lease Business
and changes in the mix of service offerings due to more special service orders at higher margins occurring in 2005
versus 2006.
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Research and development

Research and development expenses consist mainly of software and hardware engineering costs and the cost of
development personnel. Research and development expenses as a percent of revenue was 11.1% in 2006 compared
to 11.2% in 20035. Research and development expenses for 2006 include severance and other termination costs of
$1.5 miltion and $0.9 million in share-based compensation, while 2005 includes $1.3 millicn in incremental
charges associated with the 2005 Business Review. Excluding these charges, research and development expenses
decreased $0.2 million from $26.3 million (10.7% of revenue) in 2005 to $26.1 (10.5% of revenue) million in 2006
primarily due to the move of certain U.S. based research and development operations to lower cost off-shore
locations.

During December 2006, we acquired the assets of TPI and approximately $1.0 million related to acquired in-
process research and development.. This amount was written off at the date of the acquisition in accordance with
FASB Interpretation No. 4, “Applicability of FASB Statement No. 2 Business Combinations Accounted for by the
Purchase Method” (“FIN 4”) as there was no alternative future uses. Management determined the value assigned to
this asset through various methods including assistance from a third party valuation firm in valuing the TPI business.
As of the valuation date, there were seven projects that were considered to be in process. The values of the projects
were determined based on analyses of estimated cash flows to be generated by the products that are expected to
result from the in-process projecis. These cash flows were estimated by forecasting total revenues expected from
these products then deducting appropriate operating expenses, cash flow adjustments and contributory asset returns
to establish a forecast of the net return on the in-process technology. These net returns were substantially reduced to
take into account the time value of money and the risks associated with the inherent difficulties and uncertainties in
achieving commercial readiness. We believe the assumptions used in valuing in-process research and development
are reasonable, but are inherently uncertain. Since the date of the purchase, we incurred development costs of less
than $0.05 million related to the acquired in-process research and development, and should the projects continue to
move toward commercialization, we estimate that future expenditures could approximate $0.125 million over the
next fiscal year. As of December 31, 2006 none of the in-process research and development projects had been
completed, or postponed. We expect the seven in-process projects to be completed in the first quarter of 2007.

Selling, general and administrative

Sales and marketing expenses, administrative personnel costs, and facilities operations make up the selling,
general and administrative expenses. As a percent of revenue, selling, general and administrative expense was
24.2% for 2006 and 29.6% for 2005. Selling, general and administrative expenses of $60.1 million for 2006 include
$0.5 million in payroll tax charges associated primarily with former employees in China, an incremental amount of
share-based compensation of $4.4 million, offset by $1.2 million in net favorable tax setilements in Brazil,
reductions in severance related liabilities and accounts recetvable allowance recoveries. Excluding these amounts,
SG&A expenses for 2006 totaled $56.4 million or 22.6% of revenues. SG& A expenses in 2003 include $6.4 million
in incremental charges associated with the 2005 Business Review, consisting principally of $4.1 million in
severance and employment related charges, $1.2 mitlion in unrecoverable prepaid sales taxes associated with slow
moving inventory and the expiration of utilization periods, $1.0 million of future rent charges resulting from
vacating a building located in Phoenix Arizona, as a result of reductions in personnel. In addition, 2005 selling,
general and administrative expenses include a charge of $1.4 million for legal contingencies for certain tax cases
covered under an amnesty program in Brazil. Excluding these charges SG&A expenses for 2005 totaled
$64.8 miltion or 26.4% of revenue. Selling expenses have decreased principally due to the recognition of full
effects of the cost reductions put in place as part of the 2005 Business Review.

During the third quarter of 2006, we sold our portion of an office building in Hong Kong and we recorded a
$3.0 million gain on the sale. The building was sold as management determined that the cost, size and layout of the
facility were not appropriate for the functions performed in that facility. We have relocated the Hong Kong
operations to other leased space.
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Interest income, interest expense, and foreign currency

We recognized $4.8 million in interest income in 2006 compared to $2.7 mitlion in 2005. This increase is
principally attributable to higher average cash, cash equivalent, and short-term investments balances maintained
throughout 2006 compared to 2005 and increasing yields on our cash investments. We incurred interest expense of
$1.1 million in 2006 compared to $0.8 million in 2005. The in¢rease in interest expense is primarily due to the write-
off of debt issuance cost associated with the payoff in April of our floating rate option note payable as well as
interest penalties incurred on the China payroll tax charges. Foreign currency loss was $0.7 million in 2006
compared with $1.3 million in 2005. The decrease in foreign currency expense is principally attributable to a
relatively stabilized U.S. dollar against our foreign currency exposures throughout 2006 as well as improved foreign
currency management practices.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense before discontinued operations for federal, state and foreign taxes was $1.3 million and
$3.5 million for the years ended 2006 and 2005, respectivaly. Income tax expense is principally comprised of
income taxes associated with our profitable foreign locations. -

During 2006, we continued to provide valuation reserves on substantially all of our deferred tax assets. These
reserves are subject to reversal in future years at such time that the benefits are actually utilized or, the operating
profits in the U.S. become sustainable at a level that meets the recoverability criteria under SFAS 109, Accounting
for Income Taxes (“SFAS 109™). Due to our net operating |loss position and our valuation reserve against our
deferred tax assets, the consolidated effective tax rates for 2006 and 2003 are not meaningful.

We do business in a number of different countries. Tax|authorities may scrutinize the various tax structures
employed by us in these countries. We believe that we maintain adequate tax reserves, including our valuation
allowance, to offset the potential tax liabilities that may arise upon audit in these countries. If such amounts
ultimately prove to be unnecessary, the resulting reversal of such reserves would result in tax benefits being
recorded in the period the reserves are no longer deemed necessary. If such amounts ultimately prove to be less than
the ultimate assessment, a future charge to expense or reduction of our valuation allowance would result. In
addition, any potential tax liabilities that may arise upon audit could affect the individual items that comprise our
fully reserved deferred tax asset balance.
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Comparisen of Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

Years Ended December 31,

% of % of Increase
2005 Rev 2004 Rev (Decrease)

(Dollars in thousands)

Net revenue:

Product . .............. ... ... ....... $190,214 77.6% $192,468 798% % (2,254)

Services. . ... ... . 55,009 22.4% 48,817 20.2% 6,192

Total netrevenue . .. ............c0.... 245223  100.0% 241,285 100.0% 3,938
Costs of revenue:

Product . ............. ... ... ..... 131,326 69.0% 107473 55.8% 23,853

Services. ... ... ... 40,765 4.1% 36,667 75.1% 4,098

Provision for deferred contract Costs. . . . . . — 0.0% 11,305 47% (11,305

Total costs of revenue ................ 172,091 70.2% 155,445 64.4% 16,646
Grossprofit. .. ... ... ... .. ..o ..., 73,132 29.8% 85,840 356% (12,708)
Operating expenses:

Research and development. . ... ........ 27,555 11.2% 27,188 11.3% 367

Selling, general and administrative . . ... .. 72,649 29.6% 65242 27.0% 7,407
Total operating eXpenses .. .............. 100,204 40.9% 92430 38.3% 7.774
Loss from continuing operations .. ........ 27,072y (11.0)%  (6,590) (2.N% (20,482)
Non-operating expenses. . . ... . .......... 355 0.1% (2,107) (0.N% 2,462
Loss before income taxes and discontinued

Operations . .. ... .. e (26,717) (10.9%  (8.697) (3.6)% (18,020)
Provision for income taxes. . ............. (3,526) (1.9)% (3.833) (1.6)% 307
Loss before discontinued operations . . . . ., .. (30,243 (12.3)% (12,530) (5.2)% (17.713)
Income from discontinued operations . . . . . .. (3,123) (1.3Y% 3,868 1.6%  (6,991)
Netloss ... e $(33,366) (13.6)% $ (B8,662) (3.6)% $(24,704)
Loss per diluted share . .. ............... § (0.64) § 017 $ (04D

Net revenue

Net revenue increased 1.6% in 2005 compared to 2004. This increase was comprised of an increase of
$6.2 million or 12.7% in services revenue partially offset by a decrease of $2.3 million or 1.5% in product revenue.

The decrease in product revenue of $2.3 million was principally the result of a decline in Sweden of
$10.6 million related to the completion of a portion of a sales contract to one of our larger customers in Sweden as
well as Europe and Asia. We also experienced a decline in Europe of $3.1 million as 2004 was influenced by the
migration to EMV security standards, which was substantially complete by the end of 2004, and a decline in Asia/
Pacific of approximately $3.2 million due to countries such as Malaysia and Taiwan implementing EMV in 2004
and the effects of economic and credit control difficulties in Indonesia and Taiwan, along with pricing pressure
throughout the region, offset by an increase of $12.3 million in North America product revenues due to increased
multi-lane, processor and network equipment sales on a year over year basis and an increase of $2.5 million in
Brazil due to the introduction of new terminals in that market in the second half of 2005.

The increase in service revenues of $6.2 million was principally the result of an increase in our service
operations in Brazil. Service revenues in Brazil increased $5.8 million from 2004 to 2005 due to a strong market
leadership position allowing us to be the preferred service provider, including providing service on terminals of our
competitors and gaining larger portions of the installed base of terminals belonging to the three major Brazil card
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associations. In addition, Mexico service revenues increased
general growth in terminals under service contract, We also experienced an increase in our transaction services
revenues of approximately $0.7 million due to adding new customers to the service as well as a general increase in

approximately $0.9 million from 2004 to 2003 due to

increased revenues by $0.8 million due to increased
boratories revenue declined $2.0 million.

volumes year over year. Qur repair laboratories in the UK
terminals under the lease program, while the U.S. repair la

Costs of revenue and gross profit

Our costs of revenue include the costs of raw materials, manufacturing and service labor, overhead and
subcontracted manufacturing costs, telecommunication cost, inventory valuation provisions as well as loan loss
provisions with respect to sales-type leases included in conltinuing operations. Total gross profit as a percent of
revenue decreased to 29.8% in 2005 from 35.6% in 2004. Total gross profit in 2005 was impacted by $20.3 million
in charges related to the 2005 Business Review and in 2004 gross profit was impacted by $11.3 million in charges
related to the write-off of deferred contract costs for the ];Srazilian Health Ministry contract. Excluding these

charges, total gross profit as a percent of revenue was 38.1

Product gross profit was 40.8% in 2005, excluding $18.8
compared to 42.4% in 2004. This year over year decrease
attributable to incremental reserves totaling $1.4 million
operations, and $0.8 million from warranty provisions on ¢
been addressed fully as of December 31, 2005, partially offs

» for 2005 and 40.3% for 2004,

of charges associated with the 2005 Business Review,
in product and other gross margin was principally
from sales-type lease provisions from continuing
ertain specific repair and replace instances that had
t with a reduction of $1.9 million in normal inventory

provisions, with the remaining impact associated with pricing and product mix, as there continues to be downward

pressure on pricing.

Services gross profit percentage was 28.6% in 2005, e
2005 Business Review, compared to 24.9% in 2004. This year
mix of higher margin services versus any significant changes
service mix was an increase in inventory supply provisions

xcluding $1.5 million of charges associated with the
over year increase is principally from increases in the
in pricing or cost. Offsetting the margin gains due to
totaling $0.7 million recorded in 2005 above such

provisions recorded in 2004.

Research and development

Research and development expenses consist mainly of saftware and hardware engineering costs and the cost of
development personnel. Research and development expenses|as a percent of revenue was 11.2% in 2005 compared
to 11.3% in 2004. Research and development expenses for 2005 include $1.3 million in incremental charges
associated with the 2005 Business Review, consisting of severance charges totaling $0.9 million, as we relocate
certain research and development activities to lower cost foreign geographies, and the write-off of certain
capitalized software development for abandoned projects totaling $0.4 million. Excluding these charges, research
and development expenses decreased by $0.9 million from $27.2 million (11.2% of revenue) in 2004 to
$26.3 million (10.7% of revenue) in 2005.

Selling, general and administrative

Sales and marketing expenses, administrative personnel costs, and facilities operations make up the selling,
general and administrative expenses. As a percent of revenue, selling, general and administrative expense was
29.6% for 2005 and 27.0% for 2004. Selling, general and administrative expenses for 2005 include $6.4 million in
incremental charges associated with the 2005 Business Review, consisting principally of $4.1 million in severance
and employment related charges, $1.2 million in unrecoverable prepaid sales taxes associated with slow moving
inventory and the expiration of utilization periods, $1.0 million of future rent charges resulting from vacating a
building located in Phoenix Arizona, as a result of reduclioni in personnei, In addition, 2005 selling, general and
administrative expenses include a charge of $1.4 million for | gal contingencies for certain tax cases covered under
an amnesty program in Brazil. Excluding these charges of $7.7 million, selling, general and administrative expenses
totaled $65 million compared to $65.2 million in 2004. Selling expenses are expected to trend downward into 2006
since the full effects of the cost reductions surrounding personnel changes will be recognized for all of 2006, versus
only partially in 2005.
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Interest income, interest expense, and foreign currency

We recognized $2.7 million in interest income during 2005 compared to $1.2 million in 2004. This increase is
principally attributable to higher average cash, cash equivalent, and short-term investments balances maintained
throughout 2005 compared to 2004 and increasing yields on our cash investments. We incurred interest expense of
$0.8 million in 2005 compared to $1.4 million in 2004. The decline in interest expense is primanly due to the
continued decline in our long-term debt, and the reduction in amortization of debt issuance costs, as the majority of
costs were fully amortized as of July 2004. Foreign currency loss for 2005 was $1.3 million compared with
$1.9 million in 2004. The decrease in foreign currency expense is principally attributable to the stabilization and
slight strengthening of the U.S. dollar against our foreign currency exposures compared to 2004,

Income tax expense

Income tax expense before discontinued operations for federal, state and foreign taxes was $3.5 million and
$3.8 million for the years ended 2005 and 2004, respectively. Income tax expense is principally comprised of
income taxes associated with our profitable foreign locations.

During 2003, we continued to provide valuation reserves on substantially all of our deferred tax assets. These
reserves are subject to reversal in future years at such time that the benefits are actually utilized or, the operating
profits int the U.S. become sustainable at a level that meets the recoverability criteria under SFAS 109, Accounting
for Income Taxes (“SFAS 109"). Due to our net operating loss position and our valuation reserve against our
deferred tax assets, the consolidated effective tax rates for 2005 and 2004 are not meaningful,

We do business in a number of different countries. Tax authorities may scrutinize the various tax structures
employed by us in these countries. We believe that we maintain adequate tax reserves, including our valuation
allowance, to offset the potential tax liabilities that may arise upon audit in these countries. If such amounts
uitimately prove to be unnecessary, the resulting reversal of such reserves would result in tax benefits being
recorded in the period the reserves are no longer deemed necessary. If such amounts ultimately prove to be less than
the ultimate assessment, a future charge to expense or reduction of our valuation allowance would result. In
addition, any potential tax liabilities that may arise upon audit could affect the individual items that comprise our
fully reserved deferred tax asset balance.

Liguidity and Capital Resources

We have historically financed our operations primarily through cash generated from operations and occa-
sionally from borrowings under a line of credit and/or other debt facilities. During 2006, our primary source of cash
was cash generated by our operations as well as cash received from the exercise of employee stock options and the
sale of real property. We had no borrowings under our revolving line of credit during 2006.

Cash flows from continuing operations

Cash provided by operating activities is net income (loss) from continuing operations adjusted for non-cash
items and changes in operating assets and liabilities. Cash used in continuing operating activities totaled
$6.3 millicn for 2006 compared to cash used in operations of $3.8 millien for 2005, a year over year decline
of $2.5 million. The 2006 amount includes $2.0 million in cash expenses associated with the 2005 Business Review,
and the 2005 amount included $6.6 million of cash expenses associated with the 2005 Business Review. Exclusive
of the 2005 Business Review expenditures, the decline in cash used in operations amounts to $7.1 million and is
principally related to changes in operating assets and liabilities offset by net income.




ed impact on our operating cash flows consist of the

Changes in operating assets and liabilities and the rela

following:
2006 2005 Change
Accounts receivable . .. ... e $ (3,641) $ 8201 $(11,842)
Inventories. . ... .. .. i e (15,559  (15,057) (502)
Accounts payable. . . ... ... L o o 4,638 (8,294) 12,932
Olher. . . e {9,966) 3,070 {13,036)
Increase {decrease) in operating assets and liabilities ). . . ... ... $(24,528)  $(12,080) $(12,448)

The decrease in cash attributed to the increase in accounts receivable on relatively the same revenue base is
generally associated with an increase in days sales outstanding due to extended payment terms for certain high
credit rated customers which was offset by an increase in accounts payable as part of our cash management
activities. Cash has also been significantly impacted due tolincreases in inventory levels primarily resulting from
carrying components on the new 32-bit line of products along with our legacy 8-bit line of products and ordering in
anticipation of sales forecasts to reduce expediting and other delivery costs. Other changes represents decreases in
accrued payroll and related expenses, sales and other taxes and other liabilities as we paid down and made
settlements on certain accruals existing at the end of 2003

Cash flows from investing activities

Investing cash flows consist principally of capital expenditures and the net changes in cash associated with our
investment of excess cash generated by operations or proceeds from liquidations of investments to fund operations,
acquire capital assets or businesses and use in financing related activities such as the purchase of treasury stock or
pay down of long-term debt. Cash provided by investing activities was $0.6 million in 2006 compared to
$7.6 million in 2005.

Exclusive of the asset acquisition using $8.3 million in cash and the sale of the real property which provided
$5.2 million in cash, the change is related to increased capit.Jil expenditures primarily for computer related upgrades
and new implementations as well as investment activities surrounding the transfer of cash between investments held
in cash equivalent accounts such as money market funds an'd certificates of deposit, and investments held in short-
term investments such as debt and equity securities with Jetter yields.

Capital expenditures for property, plant and equipment were $7.3 million in 2006 and $4.9 miilion in 2005.

During 2006 and 2005, capital expenditures were principal
equipment purchases. We intend to spend approximately
capital expenditures related to computer hardware and soft
and dies and communication equipment.

Cash flows from financing activities

Financing cash flows consist principally of the issua

y for upgrades to computer software and hardware and
$7.0 to $8.0 million over the next twelve months for
ware upgrades, manufacturing equipment such as tools

nce of common stock due to the exercise of employee

stock options, repayment of long-term debt, and the purchase of treasury stock. Additionally, in 2004 we received
cash from the payoff of notes receivable from two former principal stockholders. There are no further related party
note receivable balances.

During 2006, cash used in financing activities was $12.5 million compared to cash used in financing activities
of $2.5 million in 2005. The primary reasons for the declimI: in cash from financing activities of $10.0 million were
the early pay-off of the Company’s debt associated with its headquarter location, increased purchases of treasury
stock in 2006 and fewer proceeds from the exercise of employee stock options,

Cash flows from discontinued operations (See Note 5 and Note 24)

Cash flows from discontinued operations principally
UK Lease Business and our direct-finance lease operatiol
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Cash flows from operations consist principally of net cash earnings from the UK Lease Business. The decrease
in operating cash flows provided by discontinued operations of $7.6 mitlion in 2006 over 2005 is the result of the
sale of the UK Lease Business during the second quarter of 2006.

Cash flow generated in investing activities for 2006 of $12.1 million relate to net proceeds from the sale of the
UK Lease Business.

While the cash flows from discontinued operations of $3.9 million in 2006 were significant to our change in
cash and cash equivalents, we believe the absence of cash flows from discontinued operations will not cause us to be
unable to meet our short-term liquidity and capital resource requirements due to our cash reserves and short-term
investments together with the ability to control certain cash outlays, such as the purchase of treasury stock. Should
operating results from continuing operations prove unfavorable, we may need to use additional capital sources to
meet our short-term liquidity and capital resource requirements.

Projected liquidity and capital resources

At December 31, 2006, working capital and cash and cash equivalents were $142.5 million and $34.2 million,
respectively, compared to $143.0 million and $35.9 million at December 31, 2005, respectively. Short-term
investments decreased $10.7 million from $58.0 million at December 31, 2005 to $47.2 million at December 31,
2006.

We believe that these cash reserves and short-term investments combined with our ability to influence
operating cash flows as well as certain investing and financing cash outlays, will be sufficient to fund our projected
liquidity and capital resource requirements through 2006. Should operating results prove unfavorable, we may need
to use additional capital sources to meet our short-term liquidity and capital resource requirements.

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our significant contractual obligations at December 31, 2006, and the effect
such obligations are expected to have on our liquidity and cash flows in future periods (dollars in thousands).

Less than After

Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years

Long-termdebt....................... $ — 8 — 5 — § — $ —
Capital tease obligations . . .............. — — — — —
Operating leases .. .................... 4,764 2,022 2,161 417 164
Minimum purchase obligations(1} ......... 28,419 28,019 400 — —
Total . ... .. .. $33,183  $30,041 $2,561 3417 5164

(1) Minimum purchase obligations include all outstanding obligations to purchase goods or services at
December 31, 2006 including agreements that are cancelable without penalty and agreements which are
enforceable and legally binding. We estimate that approximately 46% of the outstanding purchase obligations
at December 31, 2006 are non-cancelable due to the customized nature of the order and the long lead time
requirements.

Debt Amendments

In March 2006, we amended our Credit Agreement with Wells Fargo to decrease the line of credit availability
to $5.0 million and extend the expiration date until March 31, 2008, At December 31, 2006, there were no amounts
outstanding under the Credit Agreement.

Stock Repurchase

During August 2003, the Board authorized a stock repurchase program to allow the purchase of up to
$10.0 million of our common stock. During November 2005, the Board authorized a new stock repurchase program
to purchase up to an additional $20.0 million of our common stock. During March 2006, we announced the adoption
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of a Rule 10b5-1 plan for the repurchase of up to $5.0 million of common stock pursuant to the terms of an existing
repurchase authorization, )

During 2006 and 2005, we purchased 1,346,628 and [1,525,409 shares of our common stock for $10.7 and
$9.2 million, respectively. There were no treasury stock repurchases during 2004. The repurchased shares were
recorded as treasury stock and result in a reduction to stockholder’s equity. As of December 31, 2006, we had
repurchased 2,932,037 shares of common stock at an average price per share of $6.86 under the share repurchase
programs. The timing and amount of any future repurchdses will depend on market conditions and corporate
considerations.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2006, we did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements, as defined in Item 303(a)(4){i1)
of SEC Regulation S-K and FASB Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, as revised,

2007 Outlook

In 2007 we intend to continue our focus on initiatives 10 drive profitability. Key initiatives include revenue and
market share growth, expansion of our service offerings, introducing new products, improving gross margins and
reducing operating expenses. We have dedicated senior management teams to specifically address and manage
these key initiatives. With the continued introduction of our various products under our new Optimum product
family, and the introduction of a new service expansion strategy during 2006, we believe we have a solid foundation
to move forward on these key initiatives.

We will continue to see competitive pressures on a global basis as we and our major competitors try to expand
our respective market share. These pressures will generally serve to decrease average selling prices for certain
products within certain geographies. We intend to continue to offset declines in selling prices with increases in
volumes together with further cost reductions in our products, as well as continuing to differentiate our product and
total electronic payment solution offerings from our competitors,

We will continue to leverage our existing cost structure on anticipated higher revenues in 2006. Many activities
were examined and right-sized as part of the 2005 Business Review and we anticipate carrying our new right-sized
organization into 2007, with only limited strategic capital (lmllays and resource additions required to achieve our
2007 business plan.

We will continue to manage our balance sheet and leverage our working capital in instances where it can help
meet the objectives of our key initiatives for 2007.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Financial Accounting Standard Interpretation
No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes (“FIN 487). FIN 48 is an interpretation of SFAS 109 and it
seeks to reduce the diversity in practice associated with| certain aspects of measurement and recognition in
accounting for income taxes. In addition, FIN 48 requires expanded disclosure with respect to uncertainties in
income taxes. The Company is currently evaluating the impact, if any, that the adoption of FIN 48 on January 1,
2007 will have on its consolidated financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued statement No. 157, Fair Value Measurements, (“SFAS 1577). SFAS 157
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS 157 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, with earlier application encouraged. Any amounts
recognized upon adoption as a cumulative effect adjustment will be recorded to the opening balance of retained
earnings in the year of adoption. The Company has not yet determined the impact of this Statement on its financial
condition and results of operations.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

At December 31, 2006, our cash equivalent investments are primarily in money market accounts and
certificates of deposit and are reflected as cash equivalents because all maturities are within 30 days from date
of purchase. Our interest rate risk with respect to existing investments is limited due to the short-term duration of
these arrangements and the yields earned which approximate current interest rates,

Our investment portfolio, consisting of fixed income securities, was $47.2 million as of December 31, 2006.
These securities, like all fixed income instruments, are subject to interest rate risk and will decline in value if market
interest rates increase. If market rates were to increase immediately and uniformly by 10% from the levels of
December 31, 2006, the decline in the fair value of our investment portfolio would not be material given that our
investments typically have interest rate reset features that regularly adjust to current market rates. Additionally, we
have the ability to hold our fixed income investments until maturity and, therefore, we would not expect to
recognize any material adverse impact in income or cash flows.

We are exposed to financial market risks, including changes in interest rates and foreign currency exchange
rates in connectton with our foreign operations and markets. Nevertheless, the fair value of our investment portfotio
or related income would not be significantly impacted by a 100 basis point increase or decrease in interest rates, due
primarily to the short-term nature of the major portion of our investment portfolio.

A substantial portion of our revenue and capital spending is transacted in U.S. dollars. However, we do at times
enter into these transactions in other currencies, such as the Hong Kong dollar, Australian dollar, Brazilian real,
British pound and other Asian and European currencies. As a policy, we hedge the translation of our net invesiment
in foreign subsidiaries in an attempt to neutralize the effect of translation gains or losses in the statement of
operations. Financial hedging instruments are limited by our policy to foreign-currency forward or option contracts
and foreign-currency debt. We entier into forward or option contracts with our bank or other financial institutions to
accomplish our hedging strategy. At December 31, 2006, we had foreign currency forward contracts outstanding in
the amount of $2.9 million, denominated principally in the Brazilian real and British pound. Gains and losses on
these contracts principally consist of mark-to-market adjustments which are recorded in earnings as foreign
currency gains or losses.

We do not purchase or hold any such derivative financial instruments for the purpose of speculation or
arbitrage. See “Risk Factors — International operations pose additional challenges and risks that if not properly
managed could adversely affect our financial results” elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

At present, we have no material long-term debt obligations and there are no borrowings under our line of credit
facility at December 31, 2006. As such, our interest rate risk is not significant with respect to existing debt.

During the normal course of business we are routinely subjected to a variety of market risks, examples of which
include, but are not limited to, interest rate movements and foreign currency fluctuations, as we discuss in this
Item 7A, and collectibility of accounts receivable. We continuously assess these risks and have established policies
and procedures to protect against the adverse effects of these and other potential exposures. Although we do not
anticipate any material losses in these risk areas, no assurance can be made that material losses will not be incurred
in these areas in the future.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The financial statements and supplementary data required by Regulation 5-X are included in Part IV, liem 15
of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.
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Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and FProcedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures designed to ensure information required to be disclosed in the
reports we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act \f 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), is recorded,
processed, summarized and timely reported as specified inthe SEC’s rules and forms. They are also designed to
ensure that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Our management, with the participation of our Chif:]r Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has
evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and prolccdures {as such term is defined in Ruoles 13a-15(e) and
15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of the end of the periold covered by this report. Based on such evaluation, our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have coﬁcluded that, as of the end of such period, our disclosure
controls and procedures were effectively designed to ensure/that information we are required to disclose in reports
we file or submit under the Exchange Act is (1) recorded, processed, summarized and reported timely as specified in
Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms and is (2) accumulated and communicated to our man-
agement, including our certifying officers, as appropriate toallow timely decisions regarding required disclosures.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There was no significant change in our internal controljover financial reporting that occurred during our most
recently completed fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our
internal control over financial reporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

financial reporting, as defined in the Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). Under the supervision of our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, and with the participation of other management, Hypercom
conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006
based on the framework established by the Committee of S Iv:)nsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(“COSO™ entitled Internal Control — Integrated Framewgrk.

Our management is responsible for establishing and :jaintaining adequate internal control over Hypercom’s

Based on this evaluation our management concluded that, as of December 31, 2006, our internal control over
financial reporting was effective.

Our independent registered public accounting firm, Ernst & Young LLP, has issued an attestation report on
management's assessment of our internal control over financial reporting. This report is contained in this Annual
Report on 10-K.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.

PART 111

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers of the Registrant and Corporate Governance

The information required by this item regarding our directors, audit committee and compliance with Section 16
of the Exchange Act is incorporated by reference from lhtlz information contained in our 2007 Annual Meeting
Proxy Statement (which will be filed with the SEC no later than 120 days following the Company’s fiscal year end).
The information required by Item 10 regarding our executive officers appears under Item 4 of Part I of this Annual
Report.

The Company has adopted a code of ethics that applies to all directors, officers and employees of the Company,
including our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Controller, or persons performing similar functions.
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A copy of our Code of Ethics is available on our website at www.hypercom.com. We intend to satisfy the disclosure
requirements under Item 10 of Form 8-K in the event of an amendment to, or a waiver from, a provision of our Code
of Ethics that applies to our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Controller, or persens performing
similar functions, by disclosing such information on our website.

Item 11, Executive Compensation

Information required in response to this item is incorporated by reference to our 2007 Annual Meeting Proxy
Statement, which will be filed with the SEC within 120 days following the Company’s fiscal year end.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

Information required in response to this item is incorporated by reference from our 2007 Annual Meeting
Proxy Statement, which will be filed with the SEC within 120 days following the Company’s fiscal year end.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

Information required in response to this item is incorporated by reference from our 2007 Annual Meeting
Proxy Statement, which will be filed with the SEC within 120 days following the Company’s fiscal year end,

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Information required in response to this item is incorporated by reference from our 2007 Annual Meeting
Proxy Statement, which will be filed with the SEC within 120 days following the Company’s fiscal year end.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
a. The following documents are filed as part of this Annual Report:

(1) Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2006 and 2005

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and
2004

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(2) Financial Statement Schedule

Schedule IT — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

{All other financial statement schedules have been omitted since they are not required, not applicable, or the
information is otherwise included in the financial statements)

b. The Exhibit Index is included following the Financial Statement Schedule.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has
duly caused this Annual Report to be signed on our behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

HYPERCOM CORPORATION

By:/s/  WiLLiam KEIPER

William Keiper
Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 16, 2007 '

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Annual Report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrantjand in the capacities indicated on March 16, 2007.

Signature Title

Principal Executive, Financial and Accounting

Officers
Is/ WiLLiamM KEIPER Chief Executive Officer and Director
William Keiper
Is/ Tuomas LIGUORI Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Thomas Liguori
Directors
* Director
Daniel Diethelm
* Director
Phillip J. Riese
* Director

Norman Stout

William Keiper, by signing his name hereto, does sign and execute this Annual Report on Form 10-K on behalf
of such of the above named directors of the registrant on thlis 16th day of March, 2007, pursuant to the power of
attorney executed by each of such directors filed as Exhibit 24.1 to this Annual Report.

*By: /s/  WiLLIamM KEIPER

Attorney-in-Fact

5i




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and
Stockholders of Hypercom Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Hypercom Corporation as of December 31,
2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each
of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule
included in Item 15(a)(2). These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our
audits,

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Hypercom Corporation at December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the consolidated
results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement
schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. presents fairly in all
material respects the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, Hypercom Corporation changed its method of
accounting for Share-Based Payments in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123
(revised 2004} on January 1, 2006.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting QOversight Board
{(United States), the effectiveness of Hypercom Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 14, 2007
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

fsf  Ernst & Younc LLP
Phoenix, Arizona
March 14, 2007
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and
Stockholders of Hypercom Corporation

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting, that Hypercom Corporation matntained effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria estab'Iished in Internal Control — Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the “COSO criteria™).
Hypercom Corporation’s management is responsible for rﬂaintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control tver financial reporting, evaluating management’s
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions;of the assets of the company: (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and (%Iirectors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in chnditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Hypercom Corporation maintained effective internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the COSO
criteria. Also, in our opinion, Hypercom Corporation maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards jof the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Hypercom Corporation as of December 31, 2006 and 2003, and
the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2006 of Hypercom Corporation, and the schedule listed in Item 15(a)(2), and our
report dated March 14, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinjon thereon.

fs/ | ErnsT & Youwng LLP
Phoenix, Arizona
March 14, 2007
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HYPERCOM CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cashand cash equivalents .. ......... ... ... . . . . ..
Restricted cash. . ... ... oo i e
Short-term INVESIINENES . . . . . o ot ittt e ettt e e e
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $1,934 and $3,266,

FESPECUVELY . oL e e

IVemtOmIES . . . . L e e e
Prepaid expenses and other current assefs . .. ... .......... ..t
Deferred incOme tAXES . . .. ..o i it e e

Total CUTTENL ASSEES . . . o i e e e
Property, plant and equipment, net . . .. ... ... ... . .. L e
Intangible @ssets, NEL . .. . ..ottt e
Other JoNg-term assets . . . . ..ottt et i e e

B L0 L £

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable. . ... ... L e
Accrued payroll and related expenses . . ... ... ..l
Accrued sales and other taxes. . ... ... ... ... e
Product warranty liabilities. . . ... .. ... .. .. . e
Accrued other liabilities . ... ... ... L e
Deferred revenue . ... ... .o e
Income taxes payable . . ... .. ...
Current portion of long-term debt . . . ....... ... .. .. .. . L

Total current liabilities . . . ... . ... e e
Long-termdebt . ... ... .. . .. e
Deferred tax liabilities . . . .. ... . . i e e e
Other HabilHties . . . ... . . e e e e

Total labilities. . . . . .. . e e
Stockholders’ equity:
Common siock, $.001 par value; 100,000,000 shares authorized; 53,127,205 and
52,991,959 shares outstanding at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively . ...
Additional paid-in capital . . .. ... ... L
Deferred compensation. .. .. ... .ottt e e
Accumulated deficit . .. ... .o e e e
Treasury stock, 3,162,248 and 1,815,620 shares (at cost) at December 3}, 2006 and
2005, respectively . .. ..

Total stockholders” equity. . ... ... e
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity . ... .. ... ... ... . ... ...

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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December 31,

2006

2005

{Dollars in thousands,
except share data)

$ 34,190 $ 35940
201 —
47,228 57,951
52,777 48,852
52,632 39,414
8,001 8,946
691 122

— 12,613
195,720 203,838
27,261 27,746
5,733 3,503
8,002 3,827
$236,716  $238,914
$ 22931 $ 17,721
6,201 8,460
7,781 9,479
2,636 3,534
9,603 6,837
2,185 2,762
2,460 1,651
— 8,355
53,797 60,799
— 22

380 341
3,608 6,978
57,785 68,140
56 55
247,989 238,186
— (2,123)
{46,365)  (53,335)
(22,749  (12,009)
178,931 170,774
$236,716  $238.914




HYPERCOM CORFPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
{Dollars in thousands, except share data)

Net revenue:

Products . ..o e e e ...0% 19128 $ 190,214 § 192,468

SEIVICES ittt e e e 57,279 55,009 48,817

Total RELTEVENUE. . . . oottt e e e e eee e e 248,565 245,223 241,285
Costs of revenue:

Products .. ..o e e 117,756 131,326 107,473

BIVICES . . vt e e 41,784 40,765 36,667

Write-off of deferred contract costs . ............... ce — — 11,305

Total costs of revenue . ...... ... ... ... ... 159,540 172,091 155,445
Grossprofit . ... ... ... .. .. 89.025 73,132 85,840
Operating expenses:

Research and development. ... ................... 27,106 27,555 27,188

Selling, general and administrative. .. ... ........... 60,105 72,649 65,242

In-process research and development .. ............. 1,000 — —

Gain on sale of real property ........... ... ... ... (2,953) — —
Income (loss) from continuing operations. . ... ......... 3,167 (27,072) (6,590)
INterest iNCOME . . . v i it e et et e it e i nae e eeean 4,758 2,679 1,198
Interest eXPense . ... ... e (1,072) (787) (1,412)
Foreigncurrency loss .. ... ... .. .l (699} (1,297) (1,906)
Other income (eXpense). .. . ... ...t 71 (240) 13
Income (loss) before income taxes and discontinued

OPETALIONS & o o\ it et ittt e e e 6,083 (26,717) (8,697)
Provision for income taxes .. ............. .. ... (1,346) (3,526) (3,833)
Income (loss) before discontinued operations . . . .. ...... 4,737 (30,243) (12,530)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations . .. ......... 2,233 (3,123) 3,868
Netincome (JOSS) . ... in vt it e .o % 6,970 %  (33,366) $ (8,662)
Basic income (loss) per share:

Income (loss) before discontinued operations . ... ... .. R 009 3 0.58) § (0.24)

Income {loss) from discontinued operations . .. ....... 0.04 (0.06) 0.07

Basic income (loss) pershare. . ... ................ L. 3 013 § 0.64) $ (0.17)
Diluted income (loss) per share:

Income (loss) before discontinued operations . ........ A 009 § (0.58) % (0.24)

Income (loss) from discontinued operations .......... A 0.04 (0.06) 0.07

Diluted income (loss) pershare . .................. [ ... 3 0,13 § (0.64) $ (0.17)
Shares used in computing net income (loss) per common sh%xe:

Basic ... el 53,248,194 52,395,001 51,251,975

Diluted . ... . e b 53,965,576 52,395,001 51,251,975

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HYPERCOM CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Balance as of December 31,
2003
Issuance of common stock. . .
Restricted common stock

issued for deferred
compensation, net of
cancellations. . . ........
Recognition of deferred
compensation, net of award
reacquisitions . .. .. .. ...
Decrease in stockholders’
receivable. . . ... ... ....
Netloss................

Balance as of December 31,
2004
Issuance of common stock. . .
Purchase of treasury stock . . .
Restricted common stock

issued for deferred
compensation, net of
cancellations. . . ... .. ...
Recognition of deferred
compensation, net of award
reacquisitions
Netloss................

Balance as of December 31,
2005
Issuance of common stock. . .
Purchase of treasury stock . . .
Reclassification due to the

adoption of SFAS 123R . . .
Restricted common stock

issued for compensation,

net of forfeitures . . ... ...
Share-based compensation . . .
Net Income

Balance as of December 31,
2006

- Additional Receivables Tota}
Common Stock Paid-in from Deferred  Accumulated Treasury Stockholders’
Shares Balance  Capital  Stockholders Compensation Deficit Stock Equity
(Dollars in thousands, except share data)

49.930,803 50 219,983 (1,056) (600) (11,307 (2,773) 204,297
2,274,484 2 8,274 — — — — 8,276
49648 — 310 — (310) — — —
N — — 405 — 405

—_ — — 1,056 — — — 1,056
i — — — (8,662) — (8.662)
52,254,935 52 228,567 — (505) {19969y  (2,773) 205,372
1,873,021 3 7,173 — — — — 7,176
(1,525,409) — — — (9.236) (9,236)
389,412 — 2,446 — (2.446) — — —
- — — — 828 — 828
- - _ _ —  (33,366) —  (33,366)
52,991,959 55 238,186 — (2,123) (53.335) (12,009) 170,774
1,439,442 1 6,650 — — — — 6,651
(1,346,628) — — —_ — — 10,740y (10,740)
- — (2,123) — 2,123 — — —

42432 — — — — — — —

—_— 5,276 — — — — 5276

- — — _— — 6,970 — 6,970
53,127,205 356 3247989 § — $§  —  3(46,365) $(22,749) $178,931

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HYPERCOM CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from continuing operations:

Net income (loss) from continuing operations .. .......

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) from continuing operations

to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Amortization of deferred financing costs ... ........
Depreciation and amortization
Acquired in-process research and development
Amortization of discount on short-term investments . . .

Foreign currency (gains) losses
Provision for deferred contract costs
Gain on sale of real property
Non-cash stock-based compensation. . .. ...........
Non-cash write-off of intangibles and other assets
Deferred income tax benefit. . ...................
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net

Net cash provided by (used in} operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchase of property, plant and equipment. ..........
Proceeds from the sale of real property
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired
Software development costs capitalized
Net increase in restricted cash
Purchase of short-term investments

Proceeds from the sate or maturity of short-term investments

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities .
Cash flows from financing activities:

Repayment of bank notes payable and other debt instruments. ... ... ..

Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Purchase of treasury stock., ... ....... ... ... ... ...
Payment of receivables from stockholders ...........

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities .
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalen

Net increase {decrease} in cash flow from continuing operat

ons

Net cash provided by operating activities from discontinued

operations
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities fr

discontinued operations . ..................
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year. . ... ... ...

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of
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Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005

2004

(Dollars in thousands)

$ 4737 $ (30,243) $(12,530)

4 15 529
7.872 7.890 8,007
1,000 — —
(1,303 (1,099 (223)

826 2,046 1,915
2,342 18,539 7,922
125 8,926 727
(514) (976) 74

— — 11,305
(2,953) — —
6,253 828 405

324 2,181 1,515
(530) 219 —
(24,528)  (12,080) (10,797)
{6,345) (3,754) 8,849
(7,320 (4916)  (5,855)
5,190 — —
(8.319) — —
(787) (559)  (2,953)
o — —
(295,054) (216,915) (90,239)
307,080 230,025 37,900
589 7.635 (61,147
(8,364) (425) (995)
6,651 7,176 8,276
(10,740) (9,236) —

— — 1,036

(12,453) (2,485) 8,337

469 (333) 407
(17,740) 1,063 (43,554)
3,853 11,432 4,450
12,137 — (2,866)
35,940 23445 65,415
$ 34,190 $ 35940 §$ 23.445

these consolidated financial statements.




HYPERCOM CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2006

1. Description of Business

Hypercom Corporation (“Hypercom™) is one of the largest global providers of complete electronic payment
solutions and value-added services at the point-of-transaction. Hypercom designs, manufactures and sells elec-
tronic transaction terminals, peripheral devices, transaction networking devices, transaction management systems,
application software and information delivery services. Additionally, the Company provides directly, or through
qualified contractors, support and related services that complement and enhance its hardware and software
products. Hypercom’s customers include large domestic and international financial institutions, electronic payment
processors, large retailers, independent sales organizations {“ISOs”) and distributors as well as companies in the
transportation, healthcare, pre-paid card and quick service restaurant (“QSR™) industries, Hypercom has one
operating business segment: electronic payment products and services,

Hypercom is headquartered in Phoenix, Arizona, where its operations include corporate administration,
product development, sales and marketing, distribution, repairs and customer service. Hypercom has sales and
support offices in Australia, Brazil, Chile, China, Hong Kong, Hungary, Latvia, Mexico, Puerto Rico, Russia,
Singapore, Spain, Sweden, Thailand, the United Arab Emirates and the United Kingdom. These sales and support
offices perform sales, marketing, distribution, customer service and custom development functions. Hypercom’s
primary manufacturing is performed in China with third party manufacturing operations performed in Poland.
Hypercom has global product development facilities in Latvia and Singapore.

2, Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Hypercom Corporation and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company”). The Company owns 100% of the outstanding stock of all of its
subsidiaries with the exception of one subsidiary in Thailand. The Company owns a controlling interest in the
Thailand subsidiary and certain nominee shareholders own the remaining shares. Ali of the Company's subsidiaries
are included in the consolidated financial statements, and all significant intercompany accounts and transactions
have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted account-
ing principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. The accounting estimates that require management’s
most significant, difficult and subjective judgments include collectibility of accounts receivable; determination of
inventory obsolescence; expected product warranty costs; recognition and measurement of current and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities; legal and tax contingency accruals; and the reductions to revenue related to sales
returns. The actual results experienced by the Company may differ from management's estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all investment instruments, including money market accounts and certificates of
deposits, with a remaining maturity of three months or less when purchased, to be cash equivalents. These
investments are stated at cost, which approximates fair value.

Short-term Investments

Management determines the appropriate classification of its investments in marketable debt and equity
securities at the time of purchase. Securities for which the Company does not have the intent or ability to hold to
maturity are classified as available for sale and are carried at fair value, with the unrealized holding gains and losses,
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HYPERCOM CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
December 31, 2006

net of tax, reported in a separate component of stockholders’ equity, if material. On an ongoing basis, the Company
evaluates its debt securities to determine if a decline in fair jalue is other-than-temporary. When a decline in fair
value is determined to be other-than-temporary, an impairment charge would be recorded and a new cost basis in the
investment is established. The amortized cost of debt securities in this category is adjusted for amortization of
premiums and accretion of discounts to maturity. Such amorti.zation is included in interest income. Realized gains
and losses and interest and dividends on securities are included in interest income. The cost of securities sold is
based upon the specific identification method. Securities classified as available for sale include both securities due
within one year and securities with maturity dates beyond one year.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company values financial instruments as required by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS™) No. 107, Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial|Instruments. The carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents approximate fair value due to the short maturity] of those instruments. The fair value of marketable
securities is determined based on quoted market prices, which approximate fair value. The fair value of sales-type
leases and long-term obligations is estimated by discounting the future cash flows required under the terms of each
respective lease or debt agreement by current market rates for the same or similar issues of leases or debt with
similar remaining maturities. The fair value of financial hcdgcl’ instruments are based on quotes from brokers using
market prices for those or similar instruments.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Payment terms for product and service trade receivables generally range from 30 to 60 days depending on the
circumstances of each order or service contract. Payment on trade receivables from long-term contracts is generally
received within four months of the milestone approval date. Any payments not received within the agreed upon due
date are considered past due,

An allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of our customers to make
required payments is maintained. Such allowance is computed based upon a specific customer account review of
larger customers and balances past due. Our assessment of our customers’ ability to pay generally includes direct
contact with the customer, investigation into our customer$’ financial status, as well as consideration of our
customers’ payment history with us. If we determine, based onlour assessment, that it is more likely than not that our
customers will be unable to pay, we will charge off the account receivables to the allowance for doubtful accounts.

Sales-Type Leases

Certain sales of product are made under a capital lease arrangement, recorded as a sales-type lease in
accordance with SFAS No. 13, Accounting for Leases. Lease contract receivables represent the total lease payments
to be received reduced by lease payments already collected. Sales-type lease revenues consist of the initial sale of
the product shipped and the interest and maintenance elements of the lease payments as they are earned. An
allowance for estimated uncollectible sales-type lease receivables at an amount sufficient to provide adequate
protection against losses in our sales-type lease portfolio is recorded. The allowance is determined principally on
the basis of historical loss experience and management’s assessment of the credit quality of the sales-type lease
customer base. If loss rates increase or customer credit conditions deteriorate, the allowance for uncollectible sales-
type leases may need to be increased. Unearned income, inclsluding an interest and maintenance element, is the
amount by which the original sum of the lease contract receivable exceeds the fair value of the equipment sold. The
interest element is amortized to lease income over the lease in|la manner that produces a constant rate of return. The
maintenance element is amortized on a straight-line basis aver the lease term. Recognition of the interest and
maintenance income did not exceed 10% of the Company’s [net revenues in 2006, 2005 or 2004.
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HYPERCOM CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
December 31, 2006

In addition, as part of the initial recording of our sales-type leases, the estimated unguaranteed residual value of
the equipment is recorded. The residual value is based on industry standards and the Company’s actual experience.
Residual values were recorded only for the sale-type leases in our UK Lease Business which has been sold and is
reported in discontinued operations. There are no residual values recorded under sales-type leases at December 31,
2006.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is computed using standard cost, adjusted for
absorption of manufacturing variances, which approximates actual cost, on a first-in, first-out basis. Reserves for
estimated excess and/or obsolete inventory are recorded on a product or part level basis based upon future demand
and historical usage and establish with new cost basis established for the respective item.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation and amoertization are provided on straight-line
and accelerated methods over the following useful lives:

Building . . .. e e 15-30 years
Computer equipment and software . ... ... ... ... ... . ... oL 3-5 years
Machinery and equipment. ... ... . ... . e 2-10 years
Equipment leased to cuStomers . . .. ... ... ... 1-5 years
Fumniture and fixtores . ... ... .. e 3-10 vears

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the life of the lease or the life of the asset.

Capitalized Software Development Costs

The Company capitalizes certain internal and external expenses related to developing computer sottware used
in the products it sells, Costs incurred prior to the establishment of technological feasibility are charged to research
and development expense, The Company considers technological feasibility to have been established for a product
when all of the following conditions have been met: (a) the detail program design has been completed and it has
been determined that the necessary skills, hardware, and software technology are available to produce the product;
(b) the detail program design has been traced to product specifications; and (¢} all high-risk development issues
have been resolved through coding and testing. Upon general release to customers of the product in which the
software is included, capitalization ceases, and such costs are amortized using the straight-line method over an
estimated life of one to three years. The amounts capitalized in the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004,
were $0.8 million, $0.6 million, and $3.0 million, respectively.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the residual purchase price after allocation of the purchase price of assets acquired.
Goodwill is not amortized, but is subject to an annual impairment test. This test is conducted during the fourth
quarter of the Company’s fiscal year and may be performed more frequently. At December 31, 2006, the Company’s
goodwill relates to its acquisition of TPl Software, LLC and is included in other long-term assets. See further
discussion of this acquisition in Note 20.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company assesses whether indicators of impairment of long-lived assets are present. If such indicators are
present, the Company determines whether the sum of the estimated undiscounted cash flows attributable to the

60




HYPERCOM CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
December 31, 2006

assets in question is less than their carrying value. If less, the Company recognizes an impairment loss based on the
excess of the carrying amount of the assets over their respecti}fe fair values. Fair value is determined by discounted
future cash flows, appraisals or other methods. If the assets determined to be impaired are to be held and used. the
Company recognizes an impairment loss through a charge 0 operating results to the extent the present value of
anticipated net cash flows attributable to the asset are less than the asset’s carrying valve, When it is determined that
the useful lives of assets are shorter than originally estimated, and there are sufficient cash flows to support the
carrying value of the assets, the Company will accelerate the rate of amortization charges in order to fully amortize

the assets over their new shorter useful lives. This process req

uires the use of estimates and assumptions, which are

subject to a high degree of judgment. If these assumptions change in the future, the Company may be required to

record impairment charges for these assets.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue pursuant to applicab
including the requirements of Emerging Issues Task Force Is
Deliverables, Statement of Position 97-2, Software Revenue
for Performance of Construction-Type and Certain Productio
and No. 104 (“SAB 104"), Revenue Recognition in Financial

e revenue recognition guidance and interpretations,
sue No. 00-21, Revenue Arrangements with Multiple
Recognition, Statement of Position 81-1, Accounting
it Type Contracts, Staff Accounting Bulletins No. 101
Statements, and other applicable revenue recognition

guidance and interpretations. Accordingly, revenue is recognized when all four of the following criteria are met:

{a) persuasive evidence that an arrangement exists; (b) deliver
selling price is both fixed and determinable; and (d) collect

The Company generally recognizes product revenue, ind
leases, upon shipment of product. The Company recognizes s¢
collection of inveiced amounts is reasonably assured. Routi
desk, on-site technician visits, deployment and the provision

v of the products and/or services has occurred; (c) the
bility is reasonably assured.

luding sales to distributors and sales under sales-type
rvices revenue when services have been provided and
ne recurring services include terminal repairs, help-
of supplies. In addition, we have transaction service

and software revenue. Amounts received in advance of services being rendered are recorded as deferred revenue.
Revenues from long-term contracts that require substantial performance of customized software and hardware over
an extended period are recorded based upon the attainment of scheduled performance milestones under the

percentage-of-completion methoed. Operating lease revenue i

s recognized monthly over the lease term, The cost of

units leased under operating leases is included in the balance sheet under “Property, plant and equipment.” The
Company accrues for warranty costs, sales returns and other allowances at the time of shipment.

Revenue arrangements with multiple deliverables are evaluated to determine if the deliverables (items) can be
divided into more than one unit of accounting. An item can generally be considered a separate unit of accounting if

all of the following criteria are met:

» The delivered item(s) has value 10 the customer on a standalone basis;

» There is objective and reliable evidence of the fair value of the undelivered item(s); and

« 1f the arrangement includes a general right of return relative to the delivered item(s), delivery or performance

of the undelivered item(s) is considered probable anh

substantially in the contro} of the Company.

Items which do not meet these criteria are combined into a single unit of accounting. If there is objective and

reliable evidence of fair value for all units of accounting, the

angement consideration is allocated to the separate

units of accounting based on their relative fair values. In cases where there is objective and reliable evidence of the

fair value(s) of the undelivered item(s) in an arrangement b
item(s), the residual method is used to allocate the arrang
objective and reliable evidence of the fair value(s) of the unde
arrangement until the period in which the last item is deliv

61

ut no such evidence for one or more of the delivered
ement consideration. In cases in which there is not
ivered item(s), the Company defers all revenue for the
ered.




HYPERCOM CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
December 31, 2006

Contract Accounting

The Company recognizes revenues and estimated gross profit upon the attainment of scheduled performance
milestones under the percentage-of-completion method. The Company follows this method since contracts contain
well-defined performance milestones and the Company can make reasonably dependable estimates of costs to
complete applicable to various stages of the contract.

Revenues subject to contract accounting have been less than 10% of 1otal revenues for each of the fiscal years
2006, 2005 and 2004.

Product Warranty

The Company accrues for estimated warranty obligations when revenue is recognized based on an estimate of
future warranty costs for delivered products. Such estimates are based on historical experience and expectations of
future costs. The Company periodically evaluates and adjusts the accrued warranty costs to the extent actual
warranty costs vary from the original estimates. The Company's warranty period typically extends from one to five
years from the date of shipment. Costs associated with maintenance contracts, including extended warranty
contracts, are expensed when they are incurred. Actual warranty costs may differ from management’s estimates.

Legal Contingencies

In the ordinary course of business, the Company is involved in legal proceedings involving contractual and
employment relationships. product liability claims, patent rights, and a variety of other matters. The Company
records contingent liabilities resulting from asserted and unasserted claims against it, when it is probable that a
liability has been incurred and the amount of the loss is reasonably estimable. The Company discloses contingent
liabilities when there is a reasonable possibility that the ultimate loss will exceed the recorded liability. Estimating
probable losses requires analysis of multiple factors, in some cases including judgments about the potential actions
of third-party claimants and courts. Therefore, actual losses in any future period are inherently uncertain. Currently,
the Company does not believe any of its pending legal proceedings or claims will have a material impact on its
financial position or results of operations. However, if actual or estimated probable future losses exceed the
Company's recorded liability for such claims, it would record additional charges as other expense during the period
in which the actual loss or change in estimate occurred.

Shipping and Handling Costs

Shipping and handling costs are expensed as incurred and included in costs of revenue,

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and totaled $0.6 million, $0.4 million and $0.4 million for the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Share-Based Compensation

Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accounted for share-based employee compensation, including stock
options, using the methed prescribed in Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued
to Employees and related Interpretations (“APB Qpinion No. 257). Under APB Opinion No. 25, for stock options
granted at market price, no compensation cost was recognized, and a disclosure was made regarding the pro forma
effect on net earnings assuming compensation cost had been recognized in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation (“SFAS 123°). On December 16, 2004,
the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS No. 123 (Revised 2004), Share Based Payment
(“SFAS 123R™), which requires companies to measure and recognize compensation expense for all share-based
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account for share-based compensation transactions
h transactions be accounted for using prescribed fair-
s to adopt its requirements using one of two methods:
L:osts are recognized beginning with the effective date
ayments granted or modified after the effective date,
granted to employees prior to the effective date of
“modified retrospective” method which includes the
bove, but also permits companies to restate based on
}poses of pro forma disclosures either for all periods

presented, or prior interim periods of the year of adoption. Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted
SFAS 123R using the modified prospective method. Other than restricted stock, no share-based employee
compensation cost has been reflected in net income prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R. Results for prior periods
have not been restated.

Foreign Currency

ons use the U.S. dollar as the functional currency.
rom remeasurement are included in current earnings.

All of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries and divisj
Accordingly, foreign currency translation gains and losses f
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in local currency are remeasured at period end exchange rates whereas
non-monetary assets, including inventories and property, plant and equipment, are reflected at historical rates.
During the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004 the Company recorded net gains on re-measurement of
less than $0.1 million, $0.7 million, and less than $0.1 milljon, respectively. For the same periods, the Company
recorded net losses on transactions denominated in foreign currencies of $0.7 million, $2.0 million, and $1.9 mil-
lion, respectively. These amounts are included in the results of operations.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the
years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets
and liabilities of a change in tax laws (including rates) is recognized in income in the period that includes the
enactment date. See Note 17 regarding the valuation reserye against the Company’s deferred tax assets.

ixes on the undistributed earnings of its international
inion of management, will continue to be reinvested

The Company does not provide for federal income t3
subsidiaries becanse earnings are reinvested and, in the of
indefinitely.

Income (Loss) Per Share

& net income (loss) by the weighted-average number of
me per share reflects the potential dilution that could
number of common shares outstanding and potentially
warrants. [n 2006, potentially dilutive common shares

Basic income (loss) per share was computed by dividin
common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted inc
occur if the income were divided by the weighted-average |
dilutive common shares from outstanding stock options and

were calculated using the treasury stock method and repre
Company’s outstanding options and warrants. Potentially di
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dilutive loss per share as their impact would be anti-dilutive. The following table reconciles the weighted average
shares used in computing basic and diluted income (loss) per share in the respective years:

2006 2005 2004
Shares used in basic income (loss) per share calculation
(weighted average common shares outstanding). . . . . .. 53,248,194  52,395,00t 51,251,975
Effect of dilutive stock options and warrants. . ... ..., .. 717,382 — —
Shares used in diluted income (loss) per share
calculation . .. ... .. e e 53,963,576 52,395,001 51,251,975

Options and warrants are not included in the computation because they were anti-dilutive amounted to
6,368,871 and 9,941,747 for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company does not acquire, hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. Derivative
financial instrumeants are used to manage foreign exchange and interest rate risks that arise out of the Company’s
core business activities.

Derivative financial instruments used to manage foreign exchange risk are designated as hedging instruments
for hedges of foreign currency exposure of our net investment in foreign operations. The primary objective of our
hedging strategy is to protect our net investments in foreign subsidiaries and certain accounts receivable that are
exposed to volatility in foreign currency exchange rates. Financial hedging instruments used in this strategy are
limited by Company pelicy to foreign currency forward or option contracts and foreign currency debt. Changes in
the fair value of foreign-currency forward contracts are reported as foreign currency gains or losses in the statement
of operations. During 2006 and 2005, the Company had forward contracts in place to hedge its foreign currency
denominated net monetary assets in various foreign countries, including Brazil, the United Kingdom, Chile,
Australia and Sweden. The U.S. dollar amount of the contracts at December 31, 2006 and 2005 was $2.9 million and
$23.3 million, respectively. The total payable recorded under the contracts is reflected in accrued liabilities and was
less than $0.1 million as of December 31, 2006 and 2005.

Fair Value of Financial Instrumenis

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximate fair value due to the short maturity of those
instruments. The fair value of short-term investments is determined based on quoted market prices, which
approximate fair value. The fair value of sales-type leases and long-term obligations is estimated by discounting
the future cash flows required under the terms of each respective lease or debt agreement by current market rates for
the same or similar issues of leases or debt with similar remaining maturities. The fair value of financial hedge
instruments are based on quotes from brokers using market prices for those or similar instruments.

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Financial Accounting Standard Interpretation
No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes (“FIN 487). FIN 48 is an interpretation of SFAS 109 and it
secks to reduce the diversity in practice associated with certain aspects of measurement and recognition in
accounting for income taxes, In addition, FIN 48 requires expanded disclosure with respect to uncertainties in
income taxes. This interpretation is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The Company is
currently evaluating the impact, if any, that the adoption of FIN 48 on January 1, 2007 will have on its consolidated
financial statements.
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In September 2006, the FASB issued statement No. ]57i’ Fair Value Measurements (“SFAS 1577). SFAS 157
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States, and expands disclbsurcs about fair value measurements. SFAS 157 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after November 135, 200';], with earlier application encouraged. Any amounts
recognized upon adoption as a cumulative effect adjustment will be recorded to the opening balance of retained
earnings in the year of adoption. The Company has not yet ditermined the impact of this Statement on its financial
condition and results of operations.

3. Reclassification

Certain amounts in the prior-year financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the current year
presentation, including the results of operations and cash flows of the Company’s discontinued operations.

During the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company reclassified certain revenue generating activities from product
and other revenue into service revenues. The activities reclassified principally relate to repair services performed
primarily on a return to factory basis, application software deyelopment, and transaction management software. The
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reclassification was applied to all previous years and did not change net revenues or total costs of revenues. The
effects of the reclassification are summarized as follows;

December 31

2006 2005 2004
As previously reported:
Net revenue:
Product. . ... . e $209,622  $210,963  $214,239
SerVICeS . L e 38,943 34,260 27,046
Total netrevenue. . ........ ... 248,565 245,223 241,285
Costs of revenue:
Product. . . .. oo 130,683 144,649 123,419
EIVICES . ..o e e 28,857 27,442 20,721
Write-off of deferred contract costs . . ................ — — 11,305
Total costs of revenue . . ...t 159,540 172,091 155,445
Gross Margin . . . ... e $ 89,025 $ 73,132 % 85,840
As reclassified:
Net revenue:
Product. . . ... o e $191,286  $190,214 $192,468
SEIVICES .« it e 57,279 55,009 48,817
Total net revenue. .. ... i e 248,565 245,223 241,285
Costs of revenue:
Product. . ... .. . e 117,756 131,326 107,473
S EIVICES o o o oo e e 41,784 40,765 36,667
Write-off of deferred contract costs . . .. .............. — — 11,305
Total costsof revenue . . ......... ... .. .. .. 159,540 172,091 155,445
Gross Margin . ... ... vt $ 89,025 $ 73,132 $% 85,840
Changes:
Net revenue:
Product. . .. ... . e $(18,336) $(20,749) $(21,77D)
SBIVICES . .. it e e e e 18,336 20,749 21,771
Total net revenue. . . ... . ... i e e — — —
Costs of revenue:
Product. .. ... . o e (12,927) (13,323) (15,946)
SEIVICES . . i e e 12,927 13,323 15,946
Write-off of deferred contract costs . .. ............... — — —
Total costs of revenue . ... ... . i, — — —
Gross Margifl . ... oo ov ettt $ — 3 — 8 —
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4. Business Review and Restructuring Charges

During the latter part of March 2005, a change in senior management was made at the Company. New
management completed a comprehensive review of the Company’s financial performance; market strategy; products;
product development and life cycle management; and employge, customer and vendor relationships during 2005 (the
“2005 Business Review"). The objective of the 2005 Business Review was to create a plan to improve profitability and
customer relations, transition more rapidly to 32-bit technology products, rationalize operations and reorganize the
Company’s corporate structure. The 2005 Business Review resulted in the following actions:

+ Implementing an end-of-product-life cycle strategy,

with near term end-of-life requirements;

including identifying products and related inventory

» More aggressively addressing and correcting product performance issues, including negotiated warranty and
product trade-infirade-out programs required for the end-of-product-life cycle strategies;

« Implementing certain workforce reductions, including members of the senior management team, sales,
operations and manufacturing personnel, as well as moving certain research and development resources to
lower cost foreign geographies, and compensation plan changes;

+ Vacating a leased building in Phoenix, Arizona due 1o the reductions in force;

» Evaluating other assets and liabilities and evaluating| the past underlying operating decisions or strategies
supporting the future benefit of the assets or the probability of a liability;

« Addressing individual country/regional sales and profitability performance, and reallocating resources
based upon market share growth objectives by counfry to support the new strategies going forward;

» Investing in the implementation of a comprehensive product marketing function within the Company’s

organization; and

+ Evaluating opportunities for short, medium and long-term improvements in manufacturing costs.

As a result of actions arising from the 2005 Business Relview, total restructuring charges of $24.3 million were

recarded in 20035 of which $19.0 million were incurred duri

g the year ended December 31, 2005. The following

table sets forth the restructuring costs identified in conjunction with the 2005 Business Review, the actual costs
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incurred through December 31, 2006 and the ending accrued liability balance at December 31, 2006 (dollars in
thousands):

Total Costs Costs Costs Accruals Balance at
Expected to be Incurred Incurred Reversed December 31,
Incurred During 2005 During 2006 During 2006 2006
Costs of revenues:
Warranty charges and product
replacement accruals(a) ........... $ 7.374 $ 3,832 $1,294 $1,408 $ 840
Inventory write-downs, primarily for
product end-of-life decisions . ... ... 12,11 12,111 — — —
One-time termination benefits and
related employment costs . ... .. .. .. 469 351 118 — —
Total costs of revenue charges. . ... ... .. 19,954 16,294 1,412 1,408 840
Operating expenses:
One-time termination benefits and
related employment costs .. .. ... .. 3,370 2,551 623 196 —
Idled facility lease charge(b) ......... 1,013 195 267 — 551
Total operating expenses . .. ........... 4,383 2,746 890 196 551
Total charges. . ..................... $24,337 $19,040 $2,302 $1,604 $1,391

(a) These accrued liability balances are recorded as current product warranty liabilities as these amounts are expected
to be paid during 2007. Two customers that agreed to participate in the trade-in program in June 2005 for the
replacement of certain electronic payment equipment uitimately opted oul of the program. Accordingly, the
Company reduced its product warranty liabilities by $1.4 million in June 2006 upon the expiration of the program.

(b) The idled facility lease charge accrued liability is recorded in current accrued liabilities ($0.2 million) and other
long-term liabilities ($0.4 million) based on the timing of the projected lease payments that are scheduled
through 2011.
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5. Discontinued Qperations

The income (loss) from the Company’s discontinued operations for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005
and 2004 include the following (dollars in thousands):

2006 2005 2004
United Kingdom Lease Business:
NEt TEVENUES . © « v v vttt e e e i $3230 $14355 $13,870
Cost OFf TEVeNUES . . . . ...t i e e e 1,195 9,531 7,614
Gross profit. . ... . e 2,035 4,824 6,256
Selling, general and administrative expenses .. .......L............. (1,020) (1,397) (1,071}
Foreigncurrency loss ... ... ... . e (343) (340) (1,317
Loss on asset impairment .. .......... o vnenn i — {6,609) —
GainonSale........... .. 1,561 —_ —
2,233 (3,522) 3,868
Golden Eagle Leasing. .. ........ ... ..o oo — 399 —
Income (loss) from discontinued operations . . .. ........[.... ... ... ... $2233  $(3,123) $ 3,868

United Kingdom Lease Business

During the 2005 fourth quarter, the Company made the decision to sell its United Kingdom leasing business
(the “UK Lease Business™). As of December 31, 2005, the UK Lease Business qualified as discontinued operations
under SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Dispolsal of Long-Lived Assets (“SFAS 144”). Accordingly,
the UK Lease Business operating results have been clasmﬁed as discontinued operations in the statements of
operations and cash flows for all periods and the assets and habllmes of the UK Lease Business were considered
“held for sale” in the balance sheet as of December 31, 2005.

Effective May 31, 2006, the Company sold the UK Lease Business for $12.1 million (the “UK Lease Sale™).
The UK Lease Sale includes the lease arrangements with merchants and all related obligations and rights to
payment under such agreements. The UK Lease Sale agreement contains covenants and indemnification provisions
which could result in additional liabilities to the Company if certain events occur or fail to occur in the future.

The assets of the UK Lease Business’ discontinued operations held for sale consist of the following at
December 31, 2005 (dollars in thousands):

2005
Prepaid expenses and other current assets . . ... ... 0. .. ... L o i $ 57
Net investment in sales-type leases ... ........... | ........................... 10,782
Property, plant and equipment, net . . ............ | ........................... 475
L 41T o 1 S N 1,299
Assets of discontinued operations held forsale ... .. 1......... ... ... ..., $12,613

Golden Eagle Leasing

During the first quarter of 2005, the Company recorded income from discontinued operations of $0.4 million
principally relating to the release of excess reserves no longer required due to the expiration of the indemnification
period under the Golden Eagle Leasing purchase and sale agreement.

69




-

HYPERCOM CORPORATION
| NOTES TQ CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
| December 31, 2006

6. Restricted Cash

The Company’s restricted cash balance of $0.2 million at December 31, 2006 consists of foreign irrevocable
letters of guarantee required by two customers.

7. Sale of Real Property in Hong Kong

During September 2006, the Company completed the sale of its real property in Hong Kong for $5.2 miilion.
The Company received deposits totaling $0.5 miltion on the sale in the second quarter of 2006 and the balance of
$4.7 million in September 2006. The Company recorded a gain of $3.0 million on the sale in the third quarter of
2006. This amount has been included as a separate line within operating expenses.

8. Short-term Invesiments

The Company’s shori-term investments are classified as available-for-sale and recorded at fair market value.
As of December 31, 2006 and 20035, amortized cost of the Company’s short-term investments equaled fair market
value. Accordingly, there were no unrealized gains and losses as of December 31, 2006 and 2005.

Proceeds from the sale of available-for-sale securities amounted to $307.1 million, $230.0 million and
$37.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Gross realized gains and losses
from the sale of available-for-sale securities were not material for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005.

The Company’s short-term investments consisted of the following at December 31, 2006 and 2005 (dollars in

thousands):
2006 2005
Municipal debt sectirities. . . ... ... ... $10,400 $10,500
U.S. government and agency debt securities. . ......................... 5,977 23,439
Corporate debt SeCUrIties . . . . .. .. .. ..t e e 23,001 10,012
Preferred equity securities . .. . ... ... . e 7,850 14,000

$47,228  $57,951

At December 31, 2006, all of the Company’s U.S. government and agency debt securities mature within
calendar year 2007. All other short-term investments consist of commercial papers and Auction Rate securities that
may have maturity dates exceeding 5 years, however, they reset in 7, 28 or 35-day intervals. Based on the frequency
of the auction reset periods, the fair market value approximates cost.

9. Inventories

Inventories consist of the following at December 31, 2006 and 2005 (dollars in thousands):

2006 2008
Purchased parts. .. ... ... ... . $24,367 324,118
WOTK D PrOgress . . e 6.008 3,609
Finished goods . .. ... ... . e 22,257 11,687

352,632 $39414
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10. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment consist of the following at

Land and improvements

Buildings . ... ... ... .
Computer equipment and software . ..............
Machinery and equipment
Equipment leased to customers . . ................

Furniture and fixtures

Leasehold improvements. .. ....................
Construction in process

Less accumulated depreciation

Depreciation expense from continuing operations, which
was $6.3 million, $6.7 million and $7.2 milliocn for the

respectively.

11. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consist of the following at December

Capitalized software

Unpatented technology

During 2005, the Company recorded a $0.4 million charg
determined had no future value.

Amortization expense related to intangible assets used in

2006

December 31, 2006 and 2005 {dollars in thousands):

2006 2005
................. $ 4743 % 4,743
................. 12,753 15,133
................. 23,956 20,656
................. 27,143 23,318
................. 1,004 1,195
................. 4,945 4,803
................. 3,118 3,156
................. 375 448
78,037 73,452
................. (50,776)  (45,706)
$27,261  $27,746

includes depreciation for assets under capital lease,
ears ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,

B1, 2006 and 2005 (dollars in thousands):

2006 2005
................... 35068 $5039
................... 2,300 —
................... 884 24
8,852 5,063
................... 3,119y (1,560)
$5733  $3,503

e to write-off other intangible assets that management

continuing operations was $1.6 million, $1.1 million

and $1.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Based on the intangibles

assets recorded at December 31, 2006, and assuming no subse
amortization expense for each period, is expected to be as fo
$0.6 million for 2009, and $0.5 million for 2010.
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12. Product Warranty

The following table reconciles the changes to the product warranty liability for the years ended December 31,
2006 and 2005 (dollars in thousands):

2006 2005
Balance at beginning of period . . .., .. ... ... .. . e $5534 $143
Warranty charges to normal operations . . ............. ..., ., 1,533 1,552
Warranty (reversal)/charges related to the 2005 Business Review . . . ... ...... (1,408) 7,374
Utilization of warranty liability. . ... .. ... ... .. ... ... ... .. ... . ... . ... (3,023) (4,826)
Balance atend of period .. ........ ... ... ... ... .. .. ... ... ... 52636 $553

Warranty charges related to the 2005 Business Review consist of costs for the trade-in of certain electronic
payment equipment that the Company has elected to grant customers as a result of higher than expected repair
occurrences. Two customers that agreed to participate in the trade-in program in June 2005 for the replacement of
certain electronic payment equipment ultimately opted out of the program. Accordingly, the Company reduced its
product warranty liabilities by $1.4 million in June 2006 upon the expiration of the program.,

Deferred revenue associated with the Company’s extended warranty programs was $1.8 million and $1.1 million
at December 31, 2006 and 2003, respectively.
13. Long-term Debt
Debt Instruments

Long-term debt consists of the following at December 31, 2005 (dollars in thousands):

2005
Floating Rate Option Note payable to a bank:
Note is payable in semi-annual installments plus interest at a variable rate, due April 1,
2019; collateralized by unconditional, irrevocable, direct pay letter of credit , ., .. ... .. $ 8,327
Other . . e e 50
8,377
Current portion of long-term debt . .. ... ... ... . ... (8,355)
Long-term debt. . . ... . e e e 3 22

In April 2006, the Company fully repaid the cutstanding balance of $8.2 million under its Floating Rate Option
Note payable to Bank One, Arizona.

On March 31, 2006, the Company entered into a line of credit agreement with a bank, pursuant to which the
Company has access to a $5.0 million line of credit. Borrowings under the line of credit agreement are fully
collateralized by short-term investments held in the Company’s investment accounts with the bank. Any borrowings
will bear interest at a rate set forth in each promissory note issued at the time of the advance. The Credit Agreement
contains customary default provisions and will expire on March 31, 2008.

14. Share-Based Compensation

Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accounted for share-based employee compensation, including stock
options, using the method prescribed in APB No. 25. Under APB No. 25, for stock options granted at market price,
no compensation cost was recognized, and a disclosure was made regarding the pro forma effect on net earnings
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assuming compensation cost had been recognized in accordzfnce with SFAS 123. Effective January 1, 2006, the
Company adopted SFAS 123R using the modified prospective method.

The consolidated statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2006 reflects share-based
compensation expense of $6.3 million, including $1.0 million of payroll tax paid on behalf of employees that
received stock awards. Of this amount, the Company allocated $0.2 million; $0.9 million and $5.2 million to cost of
goods sold; research and development; and selling, general and administrative expenses, respectively, based on the
department to which the associated employee reported. The Company recognized share-based compensation
expense of $0.8 million in selling, general and administrali:l}; expense for the year ended December 31, 2005 in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards'No. {23, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation
(“SFAS 1237},

The effect of SFAS 123R reduced income before income tax expense and net income for the year ended
December 31, 2006 by $3.9 million. As a result, basic and dilutkd earnings per share were reduced by $0.07 each. As
of December 31, 2006 total unrecognized compensation cost, net of forfeiture, related to stock-based options and
awards was $5.7 million and the related weighted-average pleriod over which it is expected to be recognized is
approximately 1.4 years.

Stock Options

At December 31, 2006, the Company had four active share-based employee compensation plans. Stock option
awards granted from these plans are granted at the fair market value on the date of grant, and vest over a period
determined at the time the options are granted, generally ranging from one to five years, and generally have a
maximum term of ten years. For stock options with graded vasting terms, the Company recognizes compensation
cost over the requisite service period on the accelerated method prescribed by Financial Accounting Standard
Interpretation No. 28, Accounting for Stock Appreciation Rights and Other Variable Stock Option Award Plans,
("FIN 28") rather than the straight-line method.

A summary of stock option activity within the Company’s share-based compensation plans and changes for the
year ended December 31, 2006 is as follows:

Weighted
Average
Weighted Remaining
Number of| Average Contractual Aggregate
Qptions Exercise Price Term Intrinsic Value
(In Thousands)
Outstanding at December 31, 2006 ... ... 3,726,642 8.04 6.18 $1,880
Vested and expected to vest at
December 31,2006 ................ 3,496,209 $8.01 3.99 31,857
Exercisable at December 31, 2006. ...... 2,249,50& $7.17 4.31 $1,732

|
||

The aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised during|the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
was $3.9 million, $3.8 million and $5.1 million, respectively.
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The wetghted average fair value of stock option awards granted and the key assumptions used in the Black-
Scholes valuation mode! to calculate the fair value are as follows:

2006 2005 2004

Weighted average risk free interestrate. . .. .. ... ... v 48% 4.1% 32%
Expected life of the options (inyears) ........... ... ... .. 548 577 698
Expected stock price volatility . ... ... .. ... ... ... L. . 67% 5% 86%

Expected dividend yield . . .. ... ... — — —

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options
which have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models require the input
of highly subjective assumptions, including the expected stock price volatility. Because changes in the subjective
input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in management’s opinion, the existing models do not
necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of its employee stock options. The risk-free interest
rate is based on the U.S. treasury security rate in effect as of the date of grant. The expected lives of options and
stock price volatility are based on historical data of the Company. The weighted average fair value of options
granted in the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $5.90, $4.11 and $5.07, respectively.

The following tabie illustrates the effect on net loss and net loss per common share for the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2004 as if the Company had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123 to all
outstanding stock option awards for periods presented prior to the Company’s adoption of SFAS 123R (amounts in
thousands, except per share data and weighted average shares):

2005 2004

Net loss, a5 reported. .. ... ..ottt e $§ (33,366) § (8,662)
Add stock-based employee compensation expense included in reported

ML 088 & ottt e e e e e 828 405
Deduct total stock-based employee compensation expense determined

under fair value methods forawards . . ...................... (2,837) (2,680)
Add reversal of stock-based compensation expense for options

forfeited prior to vesting . .. ... ... . .. i 2,694 266
Proforma net JOSS . oo v ve i e e e e $ (32681) $ (10,671)
Net loss per share:
Basic,asreported. ... ... ... .. 3 064 $ 017
Basic, pro fOTmMa . ... ... e e ) 062y $ 02D
Diluted, asreported ... ... ... ... $ 064y $ 017
Diluted, pro forma . . .. .. .. e $ {0.62) % (0.21)
Weighted average shares used in pro forma computation:
BasiC . . . e 52,395,001 51,251,975
Diluted . ... ... e e 52,395,001 51,251,975

Restricted Stock Awards

The Company also grants restricted stock awards to certain employees. Restricted stock awards are valued at
the closing market value of the Company’s commen stock on the date of grant, and the total value of the award is
expensed ratably over the service period of the employees receiving the grants.
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Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Under SFAS 123R, the Company's 1997 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “Purchase Plan™} is considered
compensatory. During the year ended December 31, 2006) the Company recorded compensation expense of
$78,000 related to the Purchase Plan.

15. Stockholders’ Equity

During 1997, the Company’s Board of Directors (the “Board”) approved the Hypercom Corporation Long-
Term Incentive Plan which was amended in 2001 (the “1937 Plan™), to allocate a total of 6,000,000 shares of
common stock for issuance at the Company’s discretion. 'I'htl: 1997 Plan authorizes issuance of incentive “stock
options” (as defined by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986), nlon-qualiﬁed stock options, stock appreciation rights,
restricted stock awards, performance share awards, dividend eéuivalenl awards and other stock-based awards. Stock
options issued under the 1997 Plan become exercisable over a period determined by the Board (generally over three
to five years) and expire ten years after the date of grant.

In July 2000, the Board approved the Hypercom Corporation 2000 Broad-Based Stock Incentive Plan, which
was amended in 2002 {the “2000 Plan™), to allocate 7,000,000 shares of common stock for issuance at the
Company’s discretion. The 2000 Plan authorizes the issuance of non-qualified stock options and restricted stock
awards, the majority of which must be issued to employees ofjthe Company who are not officers or directors. Non-
qualified stock options issued under the 2000 Plan become exercisable over a period determined by the Board, and
expire after a period determined by the Board.

Stock Options

A summary of the Company’s stock option activity and related information for the years ended December 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004 is as follows:

2006 2005 2004
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Shares Average Shares Average Shares Average
Under Exercise Under Exercise Under Exercise
Option Price Option Price Option Price
Beginning balance
outstanding . ....... 4,321,744 $6.88 8.610,291 $6.75 10,056,327 $6.26
Granted. . ........... 1,083,500 9.54 1}041,500 6.08 212,500 8.38
Exercised ........... (1,060,942) 4.38 (11811,639) 383 (1,492,686) 344
Cancellations. . ....... {617,660) 8.73 (31518,408) 7.89 (165,850) 8.92
Ending balance
outstanding . ....... 3,726,642 $8.04 41321744 $6.88 8,610,291 $6.75

Exercisable at end of
year. .. ........... 2,249,506 $7.77

(78]

227,802 $7.13 7,056,279 $6.98
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The following table summarizes additional information about the Company’s stock options ouistanding as of
December 31, 2006:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Shares Average Average Shares Average
Under Remaining Exercise Under Exercise

Range of Exercise Prices Option Contractual Life Price Option Price
$246- 350 ... ... ... 424 375 4,18 $349 421,875 $ 349
$352- 528 ..., 371,673 6.26 4.83 277,158 4.69
$548- 625 ... ... ... ... 373,750 7.00 6.08 244,166 6.09
$628- 929 ..., . ... 877,250 8.47 7.19 242,832 6.71
$9031- 938 ... .. 267,500 310 9.37 267,500 9.37
$940-1000 ............... 325,100 2.60 9.65 262,460 9.59
$1025-1488 . .............. 1,086,994 5.98 11.46 533,515 12.3]

3,726,642 2,249,506

Restricted Stock Awards

The Company grants resiricted stock awards to certain employees. Resincted siock awards are valued at the
closing market value of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant, and the total value of the award is
expensed ratably over the service period of the employees receiving the grants. Share-based compensation expense
related to all restricted stock awards outstanding in 2006, 2005, and 2004 was approximately $1.4 million,
$0.8 million and $0.4 million, respectively. As of December 31, 2006, the total amount of unrecognized
compensation cost related to nonvested restricted stock awards was approximately $1.2 million, which is expected
to be recognized over a weighted-average period of less than one year, Compensation expense with respect to the
grants could be reduced and/or reversed to the extent employees receiving the grants leave the Company prior to
vesting in the award.
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years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 is as

Weighted
Average
Nonvested Shares Grant Date Fair
Qutstanding Value per Share
Balance at December 31,2003 .. ... ... ... .. o . o, 124,224 4.83
Shares granted in 2004, . ... ... ...l 60.000 6.00
Sharesvesledin2004........................l ......... (56,936) 4.83
Shart:sfc;)rfeitedin2004.......................| ......... (10,352) 4.83
Balance at December 31,2004, . ....... ... ... .. o ... ... 116,936 5.43
Shares granted in 2005. . .. ... .. ... o oo 464,000 6.20
Shares vested in 2005 . ... ... ... ... .. oLl e (104,348) 478
Shares forfeited in 2005 . . .. ... .. .. ... .. L oo (74,588) 6.04
Balance at December 31, 2005. . ... ... ... ... ... ] . oo, 402,000 6.38
Shares granted in 2006. . ... . ....... ... .. L o, 92,432 8.40
Shares vested in 2006 . .. ... ... .. ... ..o oo (102,000} 6.36
Shares forfeited in 2000, . .. ... ... .. . o e (50,000) 6.42
Balance at December 31,2006.................|. ... ..., 342,432 $6.92

The total fair value of restricted shares vested during the
$0.6 million $0.5 million, and $0.3 million, respectively.

Stock Warrants

years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was

During April 2004, the Company issued 742,257 shares of common stock, par value $0.001 per share, upon the
conversion of 742,257 Series C Warranis at an exercise price of $3.91 per share. Proceeds from the conversion

amounted to $2.9 million.

During July 2006, the Company issued 319,858 shares ¢

f common stock, par value $0.001 per share, upon the

conversion of 319,858 Series D Warrants at an exercise price of $5.21 per share. Proceeds from the conversion

amounted to $1.7 million.

There are no other warrants outstanding at December 31, 2006.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

During September 1997, the Board adopted and the stoclkholders of the Company approved the Purchase Plan.
The Purchase Plan allows eligible employees of the Company to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock
through periodic payroll deductions every three months. At the end of each offering period, payroll deductions for
the offering period are used to purchase shares of common stock for each participant’s account at a price equal 10
85% of the fair market value of the common stock on either the first or last day of the offering period, whichever is

less. Payroll deductions under the Purchase Plan are limited t

10% of each eligible employee’s earnings during the

offering period, and no single participant will be granted ah option to purchase shares with a value in excess of
$25,000 for each calendar year. The Board has reserved 625,000 shares of common stock for issuance under the

Purchase Pian, subject to adjustment in the event of a stock sp

lit, reverse stock split, stock dividend or similar event.

Under the Purchase Plan, for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004 the Company sold 58,642, 61.382

and 49,889 shares to employees at weighted average priceg
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Directors’ Stock Plan

During September 1997. the Board adopted and the stockholders of the Company approved the Hypercom
Corporation Nonemployee Directors’ Stock Option Plan (the “Director Plan™). The Director Plan is administered
by a committee appointed by the Board and provides for an initial grant to each Nonemployee Director of an option
to purchase 15,000 shares of Common Stock; thereafter, each Nonemployee Director will receive an annual grant of
options to purchase 15,000 shares of Common Stock. The aggregate number of shares of Common Stock subject to
the Director Plan may not exceed 600,000, subject to adjustment in the event of a stock split, reverse stock split,
stock dividend or similar event. Options granted under the Director Plan are fully vested and become fully
exercisable on the first anniversary of the date of grant and have a term of ten years. The exercise price per share
under the Director Plan is equal to the fair market value of such shares upon the date of grant. In general, options
may be exercised by payment in cash or a cash equivalent, and/or previously acquired shares having a fair market
value at the time of exercise equal to the total option exercise price.

Stock Repurchase

During August 2003, the Board authorized a stock repurchase program to allow the purchase of up to
$10.0 million of the Company’s common stock. During November 2005, the Board authorized a new stock
repurchase program to purchase up to an additional $20.0 million of the Company’s common stock. When treasury
shares are issued, the Company uses a first-in, first-out method and any excess of repurchase costs over the reissue
price is treated as a reduction of paid in capital. Any excess of reissue price over repurchase cost is treated as an
increase to paid-in capital.

During 2006 and 2003, the Company purchased 1,346,628 and 1,525,409 shares of its common stock for $10.7
and $9.2 million, respectively. There were no treasury stock repurchases during 2004, The repurchased shares were
recorded as treasury stock and result in a reduction to stockholder’s equity. As of December 31, 2006, the Company
had repurchased 2,932,037 shares of common stock at an average price per share of 3$6.86 under the share
repurchase programs. The timing and amount of any future repurchases will depend on market conditions and
corporate considerations.

Preferred Stock

The Company is anthorized to issue 10,000,000 shares of $0.001 par value preferred stock. As of December 31,
2006 and 2003, there were no preferred shares outstanding.

16. Brazitian Health Ministry Contract

The Company has been involved in a long-term contract with the Brazilian Health Ministry requiring
substantial delivery of customized software and hardware. Revenue and a resulting margin under this contract were
recorded based on the achievement of contract milestones approved by the Brazilian Health Ministry in accordance
with Statement of Position 81-1, Accounting for Performance of Construction-Type and Certain Production-Type
Contracts. The margin for the entire contract was estimated to be 9%. Inherent in this margin was an expectation of
realizing all amounts owed vnder the terms of the original contract and recovering claims for additional contract
revenue, due to changes in the scope of the contract and additional currency exchange variation adjustments. Scope
changes invelved expanding the overall design specifications requiring additional hours and administration costs.
The currency adjustments represented the inflation of cost on imported equipment caused by currency movements.
At the end of 2003, the Company formally presented a claim to the Brazilian Health Ministry detailing the amount
and nature of the scope changes and currency variation impact.

The Company did not recognize revenues above the original contract amount, and contract costs associated
with the scope changes and currency adjustments amounting to $11.3 million at June 30, 2004 were deferred in
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act costs were reported within other current assets and
act performance.

¢ contract expired and the Brazilian Health Ministry
enance element of the contract. However, no formal
he maintenance element of the contract and no official
ing claim, The Company believed that the delay in

payment and extension of the maintenance element of the ceniract related to an alleged internal scandat within the

Brazilian Health Ministry, which the Company believes is
claim, but nevertheless, casts doubt and concern over the a

| , .
nnrelated to the Company or the Company’s pending
bility to recover, timely, the amounts owed under the

contract. Accordingly. due to the lack of timely acknowledgement and acceptance of the pending claim, the
expiration of the contract during April 2004 and the delay in the negotiation of the extension of the maintenance
element of the contract, the Company recorded a $12.9 million charge to operations during the second quarter of
2004 for all remaining amounts recorded under the contract. The charge consisted of an $11.3 million write-off of
deferred contract costs, recorded in cost of revenues and presented separately in the statement of operations, and a
$1.6 million reserve against accounts receivable, that was recorded in selling expense. Since the second quarter
2004, the Company has received $1.6 million from the Brazilian Health Ministry, and, accordingly, the $1.6 million
accounts receivable reserve was reversed during the second half of 2004. The Company continues to perform
maintenance for the Brazilian Health Ministry and all costs related to the maintenance incurred after June 30, 2004
have been expensed as incurred. These costs are not materjal for all periods presented.

The Company is actively pursuing discusstons with the %razilian Health Ministry regarding both the collection
of the contract costs as well as renewal of the maintenance element of the contract; however, there is no certainty as
to how much will ultimately be collected, whether revenud for work previously done will be recorded or if the
maintenance element of the contract will ultimately be extenided. The Company collected $0.9 million in 2006 and
no amounts were collected from Brazil Health Ministry during 2005 or in the six months ended December 31, 2004.

17. Income Taxes

Income (loss) before income taxes and discontinued operations consists of the following for the years ended

December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 (dollars in thousands)

2006 2005 2004
Income (loss) before income taxes and discontinued gperations:
United States . .. ... ... ... i $(18,952) $(14,645) $ 1,048
Foreign . ... ... .. e 25,035 (12,072)  (9,745)
$ 6083 $(26,717) $(8,697)

The provision for income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 is as follows (dollars in
thousands):

2006 2005 2004
Current:
AL . . e $ 3 % 5y % 59
Foreign. ... ... .o 813 3,312 3,774
816 3,307 3,833
Deferred — Foreign . ........ .. ... .0l 530 219 —
Total. . oo e $1,346  $3,526  §3,833
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A reconciliation of the U.S. Federal statutory income tax rate to the Company’s effective tax rate for the years

ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 is as follows:

2006 2005 2004

Tax expense (benefit) at the federal statutory rate . . ................. 350% 35.0% 35.0%
State income taxes, net of federal income tax effect. . ................ 0.0 0.0 (V)]
Foreign taxes .. . .. ... e (119.7) (28.9) (81.5)
Tax credits . . .. .. 0.0 3.0 59
Translation gain . . ... .. L. 19.7 2.6 2.1
Change in valuation allowance .. .......... ... ... . ... .. ... ... 850 (24.8) (27.0)
UK loss recapture. . .. ... ..., ..........., e 0.0 0.0 23.1
Other . 1.6 0.1y (1.0
Effective tax rate . . ... ..t e e e e 21.6% (13.2)% (44.1)%

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant
components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31, 2006 and 2005 are as follows
(dollars in thousands):

2006 2005
Deferred 1ax assets (liabiliies), current:
Inventory valuation and reserves . ... . ... .. ... i e $ 2447 § 3,785
Compensation accruals . . ... ... ... e 1,059 1,059
Allowance for doubtful accounts . ... ....... ... ... ... ... 37 549
Foreign, net . . ... .t s 1,895 3,757
OhEr . . e 15 9
Valuation allowance . ... ..., . .. ... i e i e (4,762) (9,037
Deferred tax assets, CUMTENL. . .. ...ttt i ettt e $ 691 § 122
Deferred tax assets (liabilities), non-current:
Tax loss carry forwards - United States .. ......................... $26662 319999
Tax loss carry forwards - Foreign. . ... ... ... ... . i oo, 23,581 23,229
Intangibles . . ... .o e 201 179
Property, plant and equipment . . .. ... .. ... ... .. ..o L o L., 103 106
Foreign. . . ... . e e (380) (341)
01 = 6,035 6,212
Valuation allowance . ... ... .. ... ... . . e {56,582) (49,725)
Net deferred tax liabilities, non-current . . .. . . ... .. .t $ (380) % (341

For the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company’s valuation allowance increased by $2.6 million,
primarily related to a loss from operations in the United States. The Company does not believe it is more likely than
not that it will be able to realize the majority of its deferred tax asset through expected future taxable profits and has
recorded a full valuation allowance for all U.S. Federal and State deferred tax assets and primarily alt foreign
deferred tax assets. The valuation allowance is subject to reversal in future years at such time the benefits are
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actually utilized or, the operating profits become sustainable at a level that meets the recoverability criteria under
SFAS 109, Accounting for Income taxes (“SFAS 109™).

At December 31, 2006, the Company has a gross deferred tax asset of $26.7 million associated with its U.S.
Federal and State 1ax net operating loss carryforwards of $166 5 million. The U.S. Federal and State net operating
loss cartyforwards will begin to expire in 2019 through 2026 if not previously utilized.

As of December 31, 2006, the Company has a gross deferred tax asset of $23.6 million associated with foreign
net operating loss carryforwards of $73.9 million. The forei&n net operating loss carryforwards begin to expire in
various periods if not previously utilized.

It is the Company’s policy to establish reserves for taxes that may become probable in future years as a result of
an examination by tax authorities. The Company establishés the reserves based upon its assessment of exposure
associated with permanent tax differences, tax credits, and interest expense applied 1o temporary difference
adjustments. The tax reserves are analyzed periodically a1nd adjustments are made as events occur 10 warrant
adjustment to the reserves.

The Company does business in a number of different| countries. Tax authorities may scrutinize the various
structures employed by the Company in these countries. The Company believes that it maintains adequate tax
reserves, including its valuation allowance, to offset the potential liabilities that may arise upon audit in these
countries. If such amounts ultimately prove to be unnecessary, the resulting reversal of such reserves would resultin
tax benefits being recorded in the period the reserves are ng fonger deemed necessary. If such amounts ultimately
prove to be less than the ultimate assessment, a future charge to expense or reduction of the Company’s valuation
allowance would result. In addition, any potential tax liabilities that may arise upon audit could affect the individual
items that comprise the Company’s deferred tax asset balance.

18. Profit Sharing Plan

The Company has a 401(k) profit sharing plan (the “401(k) Plan™), which commenced in fiscal 1998, covering
all eligible full-time employees of the Company. Contributions to the 401(k) Plan are made by the participants to
their individual accounts through payroll withholding. Additionally, the 401(k) Plan provides for the Company to
make profit sharing contributions to the 401(k) Plan in amounts at the discretion of management. The employer
contribution for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $0.1 million, $0.1 million and $0.3 million,
respectively.

19. Commitments and Contingencies
The Company had $0.6 million and $4.1 million accrued at December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005,
respectively, for commitments and contingencies.
Lease Commitments
The Company leases office and warehouse space, equipment and vehicles under non-cancelable operating
Jeases. The office space leases provide for annual rent payments plus a share of taxes, insurance and maintenance on

the properties.

81




HYPERCOM CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
December 31, 2006

Future minimum payments under operating leases for the years ending December 31 are as follows (dollars in
thousands):

200 . e e $2,022
2008 . e e e e 1,438
2009 L e e 723
200 e e e e 417
(1) I 164

$4,764

Rental expense from continning operations amounted (o $3.0 million, $2.9 million and $2.9 million for the
years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

Litigation

The Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of its
business. Although there can be no assurance as to the ultimate disposition of these matters and the proceedings
disclosed above, it is the opinion of the Company’s management, based upon the information available at this time,
that the expected outcome of these matters, individually or in the aggregate, will not have a material adverse effect
on the Company’s results of operations or financial condition.

International Taxes

In the ordinary course of business, there are many transactions and calculations where the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. The Company believes it maintains adequate 1ax reserves to offset potential liabilities
that may*arise upon audit. Although the Company believes its tax estimates and associated reserves are reasonable,
the final determination and any related litigation could be materially different than the amounts established for tax
contingencies. To the extent that such estimates ultimately prove to be inaccurate, the associated reserves would be
adjusted resulting in the Company recording a benefit or expense in the period for which it makes a final
determination.

20. Business Acquisitions

On December 14, 2006, the Company acquired the technology and assets of TPI Software, LLC (“TPI"”), a
provider of personal computer and enterprise server-based credit/debit/gift card, EBT, automated clearing house
and electronic check processing software. The purchase price was $8.5 million in cash, of which $1.4 million is
being held by a third party escrow company pending the resolution of certain contingencies related to the validity
and accuracy of the representations and warranties by the selling principals over a stated period of time and the
achievement of software development goals related to the creation of a new wireless gateway using the core
technology acquired by the Company. This amount is included in non-current other assets. Approximately
$0.2 million of the purchase price has been recorded as payment of compensation in advance, and will be
amortized into operating expenses over the contingency period. In addition to the purchase price, the Company paid
for acquisition-related costs, including professional fees that amounted to less than $0.1 million.

The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase business combination in accordance with SFAS No. 141,
Business Combinations, and accordingly, the results of TPI's operations are included in the Company’s consol-
idated results from the date of the acquisition. The acquisition was not considered significant under the rules and
regulations of the SEC (Rule 3-05 of Regulation 5-X). Proforma financial information is not presented since the
historical operating results of TPI were not significant when compared 1o those of the Company.
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The amount paid in excess of the fair value of the net tangible assets has been allocated to separately
identifiable intangible assets based upon an independent valuation analysis. An allocation of $1.0 million of the
purchase price was assigned to in-process research and development and was written off at the date of the
acquisition in accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 4, “Applicability of FASB Statement No. 2, Business
Combinations Accounted for by the Purchase Method”

An allocation of approximately $2.7 million of the purchase price was made to goodwill in accordance with
SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets and is included in other long-term assets, TPI was in its early
stages of operation and did not have the Company’s capabilitiEs in manufacturing, marketing, sales and distribution,
thereby resulting in the Company paying a premium over fair value of tangible and intangible assets acquired. The
Company expects to be able to utilize the acquired technolof;ies in its other products separate from those acquired
from TPL Goodwill related to the acquisition will not be amartized but will be subject to periodic impairment tests.
None of the goodwill is expecied to be deductible for tax purposes.

An allocation of $3.2 million of the purchase price was made to core technology and other identifiable

intangible assets and will be amortized over their estimated useful lives of two to ten years.

21. Concentrations of Credit and Other Risks
Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments that are exposed to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash
and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, marketable securities, and long-term marketable securities.

The Company’s cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments are maintained with major, high-quality
international banks and financial institutions, Generally, these securities are traded in a highly liquid market, may be

redeemed upon demand and bear minimal risk. Managemen
these investments and the Company has not experienced

equivalents at times may exceed the F.D.1.C limits. The Comg

risk exists with respect to these cash investments.

The Company’s accounts receivable resuit primarily fro
and internationally, with a concentration generally existing
customers amounted to 25.9%. 31.6% and 28.5% of the Com
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. These same five custom
net accounts receivable balance at December 31, 2006 an

customer totaled 10.8%, 12.1% and 10.8% of total revenue

The Company routinely assesses the financial strength ¢

foreign customers, and provides an allowance for doubtful

Inventories

regularly monitors the composition and maturities of
any material loss on its investments. Cash and cash
»any believes that no significant concentration of credit

m credit sales to 2 broad customer base, both nationally
nmong five to ten customers. The Company’s top five
bany’s Lotal revenues for the years ended December 31,
ers accounted for 21.4% and 22.3% of the Company’s
d 2005, respectively. Sales to the Company’s largest
s in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

yf its customers, requiring letters of credit from certain
accounts as necessary.

Most components used in the Company's systems are purchased from outside sources. Certain components are

purchased from single suppliers. The failure of any such supplier to meet its commitment on schedule could have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s business, operating results and financial condition. If a sole-source
supplier were 10 go out of business or otherwise become upable to meet its supply commitments, the process of
locating and qualifying alternate sources could require up to several months, during which time the Company’s
production could be delayed. Such delays could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business,
operating results and financial condition.
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The Company estimates inventory provisions for potentially excess and obsolete inventory on a part level basis
based on forecasted demand and historical usage. Actual demand may differ from such anticipated demand and may
have a material adverse effect on inventory valuation.

International Operations

The Company’s international business is an important contributor to the Company’s net revenue and operating
results. However, a substantial portion of the Company’s international sales are denominated in the U.S. dollar, and
an increase in the value of the U.S. doilar relative to foreign currencies could make products sold internationally less
competitive. The operating expenses of the Company's overseas offices are paid in local currencies and are subject
to the effects of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates.

The Company’s primary manufacturing operations are located in China. In addition to our Chinese manu-
facturing capacity, we outsource the manufacture of certain products 1o a contract manufacturer in Poland and
maintain a final assembly operation in Brazil. Foreign manufacturing is subject to certain risks, including the
imposition of tariffs and import and export controls, together with changes in governmental policies. The
occurrence of any of these events could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, operating
results and financial condition.

The Company maintained significant accounts receivable balances in the Europe and Latin America regions,
comprising 61.9% and 51.5%, respectively, of the Company’s net accounts receivable balance at December 31,
2006 and 2005. These balances are subject to the economic risks inherent to those regions.

22. Subsequent Events
Business Acquisition

On February 8, 2007, the Company acquired the assets of ACG Group Pty Limited (“ACG"), a provider of
installation, technical support and help desk services for point-of-sale equipment in Australia. The purchase price
was approximately $12.3 million, of which $0.9 million is being held by a third party escrow company pending the
resolution of certain contingencies. The acquisition will be accounted for as a purchase business combination in
accordance with SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations, and accordingly, the results of ACG’s operations will be
included in the Company’s consolidated results from the date of the acquisition, The acquisition was not considered
significant under the rules and regulations of the SEC (Rule 3-05 of Regulation $-X). Proforma financial
information will not be presented since the histoncal operating results of ACG are not significant when compared
to those of the Company.

Sale of Headgquarter Facilities

In February 2007, the Company listed its headquarter facilities, located in Phoenix, Arizona, for sale and will
seek new lease factlities in Phoenix in 2007. The net book value of the headquarter facilities at December 31, 2006
was $11.7 million and it is included in property, plant and equipment. The facilities will be classified as an asset held
for sale in accordance with SFAS 144, Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of by Sale, in 2007.

23. Segment, Geographic, and Customer Information

Segment

The Company’s continuing operations consist solely of one business segment: electronic payment products
and services. The electronic payment products and services business segment develops, manufactures, markets, and
supports products and transaction-network systems that automate electronic payment transactions at the point of
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sale in merchant establishments as well as supporting non-payment applications and new markets, including
government, education and healthcare.

Geographic

Net revenues to external customers are based on the location of the customer. Geographic information as of and
for each of the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 is presented in the table below (dollars in
thousands):

Europe,
Middle
North America Latin America Asin/Pacific East and Africa Total
2006:
Revenues . . ........... $80,860 $64,715 $35,514 $67,476 $248,565
Long-lived assets . ... ... 28,321 7,87 2,522 2,279 40,996
2005:
Revenues . ............ $96,681 $49,763 $40,219 $58,560 $245,223
Long-lived assets ... .. .. 19,510 5,595 4813 5,156 35,076
2004:
Revenues .. ........... $82.,375 $44,03|B $43,006 $71.871 $241,285
Long-lived assets . ...... 20,555 7,159 4,260 7,584 39,558
Customer

The Company had one customer that accounted for 10.8§% and 12.1% of its net revenues for the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. No other customers accounted for 10% or more of the Company’s
revenues during 2006 and 2005 and no customer accounted [for 10% or more of the Company's revenues during
2004.
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24. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

2006 2005 2004
(In thousands}

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable . . ... ... e $(3.641) $ 8201 5 (8059
Net investment in sales-type leases . .. .................. — — 373
Inventories . . .. ... ... ... .. ... .. (15,559 (15,057 (11,634)
Income tax receivable. . . ...... ... ... . .. L. — -— —_
Prepaid expenses and other current assets .. .............. 2,153 2,967 (315)
| Other @SSeLS . . . . ottt e e (600} (774) (205)
Accounts payable . . ... ... ... . L 4,638 (8,294) 4,925
Accrued payroll and related expenses .. ................. (3,653) 51 687
Accrued sales and othertax .. ............. ... ... ..... (2,101) 1,843 497
Accrued liabilities .. ....... ... . ... e . (1,929) (2,632) 390
Deferred revenue . .. ... ... ... ..., (669) 52 1,410
Income taxes payable . . . .. .. ... ... ... .. . ... ..., 608 (1,708) 1,495
Other liabilities . ... ... ... . . . i (3,775 3,271 420
Net decrease in operating assets and liabilities. . . .......... $(24,528) $(12,080) $(10,797)
Cash paid during the year by continuing operations:
Interest . ... ... ... . e $ (575 $ (786) % (879)
INCOME LAXES . . oottt et $(1,823) 3 (4.298) § (3,569)

Noncash investing activities:

Changes in accounts payable related to the purchase of
property, plant and equipment . . .. ... ... ... .. .. $§ 116 & 166 § —

Discontinued Operations — Revised Disclosure:

In 2005, the Company separately disclosed the operating, investing and financing portions of the cash flows
attributable to its discontinued operations, which in prior years were reported on a combined basis as a single
amount after cash flows from continuing operations. The following provides additional required information
regarding cash fiows from discontinued operations.

Year 2006

The net cash provided by operating and investment activitics for the year ended December 31, 2006 relates to
the UK Lease Business and is primarily due to $3.9 million of net cash earnings from the leasing operations and
$12.1 million of proceeds from the sale of the business on May 31, 2006.

Year 2005

The net cash provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2005 of $11.4 million relates to
the UK Lease Business and is primarily due to $7.4 million of net cash earnings from leasing operations and a
$4.0 million decrease in other operating assets as the lease portfolio matures.
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Year 2004

The net cash provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2004 of $4.4 million is primarily
due net cash earnings from the UK Lease Business operations.

The net cash used in investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2004 of $2.9 million relates primarily
to a loyalty payment associated with the renewal of a longiterm sales contract and cash used to manufacture
equipment under operating leases.

25. Interim Financial Results (Unaudited)

The following tables set forth certain unaudited consolidated financial information for each of the four guarters in
the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005. In management’s opinion, this unaudited quarterly information has been
prepared on the same basis as the audited consolidated financial statements and includes all necessary adjustments,
consisting only of normal recurring adjustments that management considers necessary for a fair presentation of the
unaudited quarterly resuits when read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes. The Company
believes that quarter-to-quarter comparisons of its financial resu.lllts are not necessartly meaningful and should not be
relied upon as an indication of future performance (dollars in tilousands, except per share data).

First Second Third Fourth Fiscal
Quarter ) uarter{A) Quarter Quarter(B) Year{C)
2006;
Netrevenue . .............uuvun.. $60,969 §66,l44 $56,669 $64,783 $248.565
Grossprofit ..................... $23,519 $27.394  $18922  $19,190 % 89,025
Income (loss) before discontinued
Operations. . . . ... .vuvuiniann $ 2,789 $ 4210 $ 473 $(2,735) $ 4,737
Income (loss) from discontinued
OPEralions. . v\ v v i i 349 2,018 (127 )] 2,233
Net income (1oss) ... .. ..., $ 3,138 $ 6,228 $ 346 $(2,742) § 6,970
Basic income (loss) per share:
Continuing operations . . ... ....... $ 005 % 008 S 001 3005 $ 009
Discontinued operations .......... 0.01 0.04 0.01 — 0.04
Net income (loss} . .............. $ 0.006 $ 0.12 5 00! $ (005 & 013
Diluted income (loss) per share:
Continuing operations . . .. ........ $ 005 §$ 008 $ 001 §$ (005 § 009
Discontinued operations ... ....... 0.01 0.03 0.01 — 0.04
Net income (loss) . .. ............ $ 0.06 $ 011 $ 002 $ (005 $ 013
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First Second Third Fourth Fiscal
Quarter(D) Quarter(E) Quarter Quarter(F) Year(D)
2005;
Netrevenue . ................... % 50,433 $ 60,154  $66,547 $68.089  $2457223
Grossprofit . ................... $16537 $ 7,733 $25479 $23383 § 73.132
Income (loss) before discontinued
OPErations. . .« .o vvvv e e e ... $(11,647)  3(18,149) $ 2,845 § (3,292) $(30,243)
Income (loss) from discontinued
operations. . ... ... ... 2,007 1,493 656 (7,279) (3,123)
Net income (loss). ............... $ (9.640) 3(l6,656) 3 3,501 $(10,571)  $(33,366)
Basic and diluted income (loss)
per share:
Continuing operations . .. ........ $ (0.22) % (035 5 005 $ (0o6) $ (038
Discontinued operations . ........ 0.04 0.03 0.02 (0.14) {0.06)
Net income (loss) . ............. $ (18 § (032 $ 007 $% (020 § (064

During the 2006 second quarter, the Company had a $1.6 million gain on the sale of our UK Lease Business
which was disposed of effective May 31, 2006.

During the 2006 fourth quarter, the Company acguired TPl and incurred in a one-time charge of $1.0 million
for the acquired in-process research and development.

Earnings per share calculations are based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding for each
quarter. The sum of the quarters may not be equal to the fiscal year amount.

During the 2005 first quarter, the Company incurred charges totaling $5.1 million as a result of actions taken
during the 2005 Business Review. The following is a summary of the 2005 Business Review charges recorded
in the 2005 first quarter:

+ $0.7 million for charges related to negotiated warranty work;
+ $2.1 million for write-downs of inventory primarily for products at or near end-of-life;

= $1.5 million for severance and related employment provisions related to certain executives and other
employees; and

+ $0.8 million for other individually immaterial charges and provisions,

During the 2005 second quarter, the Company incurred charges totaling $16.0 million as a result of actions
taken during the 2005 Business Review. The following is a summary of the 2005 Business Review charges
recorded in the 2005 second quarter:

+ $4.8 million for replacement cost provisions related to electronic payment equipment that the Company
elected to provide certain customers;

» $1.3 million for charges related to additional negotiated warranty work;
* $7.1 million for write-downs of inventory primarily for products at or near end-of-life;

« $2.2 million for severance and related employment provisions related to certain executives and other
employees and the elimination of certain executive benefits; and

« $0.6 million for other individually immaterial charges and provisions.

88




HYPERCOM CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

December 31, I2006

(F) During the fourth quarter of 2005, the Company incurred charges totaling $6.6 million as a result of actions
taken during the 2005 Business Review. The following is 2 summary of the 2005 Business Review charges

recorded in the 2005 fourth quarter:

* $0.6 million for charges related to additional negotiated warranty work;

* $2.9 million for write-downs of inventory primarily for products at or near end-of-life;

» $1.0 million for future rent charges in excess of estimated sublet recoveries on a vacated building:

+ $1.6 million for severance and related employment provisions related to certain executives and other

employees; and

* $0.5 million for other individually immaterial charges and provisions.
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SCHEDULE Il VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

‘ Additions
Charges to
Costs and
Balance at Expense in Charges to
Beginning Continuing Other Deductions Balance at
of Period Operations Accounts (A) End of Period

(Dollars in thousands)
Year Ended December 31, 2006:

Allowance for doubtful accounts. .. ....... $3,266 3 826 $ — $(2.158) $1,934
Year Ended December 31, 2005:
Allowance for doubtful accounts. . ... ... .. $2,390 $2,046 3 — $(1,170) $3,266
Year Ended December 31, 2004:
Allowance for doubtful accounts. .. ....... $ 993 $1,915 $ — 3 (518) $2,390

(A) Write-offs of uncollectible amounts and recoveries of amounts previously written off.
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Exhibit
Number Description of Exhibit and Method of Filing
3.1 — Amended and Restated Certificate of [ncorporluion of Hypercom Corporalion (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Hypercom Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-1
(Registration No. 333-35461))
32 —Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of Hypercom Corporation (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 to Hypercom Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 31, 2006)
4,1 — Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Hypercom Corporation (incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Hypercom Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-1
(Registration No. 333-35461))

10.} -~ Lease, as amended, dated June 14, 1996, by and bétween Estes-Samuelson Partnership and Hypercom,
Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Hypercom Corporation’s Registration Statement on
Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-35461))

10.2 — Hypercom Corporation Long-Term Incentive Plan {(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to
Hypercom Corporation’s Registration Statement ?n Form S-8 (Registration No. 333-67440))1

10,3 — Amended and Restated Hypercom Corporation 1997 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Hypercom Corporation’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended March 31, 2004}

10.4 — Hypercom Corporation 2000 Broad-Based Sto k Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Hypercom Corporation's Reglstratlon Statement on Form S-8 (Registration
No. 333-97181 )T

10.5 — Hypercom Corporation Nonemployee Directors’| Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Hypercom Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registration
No. 333-97179)+

106 — Amendment to the Hypercom Corporation Nonemployee Directors’ Stock Option Plan (Incorporated
by reference to Appendix 1 of the Company’s Proxy Statement on Schedule [4A filed on Apnii 17,
2006)t

10.7 — Employment Agreement, effective August 29, 2005, between William Keiper and Hypercom

Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Hypercom Corporation’s Current Report
on Form 8-K dated August 31, 2005)t

10.8 — Offer Letter to Thomas Liguori from Hypercom Corporation dated October 3, 2005 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Hypercom Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 26,
2005)t
10.9 — Amended Employment Agreement, effective Maruh 31, 2005, between Christopher S. Alexander and

Hypercom Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Hypercom Corporation’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated April 5, 2005)

10.10 — Factory Premises and Quarters Lease Agreement between Hypercom Electronic Manufacturing
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. And Xin He Economic Development Company, Fu Yong Town, Boa An
District, Shenzhen City, dated September 1, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
Hypercom Corporation’s Quarterly Report on Fotm 10- QQ for the quarter ended September 30, 2004)

10.11 — Credit Agreement dated January 31, 2005, by and between Hypercom Corporation and Wells Fargo
N.A. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Hypercom Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K
dated February 3, 2005)

10.12 — First Amendment dated February 15, 2005, to the Credit Agreement dated January 31, 2005, by and
between Hypercom Corporation and Wells Fargo/ N.A. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
Hypercom Corporation’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2005)

10.13 — Second Amendment dated March 15, 2006, to the Credit Agreement dated January 31, 2005, by and
between Hypercom Corporation and Wells Fargo . N A. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to
Hypercom Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K dated March 16, 20006)

10.14 — Employment Agreement, effective January 16, |2007, between Philippe Tartavull and Hypercom

Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Hypercom Corporation’s Current Report
on Form §-K dated Januvary 17, 2007)}
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10.15 — Business Sale Agreement dated June 27, 2006, by and among Hypercom Corporation, Hypercom
EMEA Ltd., Forrester UK Holdings, LLC and Northern Leasing Systems, Inc. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Hypercom Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 27, 2006)

21.1  —List of Subsidiaries*

23.1 — Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm*

24.1 — Powers of Attorney*

31.1 — Certification of Chief Executive Officer, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-QOxley Act
of 2002*

31.2 — Certification of Chief Financial Officer, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002*

32 — Centification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,

as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002**

* Filed herewith.
** Fumished herewith,

t Management or compensatory plan or agreement.
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EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION
I, William Keiper, certify that:
1. 1 have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Hypercom Corporation,

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not dontain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the statermnents made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; .

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rulesf 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and we have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others|within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal year Iihat has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying ofticer and I have dlscloqed based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors andd the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors
(or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakneisses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invplves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting, ,

/s/ | William Keiper

William Keiper
Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 16, 2007




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Thomas Liguori, certify that:

I. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Hypercom Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and we have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under cur supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

¢} Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal year that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and [ have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors
(or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ Thomas Liguori

Thomas Liguori
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Date: March 16, 2007




EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION

1, William Keiper, certify that:

L. [ have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K/A! of Hypercom Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

fs/ | William Keiper
‘William Keiper
Chikf Executive Officer

—

Date: March 23, 2007




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION
I, Thomas Liguori, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K/A of Hypercom Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

/s/ Thomas Liguori

Thomas Liguorni
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Date: March 23, 20067




EXHIBIT 32

Certification Pursunant to

18 U.S.C. Sectid

as Adopted Pu

n 1350,
uant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

This certification is not deemed filed pursuant to the Sed
not constitute a part of the Annual Report of Hypercom Corpg
ending December 31, 2006, as filed with the Securities a
“Report™).

In connection with the Report, we, William Keiper, as (]

urities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and does
ration (the “Company™) on Form 10-K for the period
nd Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the

hief Executive Officer of the Company, and Thomas

Liguori, as Chief Financial Officer of the Company, hereby certify, pursvant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted
pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, to the best of his knowledge, respectively, that:

(1} The Report fully complies with the requirements of
of 1934; and

ection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and

results of operations of the Company.

By:|/s/ William Keiper

Dated: March 16, 2007

William Keiper
Chief Executive Officer

By:|fs/ Thomas Liguori

Dated: March 16, 2007

Thomas Liguori
Chief Financial Officer
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STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH

STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graph illustrates a comparison of the cumulatjve total stockhelder return (change in stock price plus reinvested dividends)
of (i) our common stock, (i) the Nasdagq Stock Index, and (iiip a selected peer group index, from December 31, 2001 through December

29, 2006 (the last trading day of the end of our fiscal year).

*  CAM Commerce Solutions, Inc. « N
e Diebold, Incorporated .
¢ eFunds Corporation .
*  First Data Corporation + R
*  Micros Systems, Inc. sV

The peer group was selected on an industry basis and includes:

R Corporation

PAR Technology Corporation
Radiant Systems, Inc.

otalix Ltd.
vriFone Holdings, Inc.

The graph assumes that $100 was invested on December 31, 2001, in cur common stock and in each of the comparison indices, and

assumes all dividends paid were reinvested. The comparisong
indicative of possible future performance of our common stq
shall not be deemed to be filed or incorporated by reference
or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, except

Comparison of Five—
Performance Graph for Hypg

in the graph are required by the SEC and are not intended to forecast or be
ck. This stock performance graph does not constitute soliciting material, and
nto any other Hypercom filing under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
to the extent that Hypercom specifically incorporates it by reference therein.
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rcom Corporation

Produced on 03/30/2007 including data to 1p/29/2006
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Daniel D. Diethelm
Chairman of the Board of Directors
Chair, Hypercom Audit Committee
“Hypercom Compensation Committee
Hypercom Nominating/Corporate
Governance Committee

William Keiper
Chief Executive Officer,
Hypercom Corporation

Phillip J. Riese
President, Riese & Others
Hypercom Audit Committee
Hypercom Compensation Committee
Chair, Bypercom Nominating/Corporate
Governance Committee

Norman Stout
Chief Executive Officer, Inter-Tel
Hypercom Audit Committee
Chair, Hypercom Compensation Committee

-ertifications

Ve have filed the required certifications under
ection 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
s Exhibits 31.1 and 31.2 to our annual report
n Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
december 31, 2006 and Exhibits 31.1 and
1.2 1o our annual report on Form 10-K/A
Amendment No. 1) for the fiscal year ended
ecember 31, 2006. After our 2007 Annual
feeting of Stockholders, we intend to file with
he New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) the CEQ
ertification regarding our compliance with the
[YSE's corporate governance listing standards
s required by NYSE rule 303A.12. Last year,
e filed this CEO certification with the NYSE

1 May 2006.

The Annual Meeting of Stockholders will be held on
May 17, 2007 beginning at 9:00 a.m., Phoenix time, at:

Hypercom Corporation Headquarters:
2851 West Kathleen Road, Phoenix, AZ 85053, USA
Tel: £02.504.5000, Fax: 602.504.4655

Stockholder Information

For additional investor information, please direct your request t
Scott M. Tsujita, Senior Vice President of Finance,

Treasury and Investor Relatiorls

2851 West Kathleen Road, Phoenix, AZ 85053, USA

Email: stsujita@hypercom.co
Tel: 602.504.5000, Fax: 602. ‘:04 4655

Transfer Agent and Registrar
Computershare Investor Serviges, LLC

350 Indiana St., Suite 800, Galden, CO 80401, USA
fel: 303.262.0600

Independent Auditors
Ernst & Young LLP

One Renaissance Sq., Suite 2300,
Two North Central Ave., Phoerlnx AZ 85004, USA
"el: 602.322.3000

Outside Legal Counsel |

Snell & Wilmer L.L.P, |

One Arizona Center, Phoenix, AZ 85004-2202, USA
“el: 602.382.6000

Form 10-K Exhibits

Hypercom will furnish a copy of any exhibit to its Form 10-K,
amended, to a requesting stockhoider upon payment of our
reasonable expenses in furnishing such copy. Additionally,
Hypercom'’s SEC reports, including exhibits, are available on
Hypercom's web site, www.hypercom.com.

Securities Listing
Hypercom Corporation’s Common Stock is traded on the New Yo
Stock Exchange under the sympo! HYC.

Dividend Policy
We currently do not intend to ﬂ)ay any dividends on our common
stock. While we may declare dividends at some point in the futur
We cannot assure you that you will ever receive cash dividends a
resuli of ownership of our common stock and any gains from

investment in our common stock may only come from increases i
our stock pri
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World Headquarters:
Hypercom Corporation | 2851 West Kathleen Road, Phoenix, A7 85053, USA

Tel: +1.602.504.5000 | Fax: +1.602.504.4655 | www.hypercom.com

© 2007 Hypercom Carperation, all rights reserved. Hypercom is a registared trademark of Hypercom Corporation,
The Hypercom logo is a trademark of Hypercom Corporation. All oiher products or services mentioned in this document
are trademarks, service marks, registered trademarks or registered service marks of their sespective gwners.




